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7KH�+RQRUDEOH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�
&LW\�RI�1HZSRUW�1HZV�
1HZSRUW�1HZV��9LUJLQLD�������
�
�
:H�DUH�SOHDVHG�WR�VXEPLW�WKH�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�$QQXDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW��&$)5��RI�WKH�&LW\�RI�1HZSRUW�1HZV��9LUJLQLD��WKH�&LW\��IRU�
WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����������)<��������
�
&KHUU\�%HNDHUW�//3��&HUWLILHG�3XEOLF�$FFRXQWDQWV��FRQGXFWHG�WKH�DXGLW�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����
������DQG�KDYH�LVVXHG�DQ�XQPRGLILHG��³FOHDQ´��RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKRVH�VWDWHPHQWV���7KH�LQGHSHQGHQW�DXGLWRU¶V�UHSRUW�LV�ORFDWHG�DW�WKH�IURQW�RI�
WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6HFWLRQ�RI�WKLV�UHSRUW��
�
0DQDJHPHQW¶V� GLVFXVVLRQ� DQG� DQDO\VLV� �0'	$�� LPPHGLDWHO\� IROORZV� WKH� LQGHSHQGHQW� DXGLWRU¶V� UHSRUW� DQG� SURYLGHV� D� QDUUDWLYH�
LQWURGXFWLRQ��RYHUYLHZ��DQG�DQDO\VLV�RI�WKH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV���7KLV�OHWWHU�RI�WUDQVPLWWDO�LV�LQWHQGHG�WR�SURYLGH�D�SURILOH�RI�WKH�
&LW\�DQG�VXPPDU\�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�LWV�HFRQRPLF�FRQGLWLRQ�DQG�LV�LQWHQGHG�WR�FRPSOHPHQW�WKH�0'	$��
�
5HVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�WKH�DFFXUDF\�RI�WKH�GDWD�DQG�WKH�FRPSOHWHQHVV�RI�DOO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHVWV�ZLWK�&LW\�PDQDJHPHQW���0DQDJHPHQW�EHOLHYHV�
WKDW� WKH� &LW\¶V� DFFRXQWLQJ� V\VWHP� SURYLGHV� DGHTXDWH� LQWHUQDO� FRQWUROV�� 7KHVH� FRQWUROV� DUH� GHVLJQHG� WR� SURYLGH� UHDVRQDEOH�� EXW� QRW�
DEVROXWH�� DVVXUDQFH� UHJDUGLQJ� WKH� VDIHNHHSLQJ�RI� DVVHWV�DJDLQVW� ORVV� IURP�XQDXWKRUL]HG�XVH�RU�GLVSRVLWLRQ�� DQG� WKH� UHOLDELOLW\�RI� WKH�
ILQDQFLDO� UHFRUGV�IRU�SUHSDULQJ�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�PDLQWDLQLQJ�DFFRXQWDELOLW\� IRU�DVVHWV�� �7KH�FRQFHSW�RI�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�
UHFRJQL]HV�WKDW�WKH�FRVW�RI�D�FRQWURO�VKRXOG�QRW�H[FHHG�WKH�EHQHILWV�OLNHO\�WR�EH�GHULYHG��DQG�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�WKRVH�FRVWV�DQG�EHQHILWV�
UHTXLUHV�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�MXGJPHQWV�E\�PDQDJHPHQW���
�
7R�WKH�EHVW�RI�RXU�NQRZOHGJH�DQG�EHOLHI��WKH�DWWDFKHG�GDWD�LV�DFFXUDWH�LQ�DOO�PDWHULDO�UHVSHFWV�DQG�LV�UHSRUWHG�LQ�D�PDQQHU�WKDW�SUHVHQWV�
IDLUO\�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�RSHUDWLRQV�RI�WKH�YDULRXV�IXQGV�DQG�FRPSRQHQW�XQLWV�RI�WKH�&LW\��([WHQVLYH�GLVFORVXUHV�
KDYH�EHHQ�LQFOXGHG�WR�KHOS�WKH�UHDGHU�JDLQ�IXOO�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�DIIDLUV��
�
352),/(�2)�7+(�&,7<�$1'�,76�*29(510(17�
�
7KH�&LW\�RI�1HZSRUW�1HZV�� LQFRUSRUDWHG� LQ������� LV� ORFDWHG�RQ� WKH� HDVWHUQ� FRDVW� RI�9LUJLQLD�� � ,W� RFFXSLHV� ��� VTXDUH�PLOHV�ZLWK� D�
SRSXODWLRQ�RI����������EDVHG�RQ�WKH������FHQVXV�HVWLPDWHV��

1HZSRUW�1HZV�LV�WKH�IRXUWK�ODUJHVW�&LW\�E\�DFUHDJH�DQG�WKH�ILIWK�ODUJHVW�&LW\�E\�SRSXODWLRQ�LQ�WKH�&RPPRQZHDOWK�RI�9LUJLQLD��

7KH�&LW\�KDV�D�FRXQFLO�PDQDJHU�IRUP�RI�JRYHUQPHQW���3ROLF\�PDNLQJ�DQG�OHJLVODWLYH�DXWKRULW\�LV�YHVWHG�LQ�D�&RXQFLO�FRQVLVWLQJ�RI�WKH�
0D\RU�DQG�VL[�RWKHU�PHPEHUV��DOO�HOHFWHG�RQ�D�QRQ�SDUWLVDQ�EDVLV���7KH�0D\RU�DQG�&RXQFLO�PHPEHUV�VHUYH�IRXU�\HDU�WHUPV��ZLWK�WKUHH�
PHPEHUV�HOHFWHG�HYHU\�WZR�\HDUV���7KH�0D\RU�LV�HOHFWHG�DW�ODUJH�DQG�WKH�VL[�PHPEHUV�RI�&RXQFLO�DUH�HOHFWHG�E\�YRWHUV�RI�WKH�GLVWULFWV�
LQ�ZKLFK� WKH\�UHVLGH���7KH�&RXQFLO�DSSRLQWV�WKH�&LW\�0DQDJHU�ZKR�FDUULHV�RXW�LWV�SROLFLHV��GLUHFWV�GDLO\�RSHUDWLRQV�DQG�DSSRLQWV�WKH�
KHDGV�RI�YDULRXV�GHSDUWPHQWV��7KH�&RXQFLO�DOVR�DSSRLQWV�WKH�&LW\�&OHUN�DQG�WKH�&LW\�$WWRUQH\��ZKR�LV�WKH�OHJDO�DGYLVRU�WR�WKH�&RXQFLO��
WKH�&LW\�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ��ERDUGV��FRPPLVVLRQV�DQG�DJHQFLHV�RI�WKH�&LW\����
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7KH� &LW\� SURYLGHV� D� IXOO� UDQJH� RI� VHUYLFHV�� LQFOXGLQJ� SROLFH� DQG� ILUH� SURWHFWLRQ�� MXYHQLOH� GHWHQWLRQ�� VRFLDO� VHUYLFHV�� UHFUHDWLRQDO�
DFWLYLWLHV��FXOWXUDO�HYHQWV��DQG�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�KLJKZD\V��VWUHHWV�DQG� LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�� ,Q�DGGLWLRQ� WR�WKHVH�JHQHUDO�
JRYHUQPHQW� DFWLYLWLHV�� WKH� &LW\� SURYLGHV� VWUHHW� OLJKWLQJ�� ZDWHU� DQG� ZDVWHZDWHU� VHUYLFHV� WR� LWV� FLWL]HQV�� � 7KH� &LW\¶V� :DWHUZRUNV�
'HSDUWPHQW�DOVR�SURYLGHV�ZDWHU�WR�WKH�FLWLHV�RI�+DPSWRQ�DQG�3RTXRVRQ�DQG�WR�SDUWV�RI�<RUN�DQG�-DPHV�&LW\�FRXQWLHV��
�
7KLV�UHSRUW�FRYHUV�ILQDQFLDO�WUDQVDFWLRQV�RI�DOO�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�E\�WKH�&LW\��7KH�&LW\�LV�ILQDQFLDOO\�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�D�OHJDOO\�VHSDUDWH�
VFKRRO� GLVWULFW�� WKH� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV� 3XEOLF� 6FKRROV� �6FKRROV�� RU� 6FKRRO� %RDUG��� ZKLFK� LV� UHSRUWHG� VHSDUDWHO\� ZLWKLQ� WKH� ILQDQFLDO�
VWDWHPHQWV���$OVR�LQFOXGHG��DV�FRPSRQHQW�XQLWV��DUH�WKH�3HQLQVXOD�$LUSRUW�&RPPLVVLRQ��$LUSRUW��RU�3$&��DQG�WKH�(FRQRPLF�,QGXVWULDO�
'HYHORSPHQW� DXWKRULWLHV� �(�,'$��� EHFDXVH� RI�&LW\� &RXQFLO¶V� ILQDQFLDO� DFFRXQWDELOLW\� IRU� WKRVH� HQWLWLHV� DV�ZHOO� DV� WKHLU� VLJQLILFDQW�
ILQDQFLDO�WLHV�ZLWK�WKH�&LW\��
�
7KH�LQGHSHQGHQW�DJHQFLHV�WKDW�DUH�127�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�&LW\�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�WKH�1HZSRUW�1HZV�5HGHYHORSPHQW�DQG�+RXVLQJ�
$XWKRULW\� �115+$��� WKH� +DPSWRQ� 5RDGV� &RPPXQLW\� $FWLRQ� 3URJUDP� �+5&$3�� DQG� WKH� +DPSWRQ�1HZSRUW� 1HZV� &RPPXQLW\�
6HUYLFHV�%RDUG��+11&6%���
�
7KH�&LW\¶V�DQQXDO�EXGJHW�SURFHVV��WKH�IRXQGDWLRQ�IRU�FRPPXQLFDWLQJ�PDMRU�ILQDQFLDO�RSHUDWLQJ�REMHFWLYHV�DQG�IRU�DOORFDWLQJ�UHVRXUFHV�
WR�DFKLHYH�WKHP��LV�D�FRPSOH[�XQGHUWDNLQJ�LQYROYLQJ�WKH�HQWLUH�JRYHUQPHQW����7KH�&LW\�LV�UHTXLUHG�E\�6WDWH�FRGH�WR�DGRSW�D�ILQDO�EXGJHW�
E\�WKH���WK�GD\�RI�WKH�ODVW�PRQWK�RI�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU��-XQH�������2QFH�WKH�EXGJHW�LV�DSSURYHG��WKHUH�LV�VLJQLILFDQW�IRFXV�RQ�WKH�FRQWURO�RI�
H[SHQGLWXUHV� DQG�PRQLWRULQJ� UHYHQXHV�� �2QJRLQJ�PRQLWRULQJ� RI� UHYHQXHV� DQG� H[SHQGLWXUHV� WKURXJKRXW� WKH� \HDU� LV� D� UHVSRQVLELOLW\�
VKDUHG�E\�GHSDUWPHQW�GLUHFWRUV�DQG�WKH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�%XGJHW�DQG�(YDOXDWLRQ��%XGJHW�'HSDUWPHQW���
�
7KH�%XGJHW�'HSDUWPHQW�UHYLHZV�DOO�GHSDUWPHQWDO�WUDQVIHU�UHTXHVWV�WR�HQVXUH�VXIILFLHQW�DSSURSULDWLRQV�DUH�DYDLODEOH���7KH�&LW\�0DQDJHU�
KDV� WKH� DXWKRULW\� WR� WUDQVIHU� EXGJHWHG� DPRXQWV� DPRQJ� GHSDUWPHQWV� ZLWKLQ� DQ\� IXQG�� KRZHYHU�� DQ\� UHYLVLRQV� DOWHULQJ� WKH� WRWDO�
DSSURSULDWLRQV� RI� DQ\� IXQG�PXVW� EH� DSSURYHG� E\�&LW\� &RXQFLO��%XGJHW� WR� DFWXDO� FRPSDULVRQV� DUH� SURYLGHG� LQ� WKLV� UHSRUW� IRU� HDFK�
JRYHUQPHQWDO�DQG�HQWHUSULVH�IXQG�IRU�ZKLFK�DQ�DQQXDO�EXGJHW�KDV�EHHQ�DGRSWHG��
�
/21*�7(50�),1$1&,$/�3/$11,1*�$1'�'(%7�$'0,1,675$7,21�
�
7KH�&LW\�KDV�DGRSWHG�SROLFLHV�ZKLFK�JXLGH� LWV�FDSLWDO� LPSURYHPHQW�SODQQLQJ�DQG� LWV� LVVXDQFH�RI� ORQJ�WHUP�GHEW��7KHVH�SROLFLHV�DUH�
LQWHQGHG�WR�KHOS�WKH�&LW\�PDLQWDLQ�RU�LPSURYH�LWV�ERQG�UDWLQJ��KHOS�WKH�FLW\�PDQDJH�LWV�FDSLWDO�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�D�PDQQHU�ZKLFK�GRHV�QRW�
FUHDWH�DQ�XQGXH�ILQDQFLDO�EXUGHQ�RQ�LWV�FLWL]HQV�DQG�WD[SD\HUV�DQG�NHHS�FKDQJHV�LQ�GHEW�VHUYLFH�REOLJDWLRQV�DW�OHYHOV�WKDW�GR�QRW�UHGXFH�
WKH�&LW\¶V�DELOLW\�WR�SURYLGH�DFFHSWDEOH�PXQLFLSDO�DQG�HGXFDWLRQDO�VHUYLFHV�WR�LWV�FLWL]HQV���
�
7KH�IROORZLQJ�DUH�WKH�&LW\¶V�&DSLWDO�)LQDQFLQJ�'HEW�0DQDJHPHQW�3ROLFLHV��
�

'HEW�,QGLFDWRU (VWDEOLVKHG�3ROLF\ )<����� )<�����

2XWVWDQGLQJ�*HQHUDO�2EOLJDWLRQ�'HEW�WR�7D[DEOH�5HDO�DQG�3HUVRQDO�3URSHUW\�9DOXH 1R�JUHDWHU�WKDQ����� ���� ����

'HEW�6HUYLFH�WR�*HQHUDO�)XQG�DQG�6FKRRO�5HYHQXH 1R�JUHDWHU�WKDQ����� ���� ����

3URSRUWLRQ�RI�&DSLWDO�,PSURYHPHQW�3ODQ�VSHQGLQJ�ZLWK�&DVK�&DSLWDO 1R�OHVV�WKDQ���� ����� �����

2XWVWDQGLQJ�*HQHUDO�2EOLJDWLRQ�'HEW�6FKHGXOHG�WR�EH�UHSDLG�ZLWKLQ���\HDUV 1R�OHVV�WKDQ���� ����� �����

2XWVWDQGLQJ�*HQHUDO�2EOLJDWLRQ�'HEW�6FKHGXOHG�WR�EH�UHSDLG�ZLWKLQ����\HDUV 1R�OHVV�WKDQ���� ����� �����
�

�
$V� UHTXLUHG�E\�&LW\�&RGH�� WKH�&LW\�0DQDJHU�VXEPLWV�D�PXOWL�\HDU�&DSLWDO� ,PSURYHPHQWV�3ODQ� �&,3�� WR�&LW\�&RXQFLO��QR� ODWHU� WKDQ�
1RYHPEHU���RI�HDFK�\HDU��7KH�)<������WR�)<������&DSLWDO�,PSURYHPHQWV�3ODQ�ZDV�DSSURYHG�E\�&LW\�&RXQFLO�RQ�-DQXDU\�����������
7KH�&,3�UHIOHFWV�WKH�YLVLRQ�DQG�SULRULWLHV�RI�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�IRU�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�WKH�EXLOGLQJV�DQG�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�
RZQHG�E\�WKH�&LW\��$OWKRXJK�LQWHQGHG�WR�EH�D�FRPPLWPHQW�WR�D�PXOWL�\HDU�FDSLWDO�QHHGV�SURJUDP��WKH�&,3�LV�IXQGDPHQWDOO\�D�SODQQLQJ�
GRFXPHQW��VXEMHFW�WR�DQQXDO�PRGLILFDWLRQ�DQG�DPHQGPHQW�DV�FKDQJLQJ�SULRULWLHV��DYDLODELOLW\�RI�IXQGLQJ�DQG�RWKHU�IDFWRUV�FUHDWH�WKH�
QHHG� IRU� UHYLVLRQ��0RVW� SURMHFWV� LQ� WKH�&,3� DUH� IXQGHG� E\����\HDU�*HQHUDO�2EOLJDWLRQ�%RQGV� LVVXHG�E\� WKH�&LW\�ZLWK� OHYHO� DQQXDO�
SULQFLSDO�SD\PHQWV��7KH�DQQXDO�SULQFLSDO�DQG�LQWHUHVW�SD\PHQWV��GHEW�VHUYLFH��DUH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�DQQXDO�RSHUDWLQJ�EXGJHW��7KH�
*HQHUDO��:DVWHZDWHU��6WRUPZDWHU��DQG�6ROLG�:DVWH�IXQGV�HDFK�SD\�IRU�D�SURSRUWLRQDWH�VKDUH�RI�SULQFLSDO�DQG�LQWHUHVW�SD\PHQWV��7KH�
:DWHUZRUNV�)XQG�SD\V�DOO�RI�WKH�GHEW�VHUYLFH�UHODWHG�WR�LWV�FDSLWDO�SURMHFW��7KH�)<������%XGJHW�SURYLGHV�WKDW�WKH�*HQHUDO�)XQG�ZLOO�
SD\������RU�������PLOOLRQ��RI�WKH�WRWDO�GHEW�VHUYLFH�EXGJHW�RI�������PLOOLRQ��
�
�
�
�
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1HZSRUW�1HZV�LV�D�YLEUDQW�&LW\�DW�WKH�PLG�SRLQW�RI�WKH�$WODQWLF�&RDVW�DQG�DW�WKH�FHQWHU�RI�WKH�
9LUJLQLD� %HDFK�1RUIRON�1HZSRUW�1HZV�0HWURSROLWDQ� 6WDWLVWLFDO�$UHD�� WKH� ��WK� ODUJHVW�PDUNHW� LQ� WKH�8QLWHG� 6WDWHV� DQG� WKH� ODUJHVW�
PHWUR�EHWZHHQ�:DVKLQJWRQ�DQG�$WODQWD��ZLWK�D�SRSXODWLRQ�HVWLPDWH�RI�����PLOOLRQ��
�
1HZSRUW�1HZV�LV�ORFDWHG�RQ�WKH�9LUJLQLD�3HQLQVXOD��VXUURXQGHG�E\�WKH�-DPHV�5LYHU�WR�WKH�VRXWK��WKH�<RUN�5LYHU�WR�WKH�QRUWK��DQG�WKH�
&KHVDSHDNH�%D\�WR�WKH�HDVW��7KH�GLYHUVLW\�RI�DYDLODEOH�UHVRXUFHV�DQG�TXDOLW\�RI�OLIH�IRU�WKRVH�ZKR�OLYH�KHUH�DUH�IXUWKHU�HQKDQFHG�E\�LWV�
FORVH�SUR[LPLW\�WR����RWKHU�FLWLHV�DQG�FRXQWLHV��,Q�WRWDO��WKHVH�HQWLWLHV�EOHQG�V\QHUJLVWLFDOO\�LQWR�9LUJLQLD¶V�+DPSWRQ�5RDGV�UHJLRQ��ZLWK�
1HZSRUW�1HZV� D�YLWDO� FRQWULEXWRU� WR�
WKH� GHVLUDEOH� OLIHVW\OH�� KLJK� HQHUJ\��
DQG�HFRQRPLF�VWUHQJWK�RI�WKLV�YLEUDQW�
DUHD��
�
1HZSRUW� 1HZV� KDV� DQ� HFRQRPLF�
IRXQGDWLRQ� ZKLFK� ZDV� KLVWRULFDOO\�
EDVHG� ODUJHO\� RQ� OLYHOLKRRGV�
EHQHILWWLQJ� IURP� WKH� FRQVWDQW�
SUHVHQFH� RI� ZDWHU�VKLSEXLOGLQJ��
ILVKLQJ�� DQG� QDYDO� DQG� FRPPHUFLDO�
WUDQVSRUW�QHWZRUNV��2YHU� WKH�SDVW����
\HDUV�� WKH� &LW\� KDV� HYROYHG� LQWR� D�
FRPPXQLW\� QRZ� GHILQHG� E\� VFLHQFH�
DQG� WHFKQRORJ\� LQGXVWULHV� EDODQFHG�
EHWZHHQ� FRPPHUFLDO� DQG� PLOLWDU\�
DSSOLFDWLRQV�� UHVHDUFK� IDFLOLWLHV��
KLJKHU� HGXFDWLRQ�� PDQXIDFWXULQJ��
GLVWULEXWLRQ��DQG�KHDOWKFDUH��
�
8QHPSOR\PHQW�UDWHV�LQ�1HZSRUW�1HZV�KDYH�GHFUHDVHG�VOLJKWO\�LQ�WKH�ODVW�\HDU��DQG�DUH�RQ�SDU�ZLWK�WKH�QDWLRQDO�DYHUDJH��$V�RI�-XO\�
������WKH�ORFDO�XQHPSOR\PHQW�UDWH��QRW�VHDVRQDOO\�DGMXVWHG��ZDV������FRPSDUHG�WR������LQ�-XO\�������7KH�QDWLRQDO�UDWH�ZDV������
FRPSDUHG�WR�
�����LQ�������
�
1(�3257�1(�6�38%/,&�6&+22/�6<67(0�

2QH�RI� WKH�PRVW� LPSRUWDQW� VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�E\�D�&LW\� WR� LWV� WD[SD\HUV� LV� WKH�HGXFDWLRQ�RI� WKH�FKLOGUHQ�RI� WKH�FRPPXQLW\��6FKRROV�
SURYLGHV� D� IXOO� UDQJH�RI� SXEOLF�HGXFDWLRQ� VHUYLFHV� WR�DSSUR[LPDWHO\��������VWXGHQWV� LQ� IRXU�HDUO\� FKLOGKRRG�FHQWHUV�����HOHPHQWDU\�
VFKRROV��VHYHQ�PLGGOH�VFKRROV��ILYH�KLJK�VFKRROV��RQH�FRPELQDWLRQ�PLGGOH�KLJK�VFKRRO��DQG�QLQH�SURJUDP�VLWHV��
�
6FKRROV� UHFHLYH� IXQGLQJ� IURP� WD[HV� FROOHFWHG� DQG� DOORFDWHG�E\� WKH�&RPPRQZHDOWK�RI�9LUJLQLD� DQG� ORFDO� VXSSRUW� IURP� WKH�&LW\�� LQ�
DGGLWLRQ�WR�IHGHUDO�DLG��&DSLWDO�IXQGLQJ�IRU�SXEOLF�VFKRRO�IDFLOLWLHV�LV�SURYLGHG�SULPDULO\�E\�WKH�VDOH�RI�JHQHUDO�REOLJDWLRQ�ERQGV�RI�WKH�
&LW\��
�
0RUH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�LPSRUWDQW�DFKLHYHPHQWV�RI�WKH�6FKRROV�LV�DYDLODEOH�LQ�WKH�VHSDUDWHO\�SXEOLVKHG�6FKRROV�&$)5��
�
(&2120,&�'(9(/230(17�$&7,9,7,(6�
�
1HZSRUW�1HZV�SURPRWHV� WKH�H[SDQVLRQ�RI�HFRQRPLF�DFWLYLW\��SURYLGHV�YDULHG�HFRQRPLF�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�IRU�LWV�UHVLGHQWV��DQG�IRVWHUV�D�
KHDOWK\�FOLPDWH�IRU�QHZ�DQG�H[LVWLQJ�EXVLQHVVHV��'XULQJ�)<�������WKH�IRFDO�SRLQW�RI�HFRQRPLF�GHYHORSPHQW�DFWLYLW\�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&LW\�
ZDV� RQ� FRQWLQXHG� VXSSRUW� DQG� H[SDQVLRQ� RI� VFLHQFH� DQG� WHFKQRORJ\� LQGXVWULHV� DQG� UHODWHG� HFRQRPLF� RSSRUWXQLWLHV�� DV� ZHOO� DV�
LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�QHLJKERUKRRGV�DQG�UHVLGHQW�DPHQLWLHV���,QIRUPDWLRQ�RQ�VRPH�RI�WKH�QHZ�DQG�RQJRLQJ�SURMHFWV�IROORZV���
�
Corporate Research at Tech Center & Jefferson Lab Activity 

-HIIHUVRQ�/DE��D�ZRUOG�FODVV�QDWLRQDO�ODERUDWRU\�VSHFLDOL]LQJ�LQ�SDUWLFOH�SK\VLFV��KDV�EHHQ�SUHVHQW�LQ�1HZSRUW�1HZV�IRU�RYHU����\HDUV��
'XULQJ�WKDW�WLPH��WKH�/DE�KDV�EHHQ�DZDUGHG�ZLWK�RYHU������ELOOLRQ�LQ�IHGHUDO�IXQGLQJ�DQG�PDGH�JURXQGEUHDNLQJ�GLVFRYHULHV�LQ�QXFOHDU�
SK\VLFV��-HIIHUVRQ�/DE�UHFHQWO\�FRPSOHWHG�D������PLOOLRQ�IHGHUDOO\�IXQGHG�XSJUDGH��GRXEOLQJ�WKH�SRZHU�RI�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�IDFLOLW\��7KH�
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/DE�KDV�DOVR�EHJXQ�HDUO\�SURMHFW�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�DQ�(QHUJ\�(OHFWURQ�,RQ�&ROOLGHU��(,&��LQ�SUHSDUDWLRQ�WR�FRPSHWH�IRU�D�KLJK�SULRULW\��
QH[W�JHQHUDWLRQ�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�(QHUJ\��PXOWL�SKDVHG��PXOWL�ELOOLRQ�GROODU�VFLHQFH�LQLWLDWLYH��7KLV�XQLTXH�DQG�LPSRUWDQW�VFLHQFH�DVVHW��
DWWUDFWLQJ�RYHU�������LQWHUQDWLRQDO�XVHU�DQQXDOO\��LV�D�VLJQLILFDQW�FRQWULEXWRU�WR�WKH�ORFDO�HFRQRP\���
�
$GMDFHQW�WR�-HIIHUVRQ�/DE�LV�WKH�7HFK�&HQWHU�5HVHDUFK�3DUN��ZKLFK�XSRQ�FRPSOHWLRQ�ZLOO�FRQWDLQ�DSSUR[LPDWHO\���������VTXDUH�IHHW�
RI�RIILFH�DQG�ODE�VSDFH�VSUHDG�DFURVV����EXLOGLQJV�ZLWK�DQ�HVWLPDWHG�������HPSOR\HHV��$�ULEERQ�FXWWLQJ�FHUHPRQ\�ZDV�KHOG�LQ�$XJXVW�
����� IRU� %XLOGLQJ�2QH�#� 7HFK� &HQWHU�� WKH� ILUVW� UHVHDUFK� RIILFH� EXLOGLQJ�� 3ODQV� WR� EUHDN� JURXQG� RQ� WKH� VHFRQG� UHVHDUFK� IDFLOLW\��
%XLOGLQJ� 7ZR�� DUH� DQWLFLSDWHG� IRU� HDUO\� ������ 7KH� SUHVHQFH� RI� D� UHVHDUFK� FHQWHU� QH[W� WR� -HIIHUVRQ� /DE� ZLOO� SURYLGH� LPPHGLDWH�
RSSRUWXQLWLHV� IRU�FROODERUDWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�-HIIHUVRQ�/DE�VFLHQWLVWV�DQG� WKH�SULYDWH�VHFWRU�� ,Q�DGGLWLRQ� WR� WKH�UHVHDUFK�SDUN�� WKH�EURDGHU�
7HFK� &HQWHU� GHYHORSPHQW� LQFOXGHV� KRXVLQJ�� UHWDLO�� DQG� FRPPHUFLDO� XVHV� LQFOXGLQJ� 9HQWXUH� $SDUWPHQWV�� D� KLJK�HQG�� ����XQLW�
PXOWLIDPLO\�IXOO\�OHDVHG�FRPSOH[��
�
7KH�SURYLVLRQ�RI�WKHVH�DPHQLWLHV�DOLJQV�ZLWK�D�JURZLQJ�WUHQG�RI�PL[HG�XVH�UHVHDUFK�SDUNV�DQG�ZLOO�FRQWULEXWH�WRZDUG�WKH�DWWUDFWLRQ�RI�
VNLOOHG� ZRUNHUV� WR� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV�� EHQHILWWLQJ� ERWK� WKH� UHVHDUFKHUV� DW� -HIIHUVRQ� /DE� DQG� WKH� FRPSDQLHV� RFFXS\LQJ� WKH� FRUSRUDWH�
UHVHDUFK�FHQWHU��

Endview 

,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�QHZ�KRXVLQJ�RSWLRQV�DW�7HFK�&HQWHU��D�UHVLGHQWLDO�FRPPXQLW\�LV�SODQQHG�DW�RQH�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V�ODVW�ODUJH�XQGHYHORSHG�
DUHDV� LQ�QRUWKHUQ�1HZSRUW�1HZV�� ,Q�-XQH������� WKH�(FRQRPLF�'HYHORSPHQW�$XWKRULW\�VHOHFWHG�D�GHVLJQ�GHYHORSPHQW�EXLOG� WHDP�WR�
SODQ��GHVLJQ��EXLOG�DQG�PDUNHW�D�SUHPLHU��SUHGRPLQDQWO\�UHVLGHQWLDO�FRPPXQLW\�DW�LWV�����DFUH�(QGYLHZ�WUDFW��,Q�(QGYLHZ��WKH�&LW\�DQG�
LWV�(FRQRPLF�'HYHORSPHQW�$XWKRULW\�VHH�DQ�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�GHYHORS�D�GLVWLQFWLYH��KLJK�TXDOLW\��YLEUDQW�UHVLGHQWLDO�QHLJKERUKRRG�

Innovation and Opportunity Center 
�
7KH� &LW\� RI� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV� KRVWHG� D� ULEERQ� FXWWLQJ� FHUHPRQ\� LQ� $XJXVW� ����� IRU� WKH� QHZ� %URRNV� &URVVLQJ� ,QQRYDWLRQ� DQG�
2SSRUWXQLW\� &HQWHU� �%&,2&�� LQ� WKH� 6RXWKHDVW� &RPPXQLW\��*RYHUQRU� 5DOSK�1RUWKDP�� 6HQDWRU�0DUN�:DUQHU�� 6HQDWRU� 7LP�.DLQH��
&RQJUHVVPDQ� %REE\� 6FRWW�� 0D\RU� 0F.LQOH\� 3ULFH�� RIILFLDOV� IURP� WKH� &LW\�� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV� 6KLSEXLOGLQJ� DQG� 2OG� 'RPLQLRQ�
8QLYHUVLW\�� DV� ZHOO� DV� FRPPXQLW\� OHDGHUV� FHOHEUDWHG� WKH� RSHQLQJ� RI� WKH� FHQWHU�� %&,2&�� ZKLFK� LV� OHDVHG� E\� WKH� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV�
(FRQRPLF� 'HYHORSPHQW� $XWKRULW\�� RFFXSLHV� WKH� ILUVW� IORRU� RI� WKH� QHZO\� FRQVWUXFWHG� ��������VTXDUH�IRRW� %URRNV� &URVVLQJ� RIILFH�
EXLOGLQJ��ZLOO�PDNH�ZRUNIRUFH�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�67(0�HGXFDWLRQ�VHUYLFHV�UHDGLO\�DFFHVVLEOH�WR�FLWL]HQV��VWXGHQWV�DQG�EXVLQHVVHV��7KH�
IDFLOLW\� LQFOXGHV� D� FROODERUDWLYH� VSDFH� IRU� LQQRYDWLRQ� DQG� QHZ� YHQWXUHV�� VXFK� DV� HQWUHSUHQHXULDO� LQLWLDWLYHV�� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV�
6KLSEXLOGLQJ�LV�WKH�DQFKRU�WHQDQW�RI�WKH�IRXU�VWRU\�RIILFH�EXLOGLQJ��ZLWK�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�����HPSOR\HHV�LQ�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WHFKQRORJ\��
HQJLQHHULQJ� DQG� GHVLJQ�� DQG� LQWHJUDWHG� SODQQLQJ� DQG� SURGXFWLRQ� FRQWURO� GHSDUWPHQWV� QRZ� RFFXS\LQJ� WKH� WRS� WKUHH� IORRUV� RI� WKH�
EXLOGLQJ��

Huntington Ingalls Industries 
�
+XQWLQJWRQ�,QJDOOV�,QGXVWULHV�LV�WKH�6WDWH¶V�ODUJHVW�SULYDWH�HPSOR\HU�ZLWK�QHDUO\��������ZRUNHUV�HPSOR\HG�LQ�WKH�&LW\�DW�LWV�1HZSRUW�
1HZV�6KLSEXLOGLQJ�GLYLVLRQ��6KLS\DUG��DQG�LWV�DIILOLDWHG�FRPSDQLHV��,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�FDSLWDO�LQYHVWPHQW�EHLQJ�PDGH�LQ�LWV�VXEPDULQH�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�IDFLOLWLHV��WKH�6KLS\DUG�FRQWLQXHV�WR�PDNH�PDMRU�LQYHVWPHQWV�LQ�WKH�XSJUDGH�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�LWV�H[LVWLQJ�IDFLOLWLHV�DV�
ZHOO�DV�LWV�KXPDQ�FDSLWDO��W\SLFDOO\�LQ�WHQV�RI�PLOOLRQV�RI�GROODUV�DQQXDOO\��
�
6KLSEXLOGLQJ�DQG�UHSDLU�KDYH�UHPDLQHG�H[FHSWLRQDOO\�VWURQJ�LQ�������+XQWLQJWRQ�,QJDOOV�±�1HZSRUW�1HZV�6KLSEXLOGLQJ�FRQWLQXHV�WR�
EXLOG�WKH�QH[W�JHQHUDWLRQ�RI�)RUG�FODVV�DLUFUDIW�FDUULHUV��DQG�ZLOO�ZRUN�MRLQWO\�ZLWK�&RQQHFWLFXW�EDVHG�(OHFWULF�%RDW�WR�EXLOG�D�QHZ�IOHHW�
RI�&ROXPELD�FODVV�EDOOLVWLF�PLVVLOH�VXEPDULQHV�IRU�WKH�1DY\�WR�UHSODFH�WKH�DJLQJ�2KLR�FODVV�VXEV��7R�VXSSRUW�WKLV�HIIRUW��WKH�6KLS\DUG�
ZLOO�LQYHVW�PRUH�WKDQ������PLOOLRQ�LQ�LWV�IDFLOLW\�DQG�FUHDWH�������QHZ�MREV�E\�WKH�\HDU�������7KH�FRPSDQ\�DQWLFLSDWHV�LWV�ZRUNIRUFH�
ZLOO�UHDFK��������LQ�WKH�QH[W�IHZ�\HDUV��

Liebherr Mining Equipment Company 

/LHEKHUU� 0LQLQJ� (TXLSPHQW� &RPSDQ\�� ORFDWHG� LQ� WKH� &RSHODQG� ,QGXVWULDO� 3DUN�� PDQXIDFWXUHV� WKH� ZRUOG¶V� ODUJHVW� PLQLQJ� WUXFNV��
/LHEKHUU� LV� H[SDQGLQJ� RQFH� DJDLQ� ZLWK� WKH� FRQVWUXFWLRQ� RI� WKUHH� QHZ� EXLOGLQJV� RQ� ��� DFUHV� DGMDFHQW� WR� WKH� FRPSDQ\¶V� FXUUHQW�
PDQXIDFWXULQJ� IDFLOLW\�� 7KHVH� QHZ� IDFLOLWLHV� ZLOO� WRWDO� RYHU� �������� VTXDUH� IHHW� DQG� ZLOO� EH� RFFXSLHG� E\� /LHEKHUU� 86$�� &R��� WKH�
XPEUHOOD� IRU� HLJKW� GLYLVLRQV� SRVLWLRQHG� DFURVV� WKH� 8QLWHG� 6WDWHV�� 7KH� H[SDQVLRQ� LQFOXGHV� VSDFH� IRU� /LHEKHUU� 86$�� &R�¶V� QHZ�
KHDGTXDUWHUV�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�EXLOGLQJ��&RQVWUXFWLRQ�EHJDQ�LQ�-XO\������DQG�LV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�FRPSOHWHG�E\�VXPPHU�������
�
�
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Ferguson Enterprises 

)HUJXVRQ�(QWHUSULVHV��WKH�ODUJHVW�ZKROH�VDOH�SOXPELQJ�GLVWULEXWHU�LQ�WKH�8�6���EHJDQ�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RQ�DQ�HLJKW�VWRU\����������VTXDUH�
IRRW�FDPSXV�LQ�&LW\�&HQWHU�DW�2\VWHU�3RLQW�LQ�-XO\�������7KH�QHZ�IDFLOLW\��H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�FRPSOHWHG�LQ�VXPPHU�������ZLOO�KRXVH�������
)HUJXVRQ�HPSOR\HHV�ZRUNLQJ� LQ�0DUNHWLQJ�DQG�&RPPXQLFDWLRQV��1DWLRQDO�6DOHV�&HQWHU��H%XVLQHVV��+XPDQ�5HVRXUFHV�� ,QIRUPDWLRQ�
7HFKQRORJ\��6HFXULW\��DQG�RWKHU�FRUSRUDWH�IXQFWLRQV��$V�SDUW�RI�WKH�H[SDQVLRQ��)HUJXVRQ�LV�LQYHVWLQJ�QHDUO\�����PLOOLRQ�DQG�FUHDWLQJ�
����QHZ�MREV���
�
City Center at Oyster Point 

$V�RI�������FDSLWDO�LQYHVWPHQW�LQ�&LW\�&HQWHU��D�SXEOLF�SULYDWH�SDUWQHUVKLS��WRWDOV�PRUH�WKDQ������PLOOLRQ��ZLWK�QHDUO\�����IURP�WKH�
SXEOLF� VHFWRU��&LW\�&HQWHU� FXUUHQWO\�RIIHUV� RYHU� ���������� VTXDUH� IHHW� RI�PL[HG�XVH� VSDFH� IRU�RIILFH�� UHWDLO� DQG� HQWHUWDLQPHQW�XVHV��
PRUH�WKDQ�����XQLWV�RI�OX[XU\�UHVLGHQWLDO�GHYHORSPHQW��D�����URRP�IXOO�VHUYLFH�0DUULRWW�KRWHO�DQG�FRQIHUHQFH�FHQWHU��DQG�D�����URRP�
IXOO�VHUYLFH�+ROLGD\� ,QQ�KRWHO�DQG�FRQIHUHQFH�FHQWHU��7KH�PL[HG�XVH�QDWXUH�RI�&LW\�&HQWHU�SURYLGHV� WKRVH� OLYLQJ�DQG�ZRUNLQJ� WKHUH�
ZLWK�D�KRVW�RI�DPHQLWLHV���

Christopher Newport University 

&KULVWRSKHU�1HZSRUW�8QLYHUVLW\��&18��KDV�FRPSOHWHO\�WUDQVIRUPHG�LWV�FDPSXV�DQG�VXUURXQGLQJ�DUHD�ZLWK�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RI�PXOWLSOH�RQ�
DQG�RII�FDPSXV�VWXGHQW�KRXVLQJ�IDFLOLWLHV��D�QHZ� OLEUDU\�� WKH�5REHUW�/��)UHHPDQ�6SRUWV�DQG�&RQYRFDWLRQ�&HQWHU��VWUXFWXUHG�SDUNLQJ�
DQG�WKH�&18�)HUJXVRQ�&HQWHU�IRU�WKH�$UWV��,QYHVWPHQW�LQ�UHFHQWO\�FRPSOHWHG�SURMHFWV�DQG�RWKHUV�LQ�SURJUHVV�LV�DSSUR[LPDWHO\������
PLOOLRQ��$�UHVSHFWHG�OLEHUDO�DUWV�LQVWLWXWLRQ��&18�LV�DWWUDFWLQJ�PRVW�RI�LWV�VWXGHQW�ERG\�IURP�EH\RQG�WKH�+DPSWRQ�5RDGV�UHJLRQ�DQG�
SURYLGLQJ�WDOHQWHG�\RXQJ�JUDGXDWHV�WR�VXSSRUW�WKH�&LW\¶V�H[SDQGLQJ�LQGXVWULHV���
�
6,*1,),&$17�675$7(*,&�35,25,7<�$&&203/,6+0(176�)25�)<������

7KH� &RXQFLO� KDV� LGHQWLILHG� VHYHUDO� EURDG� VWUDWHJLF� SULRULWLHV� WR� JXLGH� WKH� &LW\¶V� RSHUDWLRQV�� +LJKOLJKWV� RI� WKH� VLJQLILFDQW�
DFFRPSOLVKPHQWV�DQG�LQLWLDWLYHV�XQGHUWDNHQ�RU�FRPSOHWHG�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�LQ�VXSSRUW�RI�WKHVH�SULRULWLHV�DUH�OLVWHG�EHORZ��

Efficient Operations and Fiscal Management 
�
7KH�&LW\�FDUHIXOO\�PRQLWRUV�UHYHQXH�DQG�H[SHQGLWXUHV� WR�HQVXUH�D�ILQDQFLDOO\�KHDOWK�RUJDQL]DWLRQ�� �7KH�&LW\�PDLQWDLQV�VWURQJ�FUHGLW�
UDWLQJV�ZLWK� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� UDWLQJV� DJHQFLHV�6WDQGDUG�	�3RRU¶V� �6	3�� DQG�0RRG\¶V�ZLWK� ORQJ�WHUP�FUHGLW� UDWLQJV�RI�$$�� DQG�$D���
UHVSHFWLYHO\�� �7KH�&LW\¶V�:DWHUZRUNV�'HSDUWPHQW� DOVR�PDLQWDLQV� VWURQJ� FUHGLW� UDWLQJV�RI�$$$�ZLWK� 6	3� DQG�$D��ZLWK�0RRG\¶V���
7KHVH�VWURQJ�FUHGLW�UDWLQJV�DOORZ�WKH�&LW\�JDLQ�DFFHVV�WR�FDSLWDO�DW�ORZHU�LQWHUHVW�UDWHV��
�
Community Renewal, Maintenance and Enhancement 

Choice Neighborhoods Initiative  

7KH� &LW\� RI� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV� DQG� WKH� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV�
5HGHYHORSPHQW� DQG� +RXVLQJ� $XWKRULW\� UHFHLYHG� D�
���� PLOOLRQ� JUDQW� IURP� WKH� 8�6�� 'HSDUWPHQW� RI�
+RXVLQJ� DQG� 8UEDQ� 'HYHORSPHQW¶V� �+8'�� &KRLFH�
1HLJKERUKRRGV� ,QLWLDWLYH� �&1,�� SURJUDP�� &1,�
SURYLGHV� FRPSHWLWLYH� JUDQWV� WR� UHEXLOG� ERWK�
GHWHULRUDWHG� SXEOLF� DQG� DVVLVWHG� KRXVLQJ� LQWR�PL[HG�
LQFRPH� FRPPXQLWLHV� E\� EULQJLQJ� WRJHWKHU� ORFDO�
OHDGHUV�� UHVLGHQWV�� DQG� D� YDVW� DUUD\� RI� RWKHU�
VWDNHKROGHUV�� 7KH� ���� PLOOLRQ� JUDQW� LV� OHYHUDJHG� E\�
�������PLOOLRQ� LQ� SULYDWH� LQYHVWPHQWV� DQG� ������� LQ�
SXEOLF� LQYHVWPHQWV�� 7KLV� PRQH\� ZLOO� WUDQVIRUP� WKH�
0DUVKDOO�5LGOH\�DUHD�LQ�WKH�6RXWKHDVW�&RPPXQLW\�E\�

FUHDWLQJ� QHZ� KRXVLQJ� RSWLRQV�� FRPPXQLW\� VHUYLFHV�� UHFUHDWLRQDO� RSSRUWXQLWLHV� DQG� SDUNV�� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV� UHFHLYHG� WKH� PD[LPXP�
DPRXQW�RI�IXQGLQJ�DOORZDEOH�IURP�+8'��8�6��+RXVLQJ�DQG�8UEDQ�'HYHORSPHQW�6HFUHWDU\�%HQ�&DUVRQ�YLVLWHG�1HZSRUW�1HZV�LQ�0D\�
�����WR�DQQRXQFH�WKH�JUDQW�LQ�SHUVRQ��
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&RPPXQLW\�UHQHZDO�HIIRUWV�WKDW�SUHVHUYH�DQG�UHVSHFW�H[LVWLQJ�QHLJKERUKRRGV�ZKLOH�LQYLWLQJ�QHZ�
JURZWK�DUH�DOVR�XQGHUZD\�LQ�WKH�1RUWKHUQ�SDUW�RI�WKH�&LW\���,Q�VXSSRUW�RI�WKLV�JRDO�DQG�IROORZLQJ�

H[WHQVLYH� FRPPXQLW\� LQSXW��&LW\� &RXQFLO� DGRSWHG� WKH�'HQELJK�:DUZLFN�$UHD� 3ODQ� LQ�2FWREHU�
������7KH�SODQ�FUHDWHV�D� ORQJ�WHUP�YLVLRQ�IRU� WKH�DUHD� WKDW�HVWDEOLVKHV�DQ� LGHQWLW\��HQKDQFHV� WKH�
TXDOLW\�RI� OLIH�� VWLPXODWHV� HFRQRPLF� UHYLWDOL]DWLRQ� DQG� LPSURYHV� WKH� FRPPXQLW\¶V� RYHUDOO� KHDOWK�
DQG�VDIHW\��

1HZSRUW� 1HZV� FRQWLQXDOO\� UHLQYHVWV� LQ� DQG� HQKDQFHV� LWV� QHLJKERUKRRGV� DQG� FRPPXQLW\�
UHVRXUFHV�� � ,Q�)<�������DV�SDUW�RI�WKH�&LW\�ZLGH�HIIRUW� WR�SURPRWH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�VXVWDLQDELOLW\��DOWHUQDWLYH�PHDQV�RI� WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ��
DQG�XVH�RI�RXU�QDWXUDO�DQG�FXOWXUDO�DVVHWV��WZR�QHZ�WUDLOV�ZHUH�FRPSOHWHG���7KH�&KHVDSHDNH�$YHQXH�%LNH�7UDLO�SURMHFW��FRPSOHWHG�LQ�
$SULO������DW�D�FRVW�RI�������������FRQYHUWHG�DQ�H[LVWLQJ�FRQFUHWH�URDGZD\�LQWR�D�WZR�ZD\�VWUHHW�ZLWK�SDUNLQJ��D�QHZ�ELF\FOH�SDWK�DQG�
D�VLGHZDON�DORQJ�WKH�&KHVDSHDNH�%D\�LQ�WKH�6RXWKHDVW�FRPPXQLW\��DQG�WKH�0DULQHUV¶�0XVHXP�0XOWLSXUSRVH�7UDLO��FRPSOHWHG�LQ�-XQH�
����� DW� D� FRVW� RI� ������������ DGGHG� D� SHGHVWULDQ� DQG� ELNH� SDWK� ZLWK� D� WLPEHU� EULGJH� DQG� JUDQLWH� VHDWLQJ� DGMDFHQW� WR� :DUZLFN�
%RXOHYDUG�QHDU�WKH�PXVHXP���7KH�SURMHFWV�ZHUH�ILQDQFHG�ZLWK�6WDWH�DQG�&LW\�IXQGV��
�
7KH�&LW\�DOVR�FRPSOHWHG�����VWUHHW�OLJKW�XSGDWHV�LQ�WKH�6RXWKHDVW�DQG�)RUUHVW�'ULYH�DUHDV�RI�WKH�&LW\�DV�SDUW�RI�D�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�&LW\�
ZLGH�SURJUDP�WR�XSGDWH�WKH�&LW\¶V�OLJKWV�WR�QHZHU��EULJKWHU�/('�IL[WXUHV��8SJUDGHG�OLJKWV�HQKDQFH�YLVLELOLW\�DQG�VDIHW\�LQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�
QHLJKERUKRRGV�DQG�ORFDWLRQV�DUH�SULRULWL]HG�LQ�FRRUGLQDWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW��

�
,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�&LW\�FRPSOHWHG�UHSODFHPHQW�RI�WZR�PDMRU�EULGJHV��WKH�+XQWLQJWRQ�$YHQXH�%ULGJH�LQ�$SULO������DQG�WKH�VL[�ODQH������
IRRW�ORQJ�:DUZLFN�%RXOHYDUG�RYHU�/DNH�0DXU\�%ULGJH�LQ�-XO\��������%RWK�SURMHFWV�UHTXLUHG�FRPSOHWH�UHPRYDO�DQG�UHSODFHPHQW�RI�WKH�
H[LVWLQJ�EULGJH�VWUXFWXUHV�DQG�SURYLGHG�UHODWHG�URDGZD\�DQG�XWLOLW\�HQKDQFHPHQWV�� LQFOXGLQJ�DQ�DGGLWLRQDO�WKURXJK�ODQH�RQ�:DUZLFN�
%RXOHYDUG�DQG�VLGHZDON� LPSURYHPHQWV� RQ�+XQWLQJWRQ�$YHQXH��7KH�QHZ�EULGJHV��ZKLFK�FRVW�D�FRPELQHG������������� LQ�6WDWH�DQG�
&LW\�IXQGV��FDUU\�RYHU��������YHKLFOHV�SHU�GD\�DQG�DUH�DQWLFLSDWHG�WR�ODVW����\HDUV����

Environmental Stewardship and Sustainability 

,Q�)<�������HQYLURQPHQWDO�LQLWLDWLYHV�ZHUH�IRFXVHG�RQ�HIIHFWLYH�VWRUP�ZDWHU�PDQDJHPHQW��7R�DGGUHVV�IORRGLQJ�DQG�VDIHW\�FRQFHUQV�LQ�
WKH�DUHD�� WKH�:DUZLFN�DQG�%ODQG�,QWHUVHFWLRQ�,PSURYHPHQWV�SURMHFW�ZDV�FRPSOHWHG� LQ�)HEUXDU\������IRU�D�WRWDO�FRVW�RI������������
ILQDQFHG� E\� WKH� 6WDWH� DQG� &LW\� IXQGV�� 7KH� LQWHUVHFWLRQ�� D� SDUW� RI� WKH� &LW\¶V� KXUULFDQH� HYDFXDWLRQ� URXWH�� ZDV� KLVWRULFDOO\� SURQH� WR�
IORRGLQJ���7R�LPSURYH�GUDLQDJH�LQ�WKH�DUHD��WKH�URDGZD\�ZDV�HOHYDWHG�WKUHH�IHHW�DQG�WKH�VWRUP�ZDWHU�V\VWHP�VHUYLQJ�WKH�LQWHUVHFWLRQ�
ZDV�HQKDQFHG���7KH�SURMHFW�DOVR�LQFOXGHG�QHZ�WUDIILF�VLJQDOV�DQG�GHWHFWLRQ�V\VWHPV�WR�LPSURYH�WUDIILF�IORZ������

7KH�&LW\�DOVR�LQVWDOOHG����IORRG�VHQVRUV�ZLWKLQ�IORRG�SURQH�DUHDV� WR�JLYH�DGYDQFHG�ZDUQLQJV�RI�ULVLQJ�ZDWHUV�DV�SDUW�RI� WKH�UHJLRQDO�
6WRUP�6HQVH�LQLWLDWLYH��7KLV�LV�D�JURXQGEUHDNLQJ�SURMHFW� WKDW�KHOSV�SUHGLFW� ORFDOL]HG�IORRGLQJ�EDVHG�RQ�ULVLQJ�VHD� OHYHOV��7KH�SURMHFW�
XVHV� VHQVRUV��KLVWRULFDO� LQIRUPDWLRQ�� DQG�ELJ�GDWD� DQDO\WLFV� WR� LGHQWLI\� LPSDFWHG� DUHDV�� DOORZLQJ� WKH�&LW\� WR� VHQG� IORRG�ZDUQLQJV� WR�
FLWL]HQV�DQG�EXVLQHVVHV�LQ�WKH�DIIHFWHG�DUHDV��

7KH� &LW\� ZRUNHG� WR� HQJDJH� UHVLGHQWV� LQ� HQYLURQPHQWDO� VWHZDUGVKLS�� 8VLQJ� JUDQWV� DZDUGHG� E\� WKH� 9LUJLQLD� 'HSDUWPHQW� RI�
(QYLURQPHQWDO�4XDOLW\�� WKH�'HSDUWPHQW� RI�3XEOLF�:RUNV�EHJDQ�SURYLGLQJ� OLWWHU� NLWV� DYDLODEOH� IRU� ORDQ� DW� DOO�1HZSRUW�1HZV�3XEOLF�
/LEUDULHV��(DFK�OLWWHU�FOHDQ�XS�NLW�FRQWDLQV�OLWWHU�JUDEEHUV��VDIHW\�YHVW��WUDVK�EDJV��DQG�ODWH[�IUHH�JORYHV�IRU�XS�WR�ILYH�SDUWLFLSDQWV���7KH�

OLWWHU�NLWV�DUH�DYDLODEOH�IRU�D�RQH�ZHHN�FKHFN�RXW�SHULRG�WR�OLEUDU\�FDUGKROGHUV��7KLUW\�VL[�LQGLYLGXDOV�JURXSV�KDYH�WDNHQ�DGYDQWDJH�RI�
WKLV�RSSRUWXQLW\��

Public Safety 

7KH�&LW\�LV�FRPPLWWHG�WR�WDNLQJ�D�SURDFWLYH��FRPPXQLW\�IRFXVHG�DSSURDFK�WR�HQVXUH�UHVLGHQWV�DQG�YLVLWRUV�DUH�VXSSRUWHG�DQG�VDIH���7KH�
3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW�&RPPXQLW\�	�<RXWK�2XWUHDFK�'LYLVLRQ��&<2'��IRFXVHV�RQ�JURZLQJ�FRPPXQLW\�UHODWLRQVKLSV�DQG�LPSURYLQJ�WKH�
GHSDUWPHQW¶V�FRPPXQLW\�SROLFLQJ�LQLWLDWLYHV���$�PDMRU�FRPSRQHQW�RI�WKH�&<2'�LV�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�VXVWDLQPHQW�RI�ZRUNLQJ�DQG�
YLDEOH� 1HLJKERUKRRG�:DWFK� SURJUDPV� LQ� RUGHU� WR� SDUWQHU� ZLWK� HQJDJHG� FLWL]HQV� WR� LPSURYH� QHLJKERUKRRG� VDIHW\�� 7KHUH� ZHUH� ���
1HLJKERUKRRG�:DWFK�*URXSV�GXULQJ�������7KH�&<2'�KRVWHG� WKH�&LWL]HQ¶V�3ROLFH�$FDGHP\�WKURXJKRXW� WKH�\HDU�ZLWK����PHPEHUV�
JUDGXDWLQJ�IURP�WKH�SURJUDP��,Q�WKH�)LUH�'HSDUWPHQW��WKH�&RPPXQLW\�3DUDPHGLFLQH�'LYLVLRQ�SURDFWLYHO\�FRQQHFWV�ZLWK�FLWL]HQV�ZKR�
UHSHDWHGO\� XVH� ���� VHUYLFHV� IRU� QRQ�HPHUJHQFLHV� DQG� SDUWQHUV� ZLWK� FRPPXQLW\� RUJDQL]DWLRQV� WR� FRQQHFW� WKHVH� UHVLGHQWV� ZLWK�
DOWHUQDWLYH�VHUYLFHV�IRU�WKHLU�QHHGV���7KH�'LYLVLRQ�KDV�UHDFKHG�RYHU�����LQGLYLGXDOV�WKLV�\HDU��
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7KH�&LW\� FRQWLQXDOO\� ORRNV� IRU� LQQRYDWLYH� VROXWLRQV� WR�DGGUHVV� VDIHW\�FRQFHUQV�� � ,Q� -XQH������� WKH�3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW� LPSOHPHQWHG�
6KRW6SRWWHU� LQ� WKH�6RXWKHDVW�&RPPXQLW\��6KRW6SRWWHU� XVHV� D�ZLGH�DUHD� QHWZRUN�RI� DFRXVWLF� VHQVRUV� WR�GHWHFW�ZKHQ� D�JXQ� LV� EHLQJ�

ILUHG��7KH�V\VWHP�SUHFLVHO\�DQG�TXLFNO\�SLQSRLQWV�WKH�ORFDWLRQ�RI�JXQILUH�DQG�VHQGV�D�QRWLILFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�LQFLGHQW�WR�113'��,Q�WKH�)LUH�
'HSDUWPHQW�� WKH� 3XOVH� 3RLQW� DSS� LQWHUIDFHV� ZLWK� WKH� &LW\¶V� GLVSDWFK� V\VWHP� DQG� DOHUWV� &35�WUDLQHG� FLWL]HQV� ZKHQ� VRPHRQH� LV�
H[SHULHQFLQJ�VXGGHQ�FDUGLDF�DUUHVW�LQ�D�QHDUE\�SXEOLF�ORFDWLRQ��

Other Community and Citizen Services 

)RU� RXU� PRVW� YXOQHUDEOH� FLWL]HQV�� WKH� &LW\� DGPLQLVWHUV� SXEOLF� ZHOIDUH� EHQHILWV�� LQFOXGLQJ� 6XSSOHPHQWDO� 1XWULWLRQ� $VVLVWDQFH��
7HPSRUDU\�$VVLVWDQFH�IRU�1HHG\�)DPLOLHV��0HGLFDLG��&RPSUHKHQVLYH�6HUYLFHV�$FW��(QHUJ\�DVVLVWDQFH�DQG�&KLOG�&DUH�DVVLVWDQFH���,Q�
)<�������WKH�&LW\�UHDFKHG�RYHU��������LQGLYLGXDOV�WKURXJK�WKHVH�SURJUDPV���,Q�DGGLWLRQ��LQ�'HFHPEHU�������WKH�&LW\�RSHQHG�WKH�)RXU�
2DNV�'D\�6HUYLFH�&HQWHU�� D�RQH�VWRS�DVVLVWDQFH�FHQWHU�IRU�PHQ��ZRPHQ��DQG�IDPLOLHV�H[SHULHQFLQJ�KRPHOHVVQHVV��$�IRUPHU�0DULQH�
&RUSV�WUDLQLQJ�IDFLOLW\�WKDW�KDG�EHHQ�YDFDQW�IRU�\HDUV�ZDV�JLYHQ�QHZ�OLIH�DQG�SXUSRVH�ZKHQ�WKH�1DY\�GRQDWHG�WKH��������VTXDUH�IRRW�
IDFLOLW\� WR� WKH� FLW\�ZLWK� WKH� JXDUDQWHH� WKDW� LW�ZRXOG�EH� XVHG� WR� VHUYH� WKH�KRPHOHVV��$W� WKH�'D\�6HUYLFH�&HQWHU�� D� GLYHUVH� JURXS�RI�
SDUWQHUV�PHHWV�WKH�EDVLF�SHUVRQDO�QHHGV�RI�KRPHOHVV�LQGLYLGXDOV�DQG�IDPLOLHV�ZKLOH�JLYLQJ�WKHP�DFFHVV�WR�KHDOWK��HGXFDWLRQ��DQG�PRVW�
LPSRUWDQWO\��ZRUNIRUFH�GHYHORSPHQW�VHUYLFHV���

7KH� &LW\� DOVR� SURYLGHV� LQQRYDWLYH� OLEUDU\� VHUYLFHV� IRU� LWV� FLWL]HQV�� ,Q� ������ 1HZSRUW� 1HZV� 3XEOLF� /LEUDU\� �113/�� GUDPDWLFDOO\�
LQFUHDVHG�LWV�HIIRUW�WR�FRQQHFW�VPDOO�FKLOGUHQ�ZLWK�OLWHUDF\��%DELHV�DQG�FKLOGUHQ�ZKR�DUH�UHDG�WR�DQG�KDYH�DFFHVV�WR�UHDGLQJ�PDWHULDOV�
HQWHU�NLQGHUJDUWHQ�UHDG\�WR�UHDG�DQG�UHDG\�WR� OHDUQ��113/�KLUHG�DQ�(DUO\�/LWHUDF\�2XWUHDFK�&RRUGLQDWRU�ZKR�HVWDEOLVKHG�D�UHJXODU�
RXWUHDFK� VFKHGXOH� ZLWK� ���� RI� WKH� SUHVFKRROV� LQ� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV�� 7KLV� SDVW� VXPPHU�� 113/� ODXQFKHG� WKH� LQQRYDWLYH� %RRNV� DQG�
%XEEOHV�(DUO\�/LWHUDF\�&HQWHU�DW�D�6RDSV�1¶�6XGV�/DXQGURPDW��SURYLGLQJ�IXQ�OHDUQLQJ�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�WR�NLGV�ZKR�DUH�ERUHG�DQG�UHVWOHVV�
ZKLOH�WKHLU�SDUHQWV�GR�ODXQGU\��

$V� SDUW� RI� RXU� FRPPLWPHQW� WRZDUGV� EULGJLQJ� WKH� GLJLWDO� GLYLGH� LQ� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV�� 113/� DOVR� ODXQFKHG� WKH� FLUFXODWLRQ� RI�:L�)L�
+RWVSRWV�DW� WKH�3HDUO�%DLOH\�/LEUDU\��DFKLHYLQJ������FLUFXODWLRQ� LQ� OHVV� WKDQ�D�PRQWK� DIWHU� ODXQFK��113/�FRQWLQXHV� WR� VHH� VWHDG\�
JURZWK�LQ�LQ�OLEUDU\�:L�)L�XVDJH�DQG�ERDVWHG�D������LQFUHDVH�LQ�GLJLWDO�GRZQORDGV�LQ�������GHPRQVWUDWLQJ�WKDW�SXEOLF�OLEUDULHV�UHPDLQ�
D�FRQQHFWLRQ�SRLQW�IRU�WHFKQRORJ\�WRROV�DQG�GLJLWDO�UHVRXUFHV���

1HZSRUW�1HZV�KRVWV�D�YDULHW\�RI�VSHFLDO�HYHQWV�IRU�FLWL]HQV�DQG�JXHVW�RI�DOO�DJHV�HDFK�\HDU��,Q�'HFHPEHU�������WKH�FLW\�GHEXWHG�D�QHZ�
KROLGD\� HYHQW�� 25 Nights of Northern Lights�� ZKLFK� LQFOXGHG� D� VWDWH�RI�WKH�DUW� OLJKW� VKRZ� DQG� ��¶� WDOO� GLJLWDO� WUHH�� 7KLV� HYHQW�
FRPSOHPHQWHG� WKH� FLW\¶V� DQQXDO�Celebration in Lights�� 9LUJLQLD¶V� ILUVW� GULYH�WKURXJK� KROLGD\� OLJKW� HYHQW� WKDW� LOOXPLQDWHV�1HZSRUW�
1HZV� 3DUN� ZLWK� RYHU� D� PLOOLRQ� LQGLYLGXDO� OLJKWV�� FUHDWLQJ� DQLPDWHG� KROLGD\� DQG� IDQFLIXO� VFHQHV�� ,Q� ������ 1HZSRUW� 1HZV� DOVR�
FHOHEUDWHG�WKH��WK�$QQLYHUVDU\�RI�WKH�One City Marathon��7R�FRPPHPRUDWH�WKLV�PLOHVWRQH�DQG�GXH�WR�RYHUZKHOPLQJ�UHTXHVWV��WKH�&LW\�
DGGHG�D�KDOI�PDUDWKRQ� WR�WKH� OLQH�XS�RI�UDFHV��2YHU�������UXQQHUV�SDUWLFLSDWHG� LQ�DOO� ILYH�UDFHV��2WKHU�HYHQWV� LQFOXGH� WKH��WK�RI�-XO\�
Stars in the Sky, Children’s Festival of Friends, Fall Festival, DQG World Arts Celebration�� ,Q� WRWDO�� RYHU���������SHRSOH�DWWHQGHG�
VSHFLDO�HYHQWV�LQ�1HZSRUW�1HZV�LQ�)<�������

$�$5'6�
�
7KH�*RYHUQPHQW�)LQDQFH�2IILFHUV�$VVRFLDWLRQ��*)2$��RI� WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�DQG�&DQDGD�DZDUGHG�D�&HUWLILFDWH�RI�$FKLHYHPHQW� IRU�
([FHOOHQFH� LQ�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ� WR� WKH�&LW\�RI�1HZSRUW�1HZV�IRU� LWV�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�DQQXDO�ILQDQFLDO� UHSRUW� �&$)5��IRU� WKH�\HDU�
HQGHG�-XQH������������7KLV�ZDV�WKH���WK�FRQVHFXWLYH�\HDU�WKDW�WKH�&LW\�KDV�UHFHLYHG�WKLV�SUHVWLJLRXV�DZDUG���,Q�RUGHU�WR�EH�DZDUGHG�D�
&HUWLILFDWH�RI�$FKLHYHPHQW��D�JRYHUQPHQW�PXVW�SXEOLVK�DQ�HDVLO\�UHDGDEOH�DQG�HIILFLHQWO\�RUJDQL]HG�&$)5���7KLV�UHSRUW�PXVW�VDWLVI\�
ERWK�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�SULQFLSOHV�DQG�DSSOLFDEOH�OHJDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV���$�&HUWLILFDWH�RI�$FKLHYHPHQW�LV�YDOLG�IRU�RQH�\HDU���
:H�EHOLHYH�WKDW�RXU�FXUUHQW�&$)5�FRQWLQXHV�WR�PHHW�WKH�&HUWLILFDWH�RI�$FKLHYHPHQW�3URJUDP¶V�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�ZH�DUH�VXEPLWWLQJ�LW�
WR�WKH�*)2$�WR�GHWHUPLQH�LWV�HOLJLELOLW\�IRU�DQRWKHU�FHUWLILFDWH��
�
,Q� 'HFHPEHU� ������ WKH� 'HSDUWPHQW� RI� 3XEOLF� :RUNV� ZDV� UHDFFUHGLWHG� ZLWK� WKH� SUHVWLJLRXV� $PHULFDQ� 3XEOLF� :RUNV� $VVRFLDWLRQ�
�$3:$�� $FFUHGLWDWLRQ� GHVLJQDWLRQ�� 7KH� $3:$� $FFUHGLWDWLRQ� SURJUDP� UHFRJQL]HV� SXEOLF� ZRUNV� DJHQFLHV� WKDW� JR� EH\RQG� WKH�
UHTXLUHPHQWV� RI� WKH�PDQDJHPHQW� SUDFWLFHV� HVWDEOLVKHG� QDWLRQDOO\� LQ� WKH� SXEOLF� ZRUNV� LQGXVWU\�� DV� FRQWDLQHG� LQ� WKH� $3:$� 3XEOLF�
:RUNV�0DQDJHPHQW�3UDFWLFHV�0DQXDO��$OO�RI�WKH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�3XEOLF�:RUNV�0DQDJHPHQW�3UDFWLFHV�ZHUH�UDWHG�IXOO�FRPSOLDQFH��ZLWK�
WHQ�FKRVHQ�DV�PRGHO�SUDFWLFHV��0RGHO�SUDFWLFHV�DUH�H[DPSOHV�RI�EHVW�PDQDJHPHQW�SUDFWLFHV�WKDW�FDQ�EH�XVHG�DV�D� WHPSODWH�IRU�RWKHU�
DJHQFLHV���
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7KH�1DWLRQDO� ,QVWLWXWH�RI�*RYHUQPHQWDO�3XUFKDVLQJ¶V��1,*3��2XWVWDQGLQJ�$JHQF\�$FFUHGLWDWLRQ�$ZDUG� �2$���ZDV�DZDUGHG� WR� WKH�
&LW\� RI� 1HZSRUW� 1HZV� IURP� ����� WKURXJK� ������� 7KLV� 2$�� DFFUHGLWDWLRQ� IRUPDOO\� UHFRJQL]HV� H[FHOOHQFH� LQ� SXEOLF�SURFXUHPHQW�
WKURXJK�WKH�HVWDEOLVKPHQW�RI�D�ERG\�RI�VWDQGDUGV�WKDW�HYLGHQFH�VRXQG�SURFXUHPHQW�SUDFWLFH���7KH�&LW\�RI�1HZSRUW�1HZV�LV�SDUW�RI�DQ�
HOLWH�JURXS�RI�SURFXUHPHQW�RUJDQL]DWLRQV�DV�RQH�RI�RQO\�����JRYHUQPHQWDO�DJHQFLHV�WKDW�KDYH�DWWDLQHG�WKLV�GLVWLQFWLRQ�QDWLRQZLGH����
�
$&.12�/('*0(176�
�
7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKLV�UHSRUW�FRXOG�QRW�EH�DFFRPSOLVKHG�ZLWKRXW�WKH�GHGLFDWHG�VHUYLFH�RI�WKH�VWDII�RI�WKH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�)LQDQFH���:H�
ZRXOG� OLNH� WR�H[SUHVV�RXU�DSSUHFLDWLRQ� WR�DOO�PHPEHUV�RI� WKH�)LQDQFH�'HSDUWPHQW��SDUWLFXODUO\� WKH�$FFRXQWLQJ� VWDII�� DV�ZHOO� DV� WKH�
RWKHU�&LW\�GHSDUWPHQWV�DQG�DJHQFLHV��HVSHFLDOO\�WKH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�%XGJHW�DQG�(YDOXDWLRQ�DQG�,QWHUQDO�$XGLW�ZKR�FRQWULEXWHG�WR�WKH�
FRPSOHWLRQ� RI� WKLV� UHSRUW�� � :H� DOVR� JUDWHIXOO\� DFNQRZOHGJH� WKH� PHPEHUV� RI� &LW\� &RXQFLO� IRU� WKHLU� OHDGHUVKLS� DQG� JXLGDQFH� LQ�
HVWDEOLVKLQJ�VRXQG�DQG�SURJUHVVLYH�ILQDQFLDO�PDQDJHPHQW�SROLFLHV��
�
�
�
�
�

5HVSHFWIXOO\�VXEPLWWHG��
�
�
�
�
�

���� � � � � � � � �
� &\QWKLD�'��5RKOI�� � � � � � 6XVDQ�0��*RRGZLQ�
� &LW\�0DQDJHU� � � �    'LUHFWRU�RI�)LQDQFH 
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Report�of�Independent�Auditor�
 
 
To the Honorable Members of City Council 
City of Newport News, Virginia 
 
 

Report�on�the�Financial�Statements�
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Newport News, 
Virginia (the �City�), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City�s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 

Management�s�Responsibility�for�the�Financial�Statements�
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 
 

Auditor�s�Responsibility�
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We did not audit the financial statements 
of the Peninsula Airport Commission, which represents $99.6 million of the respective $507.8 million assets, $11.8 million of the 
respective $409.2 million revenues, and $84.0 million of the $(75.1) million net deficit of the aggregate discretely presented 
component units. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors, whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and 
our opinion, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the Peninsula Airport Commission, is based on the report of the other 
auditors.  We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards and specifications require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor�s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity�s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity�s internal control. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 

Opinions�
In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Newport News, 
Virginia, as of June 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other�Matters�
Required�Supplementary�Information��
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management�s discussion and analysis 
and the required supplementary information other than management�s discussion and analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management�s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 
 

Other�Information��
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City�s basic 
financial statements. The Introductory Section, Supplementary Information, and Statistical Section, as listed within the table of 
contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The Supplementary Information and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management and 
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, 
based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of the other auditors, the Supplementary 
Information and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 
 
The Introductory and Statistical Sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them. 
 

Other�Reporting�Required�by�Government�Auditing�Standards�
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 22, 2019, on our consideration 
of the City�s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City�s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City�s internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
 

 
Richmond, Virginia 
November 22, 2019 
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CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following is a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Newport News, Virginia (the City),
as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 (FY 2019).  This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an
introduction to the City’s basic financial statements, which have the following components: (1) management’s discussion and
analysis (MD&A), (2) government-wide financial statements, (3) fund financial statements, and (4) notes to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR FY 2019

 For the fiscal year 2019, the City maintained its strong financial position for both its governmental and business-type funds.

The City’s strong financial management and conservative budgeting practices allow the City to continue its commitment to

the citizens of Newport News.

 At the end of the fiscal year 2019, the total net position of the City on a government-wide basis, excluding component

units, was $610 million. This amount represents an increase of $77.9, or 14.6%, over the prior year. The net position for

governmental activities was $258.1, an increase of $58.7 million over the prior year. The business-type activities net

position was $351.9, an increase of $19.2 million over the prior year.

 Property tax rates remain the same as in the prior year, real estate tax at $1.22 per $100 of assessed valuation and personal

property tax at $4.50 per $100 of assessed valuation.  Real Estate assessed values increased by 3.9% and Personal Property

assessed values increased by 3.1% from prior year.

 At the close of FY 2019, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $66.5 million or 13.7% of FY 2019 total

General Fund revenues and transfers in and an increase of $9.6 million from the prior year. 

 General Fund revenues and transfers increased $16.2 million or 3.4% above FY 2018, primarily due to an increase in

general property tax revenue. Expenditures and transfers out increased $7.5 million, or 1.6% higher than the prior fiscal

year. FY 2019 expenditures and transfers out were 1.9% more than budget, primarily due to accounts receivable written off

as of June 30, 2019.

 During the fiscal year, the City issued $85.8 million of General Obligation General Improvement Bonds to finance the

costs of various capital improvement projects. Prior to the bond sale, the financial rating agency Standard & Poor’s

reaffirmed the City’s long term credit rating of AA+ and Moody’s also reaffirmed the City’s Aa1 rating.

 The City implemented the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB Statement No. 88 (GASB 88),

Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements in FY 2019.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: government-wide financial statements, fund financial
statements, and notes to the financial statements. This report also contains required other supplementary information sections in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

 The first two statements are government-wide financial statements which provide both long and short-term information

about the City’s overall financial status.

 The remaining statements are fund financial statements which focus on individual parts of the City’s government, reporting

the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements.

 Governmental fund statements tell how general government services like public safety were financed in the short term as

well as what amounts remain for future spending.

 Proprietary fund statements offer short- and long-term financial information about the activities the government operates

like businesses, such as the public utilities (Waterworks) system.

 Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial relationships in which the City acts solely as a trustee or

agent for the benefit of others, to whom the resources in question belong.  The Pension fund is an example of a fiduciary

fund of the City.
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CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more
detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that further explains and supports
the information in the financial statements. Figure A shows how the required parts of this Management’s Discussion and
Analysis and the City’s basic financial statements are arranged and relate to one another.

Figure A
Required Components of Newport News' Financial Statements

Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar to those used
by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, which are the government-wide
statements, include all of the government’s assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting. All of the current year’s
revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two government-wide statements report the City’s net position and how it has changed. Net position—the difference
between the City’s assets and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows—is one way to measure the City’s financial
health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position is an indicator of whether its financial
health is improving or deteriorating. Other non-financial factors, such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the
condition of the City’s roads and other infrastructure, also need to be considered to assess the overall health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the City’s activity is shown in three categories:

 Governmental activities – Most of the City’s basic services are included here, such as the police, fire, public works, parks,

internal services and general administration. Taxes, state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

 Business-type activities – The City charges fees to customers to help cover the costs of certain services it provides. The

operation and performance of the City’s public utility, the Waterworks system, is included here.

 Component units – The City includes three other separate legal entities in its report - the Peninsula Airport Commission

(PAC), the Economic and Industrial Development Authorities (E/IDA), and the Newport News Public Schools (Schools).

Although legally separate, these “component units” are included with the City financial statements because for E/IDA and

Schools, the City provides a significant portion of their operating funding, and for PAC, the City appoints four of their six

commission members, thereby exhibiting significant control over the organization.
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CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the City’s most significant funds, not the City as a
whole. Funds are accounting mechanisms that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for
particular purposes. Some funds are required by Virginia law and by bond covenants, while City Council establishes other funds
to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants.

The City has three types of funds:

 Governmental funds – Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1) how cash

and other financial assets can readily be converted to cash flow to support the operations of the City and (2) the balances

remaining at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a detailed

short-term view that helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the

near future to finance the City’s programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus of

the government-wide statements, additional information is provided on a subsequent page that explains the relationship (or

differences) between the government-wide and fund statements.

 Proprietary funds – The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds, enterprise funds and internal service funds.

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial

statements. Enterprise funds include the Public Utility Fund. Internal service funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs

internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for the operation of vehicles

and equipment and includes this activity in its government-wide financial statements. 

 Fiduciary funds – The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for certain donated funds. It is also responsible for other assets that,

because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. The City is responsible for ensuring that the

assets reported in this fund are used for their intended purpose. The fiduciary funds include the Pension and Other

Postemployment Benefits Trust Funds, Agency Funds and the Line of Duty Act Fund. These activities are reported in a

separate statement of fiduciary net position. The City excludes this activity from its government-wide financial statements

because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations.

The Total Governmental Funds' column requires reconciliation because of the different measurement focus from the
government-wide statements (current financial resources versus total economic resources), which is reflected on the page
following each statement. For example, the flow of current financial resources will reflect bond proceeds and interfund transfers
as other financing sources as well as capital expenditures and bond principal payments as expenditures. The reconciliation will
eliminate these transactions and incorporate the capital assets and long-term obligations (bonds and others) into the
Governmental Activities column in the government-wide statements.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the information
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes also present certain required supplementary
information concerning the City’s progress in funding its obligation to provide pension and other postemployment benefits to its
employees.
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CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the condensed net position:

Table 1 - Summary of Net Position (in millions):

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Total Primary
Government

2019 2018 2019 2018* 2019 2018*

Current and other assets $ 293.6 237.9 128.8 121.1 422.4 359.0
Capital assets, net 829.4 771.5 409.6 412.5 1,239.0 1,184.0

Total assets 1,123.0 1,009.4 538.4 533.6 1,661.4 1,543.0

Deferred outflows of resources 49.8 51.2 7.3 7.8 57.1 59.0

Current and other liabilities 116.4 113.9 50.2 51.9 166.6 165.8
Long-term liabilities 770.4 740.1 140.8 156.3 911.2 896.4

Total liabilities 886.8 854.0 191.0 208.2 1,077.8 1,062.2

Deferred inflows of resources 27.9 7.2 2.8 0.5 30.7 7.7

Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 473.7 434.5 332.0 321.6 805.7 756.1
Restricted 34.7 28.0 - - 34.7 28.0
Unrestricted (deficit) (250.3) (263.1) 19.9 11.1 (230.4) (252.0)

Total net position $ 258.1 199.4 351.9 332.7 610.0 532.1

*Prior year balances were reclassed to reflect correct allocation between current and long-term liabilities.

Over time, net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. At the end of the fiscal year, the
City’s total net position was $610 million.  This amount represents an increase of $77.9 million, or 14.6%, over the prior year’s
net position.  The net position for governmental activities increased by $58.7 million and the business-type activities net
position increased by $19.2 million.

By far, the largest portion of the City’s net position is its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment, and
infrastructure) less accumulated depreciation and less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The City uses
these assets to provide services to its citizens and consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  

Approximately 5.7% of the City’s net position is subject to external restrictions, mostly for the use of bond proceeds.
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CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Statement of Activities

The following table shows the revenues and expenses of the governmental and business-type activities:

Table 2 - Changes in Net Position (in millions):

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities

Total Primary
Government

2019 2018 2019 2018* 2019 2018*

Revenues
Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 91.2 87.2 95.3 99.4 186.5 186.6
Operating grants and contributions 30.5 39.1 - - 30.5 39.1
Capital grants and contributions 38.1 30.4 2.4 4.0 40.5 34.4

General revenues:
General property taxes 277.5 265.6 - - 277.5 265.6
Other taxes 107.8 105.5 - - 107.8 105.5
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific

programs 47.2 46.1 - - 47.2 46.1
Investment earnings 6.2 4.3 1.7 1.0 7.9 5.3
Miscellaneous 12.7 14.3 1.4 1.5 14.1 15.8

Total revenues 611.2 592.5 100.8 105.9 712.0 698.4

Expenses
General government 104.5 99.7 - - 104.5 99.7
Judicial administration 8.1 8.0 - - 8.1 8.0
Public safety 126.2 123.7 - - 126.2 123.7
Public works 78.2 76.4 - - 78.2 76.4
Health and welfare 46.2 45.4 - - 46.2 45.4
Education 122.3 132.5 - - 122.3 132.5
Parks, recreation and culture 33.7 33.8 - - 33.7 33.8
Community development 11.7 11.3 - - 11.7 11.3
Public utility - - 72.1 74.3 72.1 74.3
Interest and other fiscal charges 20.9 20.1 - - 20.9 20.1

Total expenses 551.8 550.9 72.1 74.3 623.9 625.2

Excess before special item and transfers 59.4 41.6 28.7 31.6 88.1 73.2
Special item: Loss on extinguishment (10.2) - - - (10.2) -
Transfers 9.5 9.5 (9.5) (9.5) - -

Change in net position 58.7 51.1 19.2 22.1 77.9 73.2
Beginning net position 199.4 148.3 332.7 310.6 532.1 458.9

Ending net position $ 258.1 199.4 351.9 332.7 610.0 532.1

*Prior year balances were reclassed to reflect correct allocation of capital grants and contributions.
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CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenues

The City's total revenues for the Primary Government was $712.0 million, a $13.6 million increase over revenues from the prior
year.

Revenues for Governmental Activities totaled $611.2 million, an increase of $18.7 million over revenues from the prior year.
These revenues consist of program and general revenues. Program revenues are derived from the program itself and reduce the
reliance on the City’s general revenues; these include charges for services, operating and capital grants and contributions.
General revenues are all other revenues and include property and other taxes, and interest earnings. Program revenues totaled
$159.8 million, compared to $156.7 million from the prior year.  The increase is primarily due to increases in revenue related to
Non-Major Special Revenue sources.

General revenues totaled $451.4 million. This represents an increase of $15.6 million over the prior year due to higher property
tax revenue. The largest revenue sources for the City are general property taxes at 45% of total revenue. As mentioned earlier,
there was no change to real or personal property tax rates for FY 2019.

Approximately 63.0% of the City’s revenue from governmental activities comes from some type of tax and 14.9% comes from
fees charged for services. 

Revenues by Source – Governmental Activities June 30, 2019
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CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Expenses

The City's total cost to provide all programs and services for the Primary Government was $623.9 million, a $1.3 million
decrease under expenses from the prior year.

Expenses for Governmental Activities totaled $551.8 million, an increase of $0.9 million from the prior year primarily due to an
accounts receivable of $10.2 million written off during the year. In FY 2019, the City changed how it accounts for debt service
related to school projects and no longer records the transaction as a direct education expense. It is now recorded as a transfer
for School project debt from the General Fund to the Debt Service Fund. Debt service related to school projects was $8.8
million for FY 2018 and $8.1 million for FY 2019. The graph below shows the breakdown of major expenses by function for
the governmental activities. 

Education and Public Safety continue to be among the City’s highest priorities and commitments representing $248.5 million or
45% of total governmental expenses.

Expenses by Source – Governmental Activities June 30, 2019
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CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY'S FUNDS

The City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

General Fund

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the General Fund fund balance
was $96.0 million of which $66.5 million represents an unassigned fund balance. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity,
it is useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  Unassigned fund
balance represents 13.7% of the total fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 20.2%.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund has a fund balance of $1.5 million. Balances in this fund represent reserves for future debt payments.

Bond Fund

The Bond Fund accounts for the proceeds of general obligation bond issues, except those of the Proprietary Funds.  The Bond
Fund fund balance totaled $60.5 million at June 30, 2019, an increase of $39.8 million over the prior year due to new bond
proceeds offset by ongoing construction projects.

Capital Projects Other Federal and State Fund

The Capital Projects Other Federal and State Fund accounts for the federal entitlements used for capital expenditures as well as
various federal and state grants for capital outlay in accordance with the respective grant agreements. The fund balance
remained relatively the same as prior year at $1.8 million.

Proprietary Funds

The City’s proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements,
but in more detail.  The internal service fund (Vehicle Services) is reported with government activities. 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

General Fund (Budget Basis)
Fiscal Year 2019

Original Budget Final Budget
Actual

(Budget Basis)

Revenues:
Taxes $ 379,080,591 379,080,591 384,000,291
Intergovernmental 44,870,482 44,870,482 47,239,111
Other 53,027,692 53,027,692 54,996,424

Total 476,978,765 476,978,765 486,235,826

Expenditures and transfers:
Expenditures 422,337,887 422,337,887 427,299,864
Transfers out 54,640,878 54,640,878 58,770,302

Total 476,978,765 476,978,765 486,070,166

Change in fund balance $ - - 165,660

Actual General Fund revenues and transfers from other funds exceeded budgeted revenues by $9.3 million primarily due to
property taxes trending move favorably than anticipated. Expenditures were over budget by $5.0 million due to the write-off of
accounts receivable. Transfers out were over budget by $4.1 million due to an increase in transfers to capital projects and
special events.
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CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 30, 2019, totaled $1,239.0
million (net of depreciation).  This investment includes land, buildings and improvements, drainage and water/sewer systems,
machinery and equipment, roads, bridges, and construction in progress. 

Construction in progress totaled $139.2 million for governmental activities at the end of FY 2019 including the following
projects: Atkinson Blvd.-Warwick to Jefferson improvement, SCOT Center relocation, Lake Maury bridge replacement and
other various stormwater, wastewater and sanitary sewer projects.

Construction in progress totaled $5.9 million for business-type activities at the end of the fiscal year including the following
projects: Infrastructure improvements, Asset Management Software, field mobility, and Harwood's Mill dam improvement.

City of Newport News’ Capital Assets (net of depreciation):

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Land $ 91,904,435 91,938,576 8,336,904 8,336,904 100,241,339 100,275,480

Construction in progress 139,218,899 81,150,036 5,945,350 5,663,368 145,164,249 86,813,404

Buildings 226,622,732 231,724,797 83,828,306 87,988,008 310,451,038 319,712,805

Water systems - - 292,934,280 292,744,046 292,934,280 292,744,046

Improvements 106,437,940 102,633,983 7,261,963 7,582,432 113,699,903 110,216,415

Machinery and equipment 48,720,547 49,549,985 11,319,019 10,178,324 60,039,566 59,728,309

Infrastructure 216,500,366 214,492,822 - - 216,500,366 214,492,822

$ 829,404,919 771,490,199 409,625,822 412,493,082 1,239,030,741 1,183,983,281

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 to the basic financial statements.

Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total outstanding debt (including literary loans) of $489.8 million, an increase
of 8.7% from last year, as shown in the table below.  Capital leases, landfill liability, accrued vacation, net pension obligations,
other postemployment benefit obligations and claims payable are not included in these figures.

City of Newport News’ Outstanding Debt, General Obligation Bonds, Literary Loans and Revenue Bonds (in millions):

Governmental
Activities

Business-type
Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

General obligation bonds $ 393.1 341.5 39.3 50.0 432.4 391.5
Literary loans 3.4 3.8 - - 3.4 3.8
Revenue bonds - - 54.0 55.2 54.0 55.2

$ 396.5 345.3 93.3 105.2 489.8 450.5

The amount of the debt outstanding related to School Board activities is $62.0 million of the total outstanding general
obligation bonds of the governmental activities. 

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NEWPORT NEWS, VIRGINIA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The unemployment rate in June 2019 for the City was 3.5%, which is a decrease from the average for 2018 of 4.2%, and is
consistent with other areas of the Commonwealth. The City’s annual population decreased from approximately 179,388 at the
end of fiscal year 2018 to 178,626 at the end of fiscal year 2019 according to US Census estimates.

The FY 2020 approved revenue budget for the General Fund increased by 2.2% compared to the FY 2019 adopted budget. The
FY 2020 adopted budget includes allocations for 7,303 positions (including schools), a net increase of 7 positions from the FY
2019 adopted budget.

City management makes the City’s financial strength a top priority through adherence to sound financial policies and
conservative budgeting practices. The Newport News economy continues to improve with growth in real estate assessments.
Strategic focus areas include providing the capital assets required to maintain City assets and operations in an environmentally
friendly way, providing the funding to Schools for improvement in educational opportunities for students, promoting
opportunities for economic development and job creation, and maintaining a motivated and service focused workforce.

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of
the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City’s accountability for the funds it receives. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Director of Finance, 2400
Washington Avenue, Newport News, Virginia 23607.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2019

Primary Government
Discretely presented

component units

Governmental
activities

Business-type
activities Total Public schools Others

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 142,907,648 $ 74,785,763 $ 217,693,411 $ 60,972,839 $ 9,034,950
Restricted cash and investments 69,841,488 23,260,072 93,101,560 - 22,871,867
Accounts receivable, net 30,005,552 11,764,973 41,770,525 448,202 9,129,093
Receivable from Primary Government - - - 4,670,804 -
Receivables from other governments 40,522,010 - 40,522,010 6,468,497 -
Due from Pension Fund 91,129 - 91,129 - -
Due from OPEB Fund 377,040 - 377,040 - -
Inventory, at cost 2,116,361 3,435,768 5,552,129 1,344,321 45,540
Land held for lease or resale - 7,102,444 7,102,444 - 34,694,532
Wetlands credits - 5,530,135 5,530,135 - -
Net pension asset 7,727,971 543,733 8,271,704 1,648,474 261,500
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land 91,904,435 8,336,904 100,241,339 2,263,424 6,604,658
Construction in progress 139,218,899 5,945,350 145,164,249 1,097,191 9,060,370

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings 364,683,060 149,109,499 513,792,559 77,934,806 201,667,374
Improvements 230,350,561 - 230,350,561 81,626,662 19,700,793
Water system - 489,491,534 489,491,534 - -
Airport assets - - - - 181,574,786
Machinery and equipment 181,852,738 44,339,330 226,192,068 69,805,797 6,506,978
Infrastructure 594,833,142 - 594,833,142 - 2,543,500

Total capital assets 1,602,842,835 697,222,617 2,300,065,452 232,727,880 427,658,459

Less accumulated depreciation (773,437,916) (287,596,795) (1,061,034,711) (130,253,729) (180,539,772)

Capital assets, net 829,404,919 409,625,822 1,239,030,741 102,474,151 247,118,687
Restricted assets:

Other assets - 2,391,402 2,391,402 6,374,964 218,670

Total assets 1,122,994,118 538,440,112 1,661,434,230 184,402,252 323,374,839

Deferred outflows of resources
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 39,857,697 4,778,901 44,636,598 38,379,070 228,254
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 164,932 - 164,932 549,880 -
Changes in proportion and difference between employer contributions and proportionate share of

contributions 889,240 56,760 946,000 215,000 -
Changes in assumptions - - - 11,054,047 -
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,517,013 148,817 1,665,830 715,982 45,394
Debt refundings resulting in loss transactions 7,377,830 2,300,166 9,677,996 - 4,271,542

Total deferred outflows of resources 49,806,712 7,284,644 57,091,356 50,913,979 4,545,190

Liabilities
Accounts payable 30,090,597 3,949,420 34,040,017 3,612,898 2,110,307
Accrued liabilities 16,058,473 4,830,687 20,889,160 28,290,213 421,196
Deposits 3,802,837 - 3,802,837 - 29,252
Unearned revenue 446,468 28,669,422 29,115,890 86,475 -
Payable to Newport News Public Schools 4,670,804 - 4,670,804 - -
Long term liabilities:

Due within one year 61,363,606 12,780,144 74,143,750 4,921,804 10,100,921
Due in more than one year 770,368,278 140,775,808 911,144,086 433,266,110 88,448,335

Total liabilities 886,801,063 191,005,481 1,077,806,544 470,177,500 101,110,011

Deferred inflows of resources
Property taxes collected in advance 1,094,634 - 1,094,634 - -
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 16,171,623 2,031,023 18,202,646 9,314,173 68,208
Difference between expected and actual experience 1,166,454 35,490 1,201,944 34,895,231 1,017,541
Changes in assumptions 9,427,317 740,030 10,167,347 6,177,528 1,277,978
Changes in proportionate share - - - 8,031,000 17,000
Deferred contribution to City - AHTIC - - - 4,766,558 -
Deferred revenue - - - - 1,000
Deferred grant proceeds - - - 1,465,237 -

Total deferred inflows of resources 27,860,028 2,806,543 30,666,571 64,649,727 2,381,727

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 473,716,004 332,048,472 805,764,476 85,817,478 158,185,015
Restricted for:

Capital projects 1,801,299 - 1,801,299 105,775 21,299,038
Debt service - - - - 1,654,991
Grants 2,536,452 - 2,536,452 - -
Other governmental purposes 30,434,710 - 30,434,710 16,382,615 -

Unrestricted (deficit) (250,348,726) 19,864,260 (230,484,466) (401,816,864) 43,289,247

Total net position $ 258,139,739 $ 351,912,732 $ 610,052,471 $ (299,510,996) $ 224,428,291

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Activities

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Program revenues Net (expense) revenue and changes in net position

Operating Capital Primary government Other

Expenses
Charges for

services
grants and

contributions
grants and

contributions
Governmental

activities
Business-type

activities Total Public schools
component

units

Primary Government: 
Governmental activities: 

General government $ 104,489,210 $ 14,986,003 $ - $ 38,072,400 $ (51,430,807) $ - $ (51,430,807)
Judicial administration 8,087,466 2,232,799 512,528 - (5,342,139) - (5,342,139)
Public safety 126,206,588 6,379,957 2,271,056 - (117,555,575) - (117,555,575)
Public works 78,239,758 60,027,815 17,616,821 - (595,122) - (595,122)
Health and welfare 46,245,011 299,680 6,313,171 - (39,632,160) - (39,632,160)
Education 122,254,884 - 339,010 - (121,915,874) - (121,915,874)
Parks, recreation and culture 33,704,442 7,271,835 1,180,955 - (25,251,652) - (25,251,652)
Community development 11,669,637 6,582 2,218,865 - (9,444,190) - (9,444,190)
Interest and other fiscal charges 20,959,483 - - - (20,959,483) - (20,959,483)

Total governmental activities 551,856,479 91,204,671 30,452,406 38,072,400 (392,127,002) - (392,127,002)

Business-type activities: 
Public utility 72,132,481 95,343,639 - 2,396,486 - 25,607,644 25,607,644

Total Primary Government $ 623,988,960 $ 186,548,310 $ 30,452,406 $ 40,468,886 (392,127,002) 25,607,644 (366,519,358)

Component units:
Public Schools $ 341,214,134 6,148,701 77,131,195 1,632,915 (256,301,323) -
Peninsula Airport Commission 15,804,724 8,198,264 - 3,121,562 - (4,484,898)
Economic and Industrial Development Authorities 30,213,060 24,713,971 - - - (5,499,089)

Total component units $ 387,231,918 $ 39,060,936 $ 77,131,195 $ 4,754,477 (256,301,323) (9,983,987)

General revenues:
City taxes:

General property taxes $ 277,522,739 - 277,522,739 - -
E-911 service 789,725 - 789,725 - -
Local sales and use 26,197,558 - 26,197,558 - -
Consumers' utility 6,341,872 - 6,341,872 - -
Consumption 696,656 - 696,656 - -
Telecom sales and use 9,982,359 - 9,982,359 - -
Business license 18,015,385 - 18,015,385 - -
Rental car 1,157,389 - 1,157,389 - -
Motor vehicle license 4,286,075 - 4,286,075 - -
Bank stock taxes 1,140,972 - 1,140,972 - -
Recordation and wills 1,389,607 - 1,389,607 - -
Tobacco 4,761,217 - 4,761,217 - -
Hotel and motel room tax 4,634,839 - 4,634,839 - -
Restaurant food tax 27,364,800 - 27,364,800 - -
Tourism zone tax 44,858 - 44,858 - -
Amusement 961,140 - 961,140 - -

Total City taxes 385,287,191 - 385,287,191 - -
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 47,239,111 - 47,239,111 160,439,641 -
Payment from the City - - - 113,885,271 -
Investment earnings 6,240,402 1,684,370 7,924,772 188,822 703,117
Miscellaneous 12,708,310 1,455,102 14,163,412 - 2,842,756
Special item: Loss on extinguishment (10,155,757) - (10,155,757) - -
Extraordinary item: Contribution - Primary Government - - - - 10,155,757

Transfers 9,500,000 (9,500,000) - - -

Total general revenues and transfers 450,819,257 (6,360,528) 444,458,729 274,513,734 13,701,630

Change in net position 58,692,255 19,247,116 77,939,371 18,212,411 3,717,643
Net position beginning of year 199,447,484 332,665,616 532,113,100 (317,723,407) 220,710,648

Net position end of year $ 258,139,739 $ 351,912,732 $ 610,052,471 $ (299,510,996) $ 224,428,291

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

General Fund
Debt Service

Fund Bond Fund

Capital
Projects Other

Federal and
State Fund

Nonmajor
governmental

funds

Total
governmental

funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 94,258,374 1,562,522 - - 39,068,351 134,889,247
Restricted cash - - 68,485,549 1,355,939 - 69,841,488
Accounts receivable, net 24,427,649 - - - 5,577,903 30,005,552
Receivables from other funds 5,376,077 - - - 14,553,732 19,929,809
Receivables from other governments 14,952,973 - - 23,340,680 2,228,357 40,522,010
Due from Pension Fund 91,129 - - - - 91,129
Due from OPEB Fund 377,040 - - - - 377,040
Inventory, at cost 1,177,088 - - - 6,869 1,183,957

Total assets $ 140,660,330 1,562,522 68,485,549 24,696,619 61,435,212 296,840,232

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 19,080,289 31,000 3,216,812 3,498,170 3,533,489 29,359,760
Accrued liabilities 7,582,223 70,500 145,663 338,230 831,309 8,967,925
Deposits 3,802,837 - - - - 3,802,837
Unearned revenues 244,058 - - - 202,410 446,468
Payable to Newport News Public Schools - - 4,670,804 - - 4,670,804
Payable to major governmental funds - - - 4,505,188 870,889 5,376,077
Payable to other funds - - - 14,553,732 - 14,553,732

Total liabilities 30,709,407 101,500 8,033,279 22,895,320 5,438,097 67,177,603

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue-property taxes 12,844,243 - - - - 12,844,243
Property taxes collected in advance 1,094,634 - - - - 1,094,634
Unavailable revenue-stormwater fees - - - - 589,327 589,327

Total deferred inflows of resources 13,938,877 - - - 589,327 14,528,204

Fund balances
Nonspendable 1,177,088 - - - 6,869 1,183,957
Restricted 596,452 - 60,452,270 1,801,299 32,374,710 95,224,731
Committed - 1,407,324 - - 23,246,845 24,654,169
Assigned 27,739,746 53,698 - - - 27,793,444
Unassigned 66,498,760 - - - (220,636) 66,278,124

Total fund balances 96,012,046 1,461,022 60,452,270 1,801,299 55,407,788 215,134,425

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances $ 140,660,330 1,562,522 68,485,549 24,696,619 61,435,212 296,840,232

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2019

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 215,134,425
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are

different because:
Net pension assets are not current financial resources and, therefore, are unavailable in

the funds. 7,727,971
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,

are not reported in the funds:
Governmental capital assets 1,525,052,184
Less accumulated depreciation (726,854,633)

798,197,551
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and,

therefore, are unavailable in the funds. 13,433,570
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities

to individual funds.
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities

to individual funds. 39,039,118
Adjustment to add back accrued vacation included below 276,167

39,315,285
Deferred charge on refunding are reported as deferred outflows of resources in the

government-wide financial statements, but are not reported in the governmental fund
statements. 7,377,830

Unmatured interest payable reported in governmental activities will not be paid with
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (6,978,497)

Long-term liabilities, including  bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:
General obligation bonds, net (428,193,008)
Literary fund bonds (3,359,286)
Landfill liability (3,194,000)
Accrued vacation (19,206,338)
Workers' compensation and other claims (12,551,430)
Net pension liability (279,119,817)
Net OPEB obligations (77,013,424)
Net line of duty obligations (5,723,581)
Incurred but not reported claims (3,371,000)

(831,731,884)
Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pension plans and OPEB are not

due and payable in the current period and therefore, not reported in the governmental
funds:
Deferred inflows - difference between expected and actual experience related to

pension and OPEB (1,166,454)
Deferred inflows - difference between projected and actual earnings on plan

investments (16,171,623)
Deferred inflows - changes in assumptions related to pension and OPEB (9,427,317)
Deferred outflows - employer contributions made subsequent to the measurement

date 39,857,697
Deferred outflows - difference between expected and actual experience 1,517,013
Deferred outflows - difference between projected and actual earnings on plan

investments 164,932
Deferred outflows - changes in proportion and difference between employer

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 889,240 15,663,488

Net position of governmental activities $ 258,139,739

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019

General Fund
Debt Service

Fund Bond Fund

Capital
Projects Other

Federal and
State Fund

Nonmajor
governmental

funds

Total
governmental

funds

Revenues:
General property taxes $ 276,235,839 - - - - 276,235,839
Other local taxes 107,764,452 - - - - 107,764,452
Licenses and permits 4,019,230 - - - - 4,019,230
Fines and forfeitures 1,834,016 - - - - 1,834,016
Intergovernmental 47,239,111 339,010 - 34,267,883 30,113,396 111,959,400
Charges for services 22,348,075 - - - 60,281,978 82,630,053
Interest and rent 5,438,727 - - 27,808 641,089 6,107,624
Recovered costs 6,734,502 - - - 6,100 6,740,602
Miscellaneous 5,121,874 34,273 - - 546,542 5,702,689

Total revenues 476,735,826 373,283 - 34,295,691 91,589,105 602,993,905

Expenditures:
Current operating:

General government 93,821,045 - - - 130,099 93,951,144
Judicial administration 7,095,257 - - - 492,595 7,587,852
Public safety 120,663,272 - - - 1,870,632 122,533,904
Public works 8,125,862 - - - 59,342,542 67,468,404
Health and welfare 38,038,877 - - - 8,558,083 46,596,960
Education 110,889,307 - 3,293,717 - 2,000,000 116,183,024
Parks, recreation, and culture 27,239,714 - - - 3,154,459 30,394,173
Community development 8,106,151 - - - 2,543,990 10,650,141

Debt service:
Principal - 34,662,513 - - - 34,662,513
Interest and other charges - 19,518,717 527,085 - - 20,045,802

Capital outlay - - 49,871,594 34,297,000 11,114,993 95,283,587

Total expenditures 413,979,485 54,181,230 53,692,396 34,297,000 89,207,393 645,357,504

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 62,756,341 (53,807,947) (53,692,396) (1,309) 2,381,712 (42,363,599)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 9,500,000 52,991,673 - - 18,507,404 80,999,077
Transfers out (60,770,302) - - - (10,728,775) (71,499,077)
Premium on bonds - - 7,656,996 - - 7,656,996
Bond and note issuance of debt - - 85,795,000 - - 85,795,000

Total other financing sources
(uses), net (51,270,302) 52,991,673 93,451,996 - 7,778,629 102,951,996

Special item: 
Loss on extinguishment (10,155,757) - - - - (10,155,757)

Net changes in fund balances 1,330,282 (816,274) 39,759,600 (1,309) 10,160,341 50,432,640

Fund balances at June 30, 2018 94,681,764 2,277,296 20,692,670 1,802,608 45,247,447 164,701,785

Fund balances at June 30, 2019 $ 96,012,046 1,461,022 60,452,270 1,801,299 55,407,788 215,134,425

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2019

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 50,432,640
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report
depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets. The Statement of
Activities also includes expenses that relate to assets acquired that do not meet the capitalization
threshold of the City:
Capital outlay expenditures 95,283,587
Plus: Capital outlay expenditures not included in capital outlays, net of disposals 3,097,515
Less: Non-capitalized asset (12,257,676)
Depreciation expense (29,217,105)

56,906,321
Newport News Public Schools, a component unit of the City, allows the City to record its construction

in progress and certain capital assets on the City's financial statements for any projects using bond
funds as a funding source.  The City also records depreciation expense on these assets.  These assets
will revert back to the Schools when the debt is paid in full.  These assets are not reported in the
governmental funds.  (1,346,917)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported
as revenues in the funds.  Unavailable revenues increased by this amount in the current year. 1,286,900

Change in pension asset valuation.  These assets are not reported in the governmental funds. 369,455
Investment gains and changes in assumptions are recognized resulting from deferred inflows or outflows

in the Statement of Activities, but are not reported as gains or losses in the funds. (20,597,237)
Experience loss and change in proportion are recognized resulting from deferred inflows or outflows in

the Statement of Activities, but are not reported as gains or losses in the funds. 867,864
Change in annual employer contributions to the pension funds.  These activities are reported as deferred

outflows in the Statement of Activities, but are not reported in the funds. (279,215)
Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases

long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net
Position:
Principal repayments 34,662,513
Debt issued (85,795,000)
Premium on issuance of long-term debt amortization (2,994,377)
Amortization of refunding losses (2,023,009)

(56,149,873)
Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. These activities
consist of changes in:
Accrued interest (913,680)
Capital leases payable 98,801
Landfill liability 318,000
Accrued vacation (448,497)
Net pension obligation 16,716,017
Net OPEB obligation 6,932,757
Net line of duty obligation 1,484,895
Workers' compensation and other claims (506,980)
Incurred but not reported liabilities (153,000)

23,528,313
Some capital additions were financed through capital leases in a prior year. In governmental funds, a

capital lease arrangement is considered a source of financing, but in the Statement of Net Position, the
lease obligation is reported as a liability.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain services to individual
funds.  The net income of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities (excludes
change in compensated absences and capital leases). 3,674,004

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 58,692,255

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2019

Major Fund -
Public Utility

Internal Service
Fund

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 74,785,763 8,018,401
Restricted cash 23,260,072 -
Accounts receivable, net 11,764,973 -
Inventory 3,435,768 932,404
Prepaid bond principal 2,391,402 -

Total current assets 115,637,978 8,950,805

Noncurrent assets:
Land held for resale 7,102,444 -
Wetlands credit 5,530,135 -
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable capital assets:
Land 8,336,904 20,257
Construction in progress 5,945,350 1,278,230

Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings 149,109,499 3,469,775
Improvements - 1,128,639
Water system 489,491,534 -
Machinery and equipment 44,339,330 71,893,750

Total capital assets 697,222,617 77,790,651
Less accumulated depreciation (287,596,795) (46,583,283)

Capital assets, net 409,625,822 31,207,368
Net pension asset 543,733 -

Total noncurrent assets 422,802,134 31,207,368

Total assets 538,440,112 40,158,173

Deferred outflows of resources
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 4,778,901 -
Difference between expected and actual experience 148,817 -
Difference in proportion and difference between employer contributions and proportionate share of

contributions 56,760 -
Debt refundings resulting in loss transactions 2,300,166 -

Total deferred outflows 7,284,644 -

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 3,949,420 730,837
Accrued liabilities 4,830,687 388,218
Unearned revenues 28,669,422 -
General obligation bonds payable, net 9,597,237 -
Revenue bonds payable, net 3,182,907 -

Total current liabilities 50,229,673 1,119,055

Noncurrent liabilities:
Deposits 4,994,616 -
General obligation bonds payable, net 32,015,084 -
Revenue bonds payable, net 58,342,359 -
Net pension liability 35,098,570 -
Net OPEB liability 10,325,179 -

Total noncurrent liabilities 140,775,808 -

Total liabilities 191,005,481 1,119,055

Deferred inflows of resources
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments 2,031,023 -
Difference between expected and actual experience 35,490 -
Changes in assumptions 740,030 -

Total deferred inflows 2,806,543 -

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 332,048,472 31,207,368
Unrestricted 19,864,260 7,831,750

Total net position $ 351,912,732 39,039,118

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019

Major Fund - 
Public Utility

Internal Service
Fund

Operating Revenues: 
Water sales $ 58,676,747 -
Charges for services 27,412,189 13,802,818
Miscellaneous 9,254,703 96,753

Total operating revenues 95,343,639 13,899,571

Operating expenses: 
Personal services 24,969,573 3,399,667
Contractual services 11,998,870 119,429
Internal services 1,254,395 160,832
Materials and supplies 12,170,124 5,106,287
Depreciation 14,007,658 5,625,017
Other 2,561,972 -

Total operating expenses 66,962,592 14,411,232

Operating income (loss) 28,381,047 (511,661)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest revenue 1,684,370 132,778
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets (549,513) 346,781
Amortization on bond premium 1,455,102 -
Gain (loss) on long-term debt (332,781) -
Interest expense (4,287,595) -

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net (2,030,417) 479,559

Income before capital contributions and transfers out 26,350,630 (32,102)

Capital contributions for capital assets 2,396,486 3,804,517
Transfers out (9,500,000) -

Change in net position 19,247,116 3,772,415

Net position at June 30, 2018 332,665,616 35,266,703

Net position at June 30, 2019 $ 351,912,732 39,039,118

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019

Major Fund -
Public Utility

Internal Service
Funds

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $ 98,268,743 $ 13,899,571
Payments to suppliers (25,293,367) (5,129,144)
Payments to employees (25,621,601) (3,399,667)
Other payments (2,561,946) -

Net cash provided by operating activities 44,791,829 5,370,760

Cash flows used in noncapital financing activities:
Transfers to other funds (9,500,000) -

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (9,500,000) -

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets (11,904,641) (8,173,404)
Contributed capital 2,396,486 3,804,517
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 214,730 539,852
Repayment and retirement of long-term debt, net (13,164,099) -
Bond issuance cost (1,500) -
Interest paid (4,286,095) -

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (26,745,119) (3,829,035)

Cash flows provided by investing activities
Interest received 1,684,370 132,778

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,684,370 132,778

Increase in cash and restricted cash 10,231,080 1,674,503
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at beginning of year 87,814,755 6,343,898

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at end of year 98,045,835 8,018,401

Reported as:
Cash and cash equivalents 74,785,763 8,018,401
Restricted cash 23,260,072 -

Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 98,045,835 8,018,401

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) 28,381,047 (511,661)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 14,007,658 5,625,017
Change in:

Accounts receivable 3,864,739 -
Inventories (128,074) (133,212)
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and leases payable (6,740) 390,616
Unearned revenues (939,633) -
Deposits 325,714 -
Net pension asset (23,582) -
Net pension liability (2,083,523) -
Net OPEB liability (1,004,123) -
Deferred outflows of resources 86,967 -
Deferred inflows of resources 2,311,379 -

Total adjustments 16,410,782 5,882,421

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 44,791,829 $ 5,370,760

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

21



City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2019

Pension, Other
Postemployment
Benefits, & Line

of Duty Act
Fund Agency Funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,014,719 8,156,169
Cash and cash equivalents with trustee 11,418,542 -
Investments, at fair value::

Debt securities 147,787,229 -
Equity investments 662,540,399 -
Private equities 45,305,240 -
Real estate and timber 120,771,284 -

Accounts receivable - 2,763,320
Due from other components 73,357 -
Sales receivable 998,736 -
Claims Fluctuation Reserve (Anthem) 1,827,864 -
Other assets 15,686 -

Total assets $ 999,753,056 10,919,489

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 2,008,513 1,958,518
Due to other governments - 5,488,682
Due to other agencies - 3,472,289
Due to City 468,169 -
Purchases payable 2,302,235 -

Total liabilities 4,778,917 10,919,489

Net Position
Assets held in trust:

Restricted for pension and OPEB benefits 992,351,661
Restricted 2,622,478

Total net position $ 994,974,139

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds - Employees' Retirement Trusts for Pension & Other Postemployment Benefits
Year ended June 30, 2019

Pension, Other
Postemployment
Benefits, & Line

of Duty Act
Fund

Additions:
Employer contributions:

City General Fund $ 36,247,041
Waterworks Fund 4,548,434
School Operating Fund 8,598,267

Employee contributions:
City General Fund 4,191,223
Waterworks Fund 547,053
School Operating Fund 602,601

Other contributions:
Income from leave exchange 128,152
Employee buy-back 61,767

Total contributions 54,924,538

Investment income:
Net appreciation (depreciation) - bonds 2,245,340
Net appreciation (depreciation) - stocks 21,626,248
Interest 4,077,050
Dividends 6,352,601
Real estate operating income 7,209,718
Commission recapture 29,642
Other investment income 15,075

Total investment income 41,555,674
Less investment expenses (3,052,036)

Net investment gain 38,503,638

Total additions 93,428,176

Deductions:
Benefits paid to participants 91,472,493
Refunds of member contributions 70,306
Administrative expenses 1,031,400
Other expenses 72,497

Total deductions 92,646,696

Change in net position 781,480

Net position held in trust for retirement benefits at June 30, 2018 994,192,659

Net position held in trust for retirement benefits at June 30, 2019 $ 994,974,139

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) The Reporting Entity

The City of Newport News, Virginia (City or Primary Government) was established by act of the Virginia General
Assembly in 1958.  It is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia operating under the council-manager
form of government. City Council consists of a mayor and six other council members. The City is not part of a county
and has taxing powers subject to Commonwealth wide restrictions and tax limits. The City provides a full range of
municipal services including police and fire, sanitation, health and social services, public improvements, planning and
zoning, general administrative services, education, sewer, and a water system administered by the Newport News
Department of Public Utilities.

The City’s reporting entity, as defined by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP), consists of the Primary Government as well as its component units, which are legally separate organizations for
which the elected officials of the Primary Government are financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as
appointment of a voting majority of the component unit’s board, and either (a) the ability to impose will by the Primary
Government, or (b) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit or impose a financial burden
on the Primary Government.

The accompanying financial statements present the City and its component units. The financial data of the component
units are included in the City’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial relationships
with the City.

Blended component units. The Public Utility Fund serves all the citizens of the City and is governed by a board
comprised of the City’s elected council. Both the rates for user charges and bond issuance authorizations are approved
by the City Council and the legal liability for the general obligation portion of the debt resides with the City. This fund is
reported as an enterprise fund.

Discretely presented component units. Three of the City’s component units are discretely presented. Discretely
presented component units are entities that are legally separate from the City, but for which the City is financially
accountable, or whose relationships with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to
be incomplete.  These component units are segregated from the Primary Government to emphasize that they are legally
separate from the City.  All of the component units have a fiscal year end of June 30.

Major discretely presented component unit

 The Newport News Public Schools (Schools or School Board) are responsible for elementary and secondary

education within the City.  The School Board is elected by the voters of Newport News and operates the four early

childhood centers, twenty-four elementary, seven middle, five high schools and one middle-high school combination

in the City. The School Board may not issue debt. City Council makes an annual appropriation to the School Board,

but is prohibited from exercising any control over specific expenditures of School Board operating funds.  Transfers

within the School Operating Fund are under the control of the School Board at the categorical level. Expenditures

are controlled in the School Cafeteria and School Grants Funds through use of budgets approved by the School

Board. Separate audited financial statements are available from the Newport News Public Schools at 12465 Warwick

Boulevard, Newport News, Virginia 23606.

Nonmajor discretely presented component units

 The Economic and Industrial Development Authorities (E/IDA or the Authorities) are two legally separate entities

included in the City’s financial statements due to financial/legal inter-dependency with the City.  The E/IDA

acquires, maintains and develops land for sale or lease, promotes both economic and industrial development and

growth in the City, and includes the Parking Authority. The City Council approves the E/IDA’s budget.  Separate

audited financial statements are available from E/IDA, at Department of Development, 2400 Washington Avenue,

Newport News, Virginia 23607.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

 The Peninsula Airport Commission (PAC) is a legally separate entity included in the City’s financial statements.

The PAC operates the Newport News/Williamsburg International Airport. The City appoints four of PAC’s six

commission members, thus holding a voting majority of the board. The City has a financial benefit/burden

relationship with the PAC as described within GAAP. The PAC’s governing body is not substantially the same as the

City, nor does the PAC exclusively serve the City, or have its total debt outstanding repaid by the City. Separate

audited financial statements are available from PAC at 900 Bland Boulevard, Newport News, Virginia 23602.

(b) Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Primary
Government and its component units.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on
fees and charges for services. Likewise, the Primary Government is reported separately from certain legally separate
component units for which the Primary Government is financially accountable.  

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or activity is offset
by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function.  Included in direct
expenses are certain indirect costs that have been allocated to the various programs.  Program revenues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by
a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported as general
revenues.

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and the fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

(c) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Real estate and property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are susceptible to accrual (i.e., both
measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period
or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period, usually 45 days after year-end.  Expenditures are
generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fund liability is incurred.
Exceptions to this rule include: (1) landfill liability, accrued vacation, other postemployment benefits, worker’s
compensation and other claims, and incurred but not reported medical claims (IBNR), which are recognized when paid
and (2) principal and interest payments on general long term debt, both of which are recognized when due.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual requirements of
the numerous individual programs are used as guidance.  There are, however, essentially two types of these revenues.  In
one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore,
revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded.  In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to
purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements.
These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or earlier if the accrual criteria are met.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

In the fund financial statements, real and personal property taxes are recorded as revenues and receivables when levied
and billed, net of allowances for uncollectible amounts.  Property tax receivables not collected within 45 days after year-
end are reflected as unavailable revenues.  Sales and utility taxes, which are collected by the Commonwealth of Virginia
or utility companies by year-end and subsequently remitted to the City, are recognized as revenues and receivables upon
collection by the Commonwealth of Virginia or utility company, which is generally in the month preceding receipt by
the City.

Licenses and permits, fines and forfeitures, charges for services and miscellaneous revenues (except interest on
temporary investments) are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally not measurable until
actually received.

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It is used to account for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for the payment of principal, interest, and related
costs on long-term debt of governmental funds.  

The Bond Fund is a capital projects fund used to account for the proceeds of all general obligation bond issues
except those of the Proprietary Funds. Proceeds are used for various capital outlays in accordance with the respective
bond ordinances.

The Capital Projects Other Federal and State Fund accounts for the federal entitlements used for capital
expenditures as well as various federal and state grants for capital outlay in accordance with the respective grant
agreements.

The City reports the following major proprietary fund:

The Public Utility Fund accounts for the water utility that provides water service to the City and various surrounding
localities. Operation of the proprietary fund is designed to be self-supporting through user charges.  This fund
services its own debt and construction projects and records the acquisition of its depreciable assets and land.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund accounts for the financing of vehicle and equipment services provided to other departments or
agencies of the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

Pension Trust Employees’ Retirement Fund accounts for all contributions and investments accumulated for
employees’ retirement.  Also, the fund pays for all related expenses incurred as well as retiree benefits.  

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Fund accounts for all contributions and investments accumulated for
employees’ medical benefits and life insurance coverage at retirement. The fund pays for all related expenses
incurred as well as health, dental and life insurance benefits.

Line of Duty Act Fund accounts for all contributions and investments accumulated for hazardous duty personnel,
including volunteers and paid full time and part time employees who fall under the guidelines of eligible personnel
under the Line of Duty Act. The fund provides benefits to eligible family members of eligible employees and
volunteers killed or disabled in the line of duty.

The Agency Funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent or custodian for the
individuals, private organizations, and other funds. Agency funds are custodial in nature so do not involve any
measurement of results of operations.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Nonmajor governmental funds

Special Revenue Funds account for revenues and expenditures related to programs that are restricted in nature for
specific purposes. Examples include the Stormwater Fund, the Solid Waste Fund, the Wastewater Fund, activities of
the Community Development Block Grant Program, individual grant programs, community services programs for
mental health and substance abuse, and economic aid to certain qualifying citizens under several different programs.

Capital Projects Fund, excluding the Bond Fund and Capital Projects Other Federal and State Fund, accounts for
capital expenditures.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the City’s public utility
function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the City’s proprietary funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. The Public Utilities’ Enterprise Fund also recognizes certain rental fees
as operating revenue.  Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
non-operating revenues and expenses.  

In all funds, when both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for a particular use and have not been
earmarked for other purposes, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources first for any allowable costs.  After
restricted resources have been depleted, unrestricted resources are used as they are needed unless the City determines
otherwise. 

Since the governmental funds' financial statements are presented on a different measurement focus and basis of
accounting than the governmental-wide financial statements, a summary reconciliation of the difference between
total fund balances as reflected on the Governmental Funds’ Balance Sheet and total net position for governmental
activities as shown on the government-wide Statement of Net Position is presented in a schedule accompanying the
Governmental Funds’ Balance Sheet. In addition, a summary reconciliation of the differences between net change in
total fund balances as reflected on the Governmental Funds’ Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
Fund Balances and the change in net position for governmental activities as shown on the government-wide
Statement of Activities, is presented in a schedule accompanying Governmental Funds’ Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. 

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

The City utilizes the pooled cash investment method, except for the PAC.  Income from the investment of pooled cash is
allocated to the various funds, based on the percentage of cash and cash equivalents of each fund to the total pooled cash
and cash equivalents.  In addition, the City has restricted deposits held by trustees for future retirements of bonds at the
appropriate call date, retirements of certain certificates of participation at maturity and construction projects.

Investments are stated at fair value, except for cash equivalents where cost approximates fair value.  Retirement plan
investments are reported at fair value.  Retirement plan short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates
fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current
exchange rates. The fair value of real estate investments is based on independent appraisals. All other investments are
valued based on amounts provided by the investment advisor or fund administrator.

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months
or less from the date of purchase are considered to be cash equivalents.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

(e) Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other funds” in the fund statements.  Any
residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and business-type activities would be reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

In the fund statements, long-term interfund advances and advances to component units are recorded as a receivable with
a corresponding nonspendable fund balance by the advancing fund.

Provisions for uncollectible water, sewer, stormwater and emergency medical bills are based upon a historical analysis
of uncollected accounts and are applied as a percentage of delinquent/terminated accounts in the year-end accounts
receivable balance. Provision for uncollectible property taxes is based upon a historical percentage of accounts written
off applied to the total levies of all years carried in taxes receivable.

The two major sources of property taxes are described below as reported in the fund financial statements:

Real Estate – Each year as of July 1, the City levies real estate taxes on all real estate within its boundaries, except
that exempted by statute.  Real estate taxes are levied on the estimated market value of the property and become a
lien on real property the first day of the levy year.  The City follows the practice of reassessing all property annually.
Real estate taxes are collected in semi-annual payments due December 5 and June 5.  During the fiscal year, the
current year real estate taxes reported as revenue are the levies on assessed valuation on July 1, less an allowance for
uncollectible amounts and taxes not collected within 45 days after year-end.  The tax rate for 2019 was $1.22 per
$100 of assessed value.

Personal Property – The City levies personal property taxes on motor vehicles and tangible personal business
property.  These levies are made each year as of January 1 with payment due the following December 5 and June 5.
The current year personal property taxes reported as revenue are the levies on assessed valuation at January 1, less an
allowance for uncollectible amounts and taxes not collected within 45 days after year-end. The 2019 tax rates per
$100 of assessed value were:

Mobile homes $ 1.22
Trawlers $ 0.90
Pleasure boats $ 1.00
Machinery & tools $ 3.75
Motor vehicles $ 4.50

Unearned revenues represent amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue
recognition criteria have not been met. Unearned revenues consist of amounts prepaid and not yet earned, such as
prepaid sewer assessments and prepayments for instructional classes. 

Unavailable revenues in the governmental fund types consist of revenues that are measurable but not available for use
during the current period. Property taxes receivable at June 30, but not collected within 45 days after that date are
reported as unavailable revenues in the financial statements. 
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City of Newport News, Virginia
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June 30, 2019

(f) Allowances for Uncollectibles

The City calculates allowances for uncollectibles using historical collection data, specific account analysis and
management’s judgment.  The allowance at June 30, 2019, is composed of the following: 

General Fund - allowance for uncollectibles
Taxes receivable:

Real estate $ 2,073,628
Personal property 3,783,830

Total taxes $ 5,857,458

Nonmajor Governmental -
Special Revenue Funds - accounts receivable $ 2,307,649

Public Utility Fund - accounts receivable $ 2,138,630

(g) Inventories

Inventories, which consist of materials and supplies held for future consumption, are stated at cost using the first-in,
first-out and average cost methods. The cost of inventory is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory
items are consumed (consumption method).

(h) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and
similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental’s or business-type’s activities column in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of $5,000 or
more and an initial useful life of more than 1 year. Assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if
purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are
not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized
value of the assets constructed.  There was no capitalized interest during fiscal year 2019.

Under Virginia law, certain property maintained by the School Board is subject to a “tenancy-in-common” with the City
if the City incurred a financial obligation for the property payable over more than one fiscal year.  The School Board and
the City have agreed that such property will be carried on the City’s financial statements until the outstanding debt is
repaid.  After repayment, the asset is transferred to the School Board. At June 30, 2019, the City holds capital assets
related to school property with a net book value of approximately $137,542,000.

Capital assets of the Primary Government, as well as the component units, are depreciated using the straight line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40 - 60 years
Building improvements 25 - 30 years
Infrastructure (including water system) 15 - 100 years
Machinery and equipment 4 - 20 years

(i) Land Held for Resale

Land held for resale by the E/IDA is stated at acquisition cost plus improvements and capitalized interest, if applicable,
but not in excess of net realizable value. Capitalized costs of projects are assigned to individual components of the
projects based on specific identification. If specific identification is not practicable, capitalized interest costs are
allocated to each parcel benefited, based on relative fair value before construction. As land is sold, all costs associated
with that land are charged to cost of land sold.
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(j) Compensated Absences

City employees are granted vacation and sick pay in varying amounts as services are provided. They may accumulate,
subject to certain limitations, unused vacation leave, and upon retirement, termination or death, may be compensated for
their unused vacation at their then current rates of pay. The costs of accumulated vacation are accrued as a liability in the
accrued based financial statements as the benefits are earned by the employees if attributable to services already
rendered and compensation through time off or some other means is probable. Sick leave expense is recorded by the
City when the employee is paid. Upon termination, City employees are not paid for accumulated sick leave.  For
members of the Newport News Employees’ Retirement Fund, the unused sick leave is added to the employee’s years of
credited service for the purpose of computing pension benefits. These liabilities are accounted for in the government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if
they have matured as a result of employee resignations and retirements. For members of the Virginia Retirement System,
the unused sick leave is forfeited at termination.

School Board employees are granted vacation and sick pay in varying amounts as services are provided. They may
accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation leave, and upon retirement, termination or death, may be
compensated for certain amounts at their then current rate of pay. Upon termination, School Board employees are not
paid for accumulated sick leave. Upon retirement, sick leave may be taken in cash at $30 per day depending upon
employment status (maximum payment of $5,000) or may be used for additional service credit towards their retiree
health insurance subsidy.

(k) Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable government activities, business-type
activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

(l) Fund Equity/Net Position

The net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements is classified as net investment in capital
assets, restricted, and unrestricted.  Restricted net position represents constraints on resources that are either externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws and regulations of other governments or imposed by law through State
statute. In the fiduciary fund financial statements, net position of the Pension & Other Postemployment Benefits Trust
Funds are held in trust for the payment of retiree pension, health and life insurance benefits. Additionally, net position of
the Line of Duty Act Fund is held in trust for the payment of benefits (health, dental and vision) to employees disabled
in the line of duty or surviving beneficiaries of employees killed in the line of duty.

Under GAAP, fund balances are required to be reported according to the following classifications:

Nonspendable fund balance – Consists of amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable
form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. This classification includes inventories, prepaid
amounts, assets held for resale, and long-term receivables.

Restricted fund balance – Consists of amounts that are restricted to specific purposes and externally imposed by
creditors or imposed by law.

Committed fund balance – Consists of amounts that can only be used for specific purposes as determined by the
City’s highest level of decision-making authority, City Council, and is imposed by formal action (ordinance). The
City’s policy is that formal council action is required to establish or rescind a committed fund balance. 
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Assigned fund balance – Consists of amounts which the City intends to use for specific purposes, but do not meet the
criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governmental funds other than the General Fund, assigned fund
balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or committed. In the General Fund, assigned amounts
represent intended uses established by City Council’s delegation of this authority to the City Manager in the annual
operating budget ordinance.

Unassigned fund balance – This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and
that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General Fund.  Under GAAP,
positive unassigned fund balances are only reported in the General Fund. However, in governmental funds other than
the General Fund, expenditures incurred for a specific purpose might exceed the amount restricted, committed or
assigned to that purpose, and a negative residual amount for that purpose may result. If that occurs, any negative
residual is offset to the extent of any other assigned amounts in that fund, and any remaining negative residual
amount is classified as a negative unassigned fund balance in the applicable governmental fund.

City Council has adopted a minimum fund balance policy which states that the General Fund’s unassigned fund
balance shall not be less than 7.5% of the actual General Fund revenues. For FY 2019, the General Fund’s
unassigned fund balance is 13.7% of revenues, exceeding the policy threshold of 7.5%. 

The City does not have a policy for the use of its unrestricted fund balance amounts, but in practice committed
amounts are reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred
for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.
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Details of the fund balance classifications of the Governmental funds at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Function/Purpose Nonspendable Restricted Committed Assigned Unassigned

General Fund:
Inventories $ 1,177,088 - - - -
General government:

Administration - - - 2,042,603 -
Self insured activities - - - 21,753,853 -
Projects - - - 1,000,000 -

Public safety - - - 494,867 -
Public works - 596,452 - 2,071,939 -
Health and welfare - - - 146 -
Parks, recreation, and cultural - - - 354,194 -
Community development - - - 1,078 -
Imprest funds - - - 21,066 -
Unassigned - - - - 66,498,760

Total General Fund $ 1,177,088 596,452 - 27,739,746 66,498,760

Other funds:
Debt service:

Future debt service $ - - 1,407,324 53,698 -
Bond:

Buildings - 349,682 - - -
Community development - 27,234,101 - - -
Environmental - 70,052 - - -
Parks, recreation, and cultural - 196,038 - - -
Streets and bridges - 4,492,675 - - -
Sanitary sewer/Solid waste - 507,240 - - -
Stormwater - 3,654,511 - - -
Future capital projects - 23,947,971 - - -

Capital projects:
Federal and state grants - 1,801,299 - - -

Nonmajor governmental:
Economic development - - 1,246,668 - -
Law library - 25 188,238 - -
Environmental - - 7,068 - -
Criminal Justice Academy - - 230,500 - -
Federal and state grants - 2,536,452 - - -
Community development - - 251,933 - -
Health and welfare - - 42,727 - -
Transit - - 1,272 - -
Equipment - - 886,618 - -
Parks, recreation, and cultural 6,869 - 809,837 - (220,636)
Buildings - - 39,994 - -
Streets and bridges - - 724,311 - -
Wastewater - 8,332,149 - - -
Solid waste - 7,382,744 - - -
Stormwater - 14,123,340 - - -
Future capital projects - - 18,817,679 - -

Total other funds $ 6,869 94,628,279 24,654,169 53,698 (220,636)

Total fund balance $ 1,183,957 95,224,731 24,654,169 27,793,444 66,278,124
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Net position is comprised of three categories: (1) net investment in capital assets; (2) restricted; and (3) unrestricted.
The first component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. The restricted component of net position consists of restricted assets
reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets.  Restricted reflects the assets whose use is
restricted by outside parties or legal constraints. The unrestricted component of net position consists of the net amount of
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

Restricted net position on the government-wide Statement of Net Position is composed of the following funds:

Governmental
activities

General activities:
Public works $ 596,452

Other activities:
Law library 25
Grants 2,536,452
Capital projects 1,801,299
Stormwater, Solid Waste ,Wastewater 29,838,233

Total restricted net position $ 34,772,461

(m) Encumbrances

The City employs encumbrance accounting under which obligations in the form of purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditure of funds are reported as committed or assigned fund balance, since they do not
constitute expenditures or liabilities. Appropriations with outstanding commitments or encumbrances are carried into the
following year.  According to the City Code, unexpended, unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the year.

(n) Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be
recognized as an expense or expenditure until then.  The City’s deferred outflows of resources consist of the amounts by
which the principal and premium of a refunding bond exceed the net carrying amount of the refunded debt. The deferred
outflow is being amortized over the remaining life of the refunded debt. Deferred outflows for pensions and OPEB
(including LODA) result from employer contributions to the retirement plans made after the measurement date, net
difference between projected and actual earnings on plan investments, changes in proportionate share and changes in
assumptions. Changes in actuarial assumptions are deferred and amortized over the remaining service life of all
participants and investment experience amounts are deferred and amortized over a closed five-year period.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The City has several items that qualify under this
classification, which arise under a modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, unavailable revenue and property
taxes collected in advance are reported in the governmental funds’ Balance Sheet. These amounts are deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period until the amounts become available.

Deferred inflows for pensions and OPEB (including LODA) result from changes in actuarial assumptions, differences
between the expected and actual experience, pension investment returns that exceed projected earnings and changes in
proportionate share. Changes in actuarial assumptions are deferred and amortized over the remaining service life of all
participants and investment experience amounts are deferred and amortized over a closed five-year period.
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(o) Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Pronouncements

Effective July 1, 2018, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB Statement
No. 88 (GASB 88), Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements, which
requires the City to disclose additional information related to debt in the notes to the financial statements. This
additional information includes unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in
debt agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, significant termination events
with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses.

(2) Deposits and Investments

Deposits

All cash of the City is maintained in accounts collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits
Act (the Act), Section 2.2-4400 et. Seq. of the Code of Virginia or covered by federal depository insurance. Under the
Act, banks holding public deposits in excess of the amounts insured by the FDIC must pledge collateral of 50% of the
excess deposits to a collateral pool in the name of the State Treasury Board. Savings and loan institutions are required to
collateralize 100% of deposits in excess of the FDIC limits and are considered insured. The State Treasury Board is
responsible for monitoring compliance with the collateralization and reporting requirements of the Act and for notifying
local governments of compliance by banks and savings and loans.

To increase returns and minimize fees, the City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds held
with the City Treasurer except for certain restricted funds requiring separate tracking or held by outside custodians. Cash
and investments as of June 30, 2019 are classified in the accompanying financial statements, except for Pension and
OPEB Funds’ as follows:

Carrying amount

Cash and deposits:
Cash on hand $ 123,247
Deposits with banks 70,684,620

Total cash and deposits 70,807,867

Investments:
Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 236,743,822
Deposits with banks - money market accounts 6,319,568
Commonwealth cash reserve 3,638,423
Virginia State Non-Arbitrage Pool (VA SNAP) 97,018,487
IDA escrow funds 131,369

Total deposits and investments $ 414,659,536

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2019 are classified in the accompanying financial statements, except for Pension
and OPEB Funds, as follows:

June 30, 2019

Statements of net position:
Primary Government:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 217,693,411
Restricted cash 93,101,560

Component units:
Cash and cash equivalents 70,007,789
Restricted cash 22,871,867

Fiduciary funds:
Cash and cash equivalents - Line of Duty Act Fund 2,828,740
Cash and cash equivalents - Agency Funds 8,156,169

Total cash and investments $ 414,659,536
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Investment Policy

In accordance with the Code of Virginia and other applicable law, including regulations, the City Investment Policy
(Policy) permits investments in obligations of the United States or agencies thereof, obligations of the Commonwealth of
Virginia or political subdivision thereof, obligations of the International Bank for Reconstructions and Development
(World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, “prime quality” commercial paper and
certain corporate notes, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements, the LGIP, a 2a-7 like pool, the VA SNAP or
similar fund, open-end mutual funds (provided the funds are registered under the Security Act of Virginia or the Federal
Investment Act of 1940), and negotiable certifications of deposits and negotiable bank deposit notes of domestic banks
and domestic offices of foreign banks with a rating of at least A-1/P-1.

The City Policy prohibits any other security not specifically authorized in the policy.  No investment shall be purchased
if the yield is less than that of the most recently auctioned issue of the United States Treasury of a similar term.  At no
time shall more than 35% of the portfolio be invested in commercial paper.  No more than five percent of the portfolio
shall be invested in the commercial paper of a single-entity. At no time shall an investment bear a maturity date greater
than thirty-six (36) months from date of purchase. The City’s Policy does not set a limit on the amount that may be
invested in any single Federal Agency issuer or in any obligation of the United States.  However, the Treasurer shall
endeavor to maintain an appropriate diversification in the portfolio. The Treasurer shall avoid an excessive
concentration in any type of investment and excessive number of investment transactions with any financial institution or
broker/dealer. 

Interest Rate Risk: As a means of limiting exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, investment
maturity is managed to proceed or coincide with expectance need of funds.  The City’s Policy limits the investment of
operating funds to investments with a stated maturity of no more than thirty-six (36) months from the date of purchase.
Purchases of securities are laddered with staggered maturity dates.  Proceeds from the sale of bonds must be invested in
compliance with the specific requirements of the bond covenants and may be invested in securities with longer
maturities.  As of June 30, 2019, the carrying value and weighted average maturity of the City’s investments are listed in
the chart that follows.

Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits:  The City’s deposits at June 30, 2019 were fully insured or collateralized by
securities held in the name of the City by the City’s custodial banks.

Custodial Credit Risk – Investments: The policy requires that all securities purchased for the City shall be held by the
City Treasurer or by the City Treasurer’s designated third party custodian. If held by a custodian, the securities must be
in the City’s or in the custodian’s nominee name and identifiable on the custodian’s books as belonging to the City and
the custodian must be a third party, not a counter-party (buyer or seller).

Credit Risk of Debt Securities of Primary Government:  The City’s rated debt investments as of June 30, 2019, were
rated by Standard & Poors and Moody. The ratings are presented below using the Standard & Poors rating scale. The
School Board, E/IDA and PAC, component units, are pooled with the City and not separately identified.
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Assets held by the Treasurer Fair value Credit rating
Weighted average
maturity (years)

LGIP $ 226,365,993 AAAm 0.11
LGIP extended maturity 10,377,829 AAAf/S1 0.88
Commonwealth cash reserve (AIM) - underlying:

U.S. agencies 75,032 A-1 0.10
U.S. agencies 60,216 A-1+ 0.65
U.S. agencies 49,892 A+ 1.35
U.S. agencies 205,348 AA- 1.39
U.S. agencies 2,920,262 AA+ 2.07
U.S. agencies 140,199 AA 1.10
U.S. agencies 124,988 AAA 1.82
Supranational bonds 39,799 AAA 1.22
Money market 22,687 AAAm -

SNAP 97,018,487 AAAm 0.13

Total investments $ 337,400,732

Fair Value Hierarchy

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy within GAAP, based on the valuation
inputs used to measure fair value of the assets, with Level 1 inputs being quoted prices in an active market for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs being significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs being significant
unobservable inputs (the City does not value any of its investments using level 3 inputs).

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of investments of the City as of June 30,
2019.

Fair value measurements using

Investments by fair value level 6/30/2019

Quoted prices in
active markets
for identical

assets
(Level 1)

Quoted prices in
active markets
for identical

assets
(Level 2)

Time deposits $ 285,205 $ 285,205 $ -
U.S. government agencies 304,731 - 304,731
U.S. Treasury securities 2,398,932 - 2,398,932
U.S. corporate bonds 485,238 - 485,238
Supranational bonds 39,799 - 39,799
Money market funds 22,688 22,688 -
Collateralized mortgage obligations 101,830 - 101,830

Total at fair value 3,638,423 $ 307,893 $ 3,330,530

Investments measured at NAV
SNAP 97,018,487

Total investments at NAV 97,018,487

Investments at amortized cost
LGIP 226,365,993
LGIP extended maturity 10,377,829

Total at amortized cost 236,743,822

Total $ 337,400,732
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Deposits of Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Funds

At year-end, the Pension and OPEB Funds' cash and investment balances were as follows:

Carrying amount

Cash and deposits:
Deposits with banks $ 1,984,406
Deposits with banks - repurchase agreements 4,201,573
Pension Trust fund money markets 11,418,542

Total cash and deposits 17,604,521

Investments:
Debt securities 147,787,229
Equity investments 662,540,399
Private equities 45,305,240
Pension fund real estate funds 120,771,284

Total investments 976,404,152

Total deposits and investments $ 994,008,673

The Pension and OPEB funds’ cash and investments as of June 30, 2019, are classified in the accompanying
financial statements as follows:

June 30, 2019

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,185,979
Cash and cash equivalents with trustee 11,418,542
Investments:

Debt securities 147,787,229
Equity investments 662,540,399
Private equities 45,305,240
Real estate and timber 120,771,284

Total deposits and investments $ 994,008,673

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Pension Fund categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by GAAP. The
hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset and give the highest level to
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to
significant unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements).
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The Pension Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2019:

Investments measured at fair value - Pension Fund
Fair value measurements using

Investments by fair value level
Fair value at
6/30/2019

Quoted prices in
active markets
for identical

assets
Level 1

Significant other
observable

inputs
Level 2

Debt securities:
Asset backed securities $ 20,554,595 $ - $ 20,554,595
Collateralized mortgage obligations 7,425,548 - 7,425,548
Corporate bonds 58,344,598 - 58,344,598
Government agencies 5,997,192 - 5,997,192
Mortgage pass-through 15,487,975 - 15,487,975
U.S. Treasury securities 30,479,422 - 30,479,422

Total debt securities 138,289,330 - 138,289,330

Equity securities:
Consumer goods 38,015,920 38,015,920 -
Energy 9,563,500 9,563,500 -
Financials 30,234,073 30,234,073 -
Health care 18,262,970 18,262,970 -
Industrials 34,349,005 34,349,005 -
Information technology 30,813,370 30,813,370 -
Materials 9,968,903 9,968,903 -
Mutual funds 56,872,720 56,872,720 -
Real estate investment trusts 4,631,298 4,631,298 -
Telecommunication services 5,507,018 5,507,018 -
Utilities 2,639,274 2,639,274 -

Total equity securities 240,858,051 240,858,051 -

Total investments at fair value level 379,147,381 $ 240,858,051 $ 138,289,330

Investments measured at the net asset value (NAV)
Equity investments:

Commingled international equity fund 269,393,418
Commingled small cap equity fund 128,581,797

Total equity investments 397,975,215

Private equity - private equity partnerships 45,305,240
Real assets:

Real estate 43,111,162
Timber 77,660,122

Total real assets 120,771,284

Total investments measured at the NAV 564,051,739

Total investments at fair value 943,199,120

Cash equivalents and short-term investments at the
amortized cost
U.S. Treasury Money Market 11,244,612

Total investments measured at amortized cost 11,244,612

Total investments $ 954,443,732
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Investments measured at fair value - OPEB
Fair value

measurements
using

Investments by fair value level
Fair value at
6/30/2019

Quoted prices in
active markets
for identical

assets
Level 1

Equity securities:
Mutual funds $ 29,689,140 $ 29,689,140

Total equity securities 29,689,140 29,689,140

Total investments at fair value level 29,689,140 $ 29,689,140

Investments measured at the NAV
Equity investments:

Commingled international equity fund 3,515,892

Total equity investments measured at the NAV 3,515,892

Total investments measured at fair value 33,205,032

Cash equivalents and short-term investments at the amortized cost
U.S. Treasury Money Market 173,930

Total investments measured at amortized costs 173,930

Total investments $ 33,378,962

Debt and equity securities classified as Level 1 fair value are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those
securities.  Debt securities classified as Level 2 fair value are valued using a matrix pricing technique. 

Private equity funds – international are valued as described in the following schedule, Note 2. The valuation method
for investments measured at the NAV per share (or its equivalent) is presented in the following table:

Investments measured at the NAV - Pension

NAV at
6/30/2019

Unfunded
commitments

Redemption
frequency (if

currently eligible)
Redemption
notice period

Equity investments:

Commingled international equity fund(1) $ 269,393,418 $ - Daily, Monthly 3-30 days
Commingled small cap equity fund(1) 128,581,797 - Daily, Monthly 3-30 days

Total equity investments 397,975,215 -

Private equity - private equity partnerships(2) 45,305,240 19,242,869 Not eligible N/A
Real assets:

Real estate(3) 43,111,162 - Quarterly 3 months
Timber(3) 77,660,122 - Quarterly N/A

Total real assets 120,771,284 -

Total investments measured at the NAV $ 564,051,739 $ 19,242,869

39



City of Newport News, Virginia
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

Investments measured at the NAV - OPEB

NAV at
6/30/2019

Unfunded
commitments

Redemption
frequency (if

currently eligible)
Redemption
notice period

Equity investments:

Commingled international equity fund(1) $ 3,515,892 $ - Daily, Monthly 3-30 days

Total equity investments 3,515,892 -

Total investments measured at the NAV $ 3,515,892 $ -

1. Commingled International Equity Fund and Commingled Small Cap Fund. This type consists of four investment
funds that invest in international equities diversified across all sectors and two funds that invest in small cap
equities.  The fair values of the investments in these types have been determined using the NAV per share of the
investments.  

2. Private equity funds. This asset class includes three commingled vehicles that take private ownership of
companies.  These investments have an eight-to-ten year time horizon and cannot be redeemed at NNERF’s
discretion during that period.  Distributions from each of these assets will be delivered to NNERF periodically as
revenue is generated and/or the underlying investments of the funds are sold. It is probable that the investments
of this type will be sold at NAV.

3. Real estate and timber funds. Real estate funds include two commingled real estate funds that invest primarily in
U.S. commercial real estate. Timber funds include one commingled fund and one separate account managed by
NNERF Timberland, LLC, a related party of the Fund, which invests in timber-related resources. The fair value
of investments of this type are determined using NAV per share (or its equivalent) of NNERF’s ownership
interest in partners’ capital. The NAV is based on the fair value of the underlying assets, determined by an
appraisal process using independent appraisers. These investments have an inherent time-horizon, and cannot be
redeemed at NNERF’s discretion during that period. Distributions from each of these assets will be delivered to
NNERF periodically as revenue is generated and/or the underlying investments of the funds are sold.  

Investment Policy of the Pension and OPEB Funds

The Pension and OPEB Funds can be invested in obligations of the U.S. or agencies thereof, obligations of the
Commonwealth of Virginia, or political subdivisions thereof, corporate bonds rated “A” or higher by two of three
nationally known security rating concerns provided; however, that no more than five percent of the Fund may be
invested in corporate bonds rated less than “A” but not less than “BB”, federally insured mortgages under Titles 203,
207, 220 and 221 of the National Housing Act, equities, certificates of deposit, guaranteed investment contracts, real
estate and timber. Pension Trust Fund investments are subject to restrictions placed by policies of the City Council and
the Retirement Board.

Credit Risk of Pension Funds

The policy for the Fund has a strict control on credit quality. The Fund may only be invested in corporate bonds rated
“A” or higher by two of three nationally known security rating concerns; provided, however, that no more than five
percent of the Fund may be invested in corporate bonds rated less than “A” but not less than “BB”. The credit risk
profile for the Pension Funds’ securities by investment type as of June 30, 2019, is as follows:
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S & P's ratings as of June 30, 2019

Investment types Total AAA AA A BBB B C Not rated

Asset-backed $ 20,554,595 14,035,871 1,710,136 - - - - 4,808,588

Corporate bonds 58,344,598 773,143 7,261,911 39,075,474 11,234,070 - - -

Foreign currency 27,580,256 - - - - - - 27,580,256

Ltd partner units 45,305,240 - - - - - - 45,305,240

Mortgage-backed 22,913,523 2,267,056 2,901,951 630,644 113,949 - - 16,999,923

Mutual funds 427,267,678 - - - - - - 427,267,678

Real estate 43,111,162 - - - - - - 43,111,162

Short-term 11,244,612 - - - - - - 11,244,612

Timber 77,660,122 - - - - - - 77,660,122

U.S. agencies 5,997,192 - 5,561,938 - - - - 435,254

U.S. treasury 30,479,422 - - - - - - 30,479,422

Non-fixed assets 183,985,332 - - - - - - 183,985,332

Total $ 954,443,732 17,076,070 17,435,936 39,706,118 11,348,019 - - 868,877,589

Concentration of Credit Risk - Pension Fund

There were no investments in any one issuer that represented 5% or more of the total Pension Fund investments.

Custodial Risk - Pension and OPEB Funds

The policy requires that all securities purchased for the Plans shall be held by the City Treasurer or by the designated
third-party custodian. If held by a custodian, the securities must be in the City’s or in the custodian’s nominee name. The
custodian holds investment securities in the Fund’s name.  Accordingly, the Fund is not exposed to custodial credit risk.

Foreign Currency Risk - Pension and OPEB Funds

The Plans do not have a formal policy to limit foreign currency risk.  Risk of loss arises from changes in currency
exchange rates. The Pension Fund’s exposure to foreign currency risk is none to minimal. The OPEB Fund currently has
no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest Risk - Pension Fund

The Plan’s investment policy does not address investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value
losses arising from increasing interest rates. The investment policy defines the investment objectives for both the passive
and actively managed segments of the fixed income portfolio. The objective of the passive segment is to replicate the
return of the Barclays 1-3 year Government Credit Bond Index. The objective of the actively managed fixed income
portfolio is to outperform the Barclays 1-3 year Government Credit Bond index over a moving 3-5 year range, with the
exception of long-duration fixed income, which has an objective of outperforming the Barclays Capital Long
Government/Credit Index over a moving 3-5 year range.  The fair value of the Plan’s fixed income portfolio consisted of
the following investment and maturities as of June 30, 2019:

Investment type Fair value <5 years 5-10 10-15 15-20

U.S. government $ 57,031,209 $ 56,391,209 $ 640,000 $ - $ -
Corporate bonds 58,344,598 56,905,773 1,438,825 - -
Mortgage 22,913,523 22,913,523 - - -

Total $ 138,289,330 $ 136,210,505 $ 2,078,825 $ - $ -
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(3) Accounts Receivable

Net accounts receivable in the Statement of Net Position are as follows: 

Governmental
activities

Business-type
activities

Taxes receivable:
Real estate $ 9,738,115 $ -
Personal property 8,006,050 -

Total taxes receivable, net 17,744,165 -

Accounts receivable 12,261,387 11,764,973

Total receivables, net $ 30,005,552 $ 11,764,973

Accounts receivable and receivables from other governments as of year-end for the City’s individual major funds,
nonmajor and agency funds, in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as
follows:

General

Capital projects

other federal and

state

Public

utility

Agency

funds

Nonmajor

governmental

funds Total

Receivables:
Taxes $ 23,601,623 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 23,601,623
Accounts 6,683,484 - 13,903,603 2,763,320 7,885,552 31,235,959
Intergovernmental:

Federal 1,755,077 12,809,477 - - 718,215 15,282,769
State 13,197,896 10,531,203 - - 1,510,142 25,239,241

Gross receivables 45,238,080 23,340,680 13,903,603 2,763,320 10,113,909 95,359,592

Less allowance for doubtful accounts (5,857,458) - (2,138,630) - (2,307,649) (10,303,737)

Net total receivables $ 39,380,622 $ 23,340,680 $ 11,764,973 $ 2,763,320 $ 7,806,260 $ 85,055,855

In the governmental funds, unavailable revenues consist of revenues that are measurable, but not available for use during
the current period. Property taxes receivable at June 30, but not collected within 45 days after that date are reported as
deferred inflows of resources in the financial statements. At the end of the current fiscal year, unavailable revenue of
$0.6 million was reported in the governmental nonmajor funds related to stormwater fees. The General Fund had
unavailable revenues of $12.8 million related to property taxes.
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(4) Capital Assets, Net

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Primary Government

Balance
July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases

Balance
June 30, 2019

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 91,938,576 3,000 37,141 91,904,435
Construction in progress 81,150,036 89,306,844 31,237,981 139,218,899

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 173,088,612 89,309,844 31,275,122 231,123,334

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 366,261,502 5,403,878 6,982,320 364,683,060
Improvements 219,832,980 10,712,173 194,592 230,350,561
Machinery and equipment 175,593,261 9,777,291 3,517,814 181,852,738
Infrastructure 581,913,845 12,919,297 - 594,833,142

Total capital assets, being depreciated 1,343,601,588 38,812,639 10,694,726 1,371,719,501

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 134,536,705 6,697,087 3,173,464 138,060,328
Improvements 117,198,997 6,826,492 112,868 123,912,621
Machinery and equipment 126,043,276 10,406,790 3,317,875 133,132,191
Infrastructure 367,421,023 10,911,753 - 378,332,776

Total accumulated depreciation 745,200,001 34,842,122 6,604,207 773,437,916

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 598,401,587 3,970,517 4,090,519 598,281,585

Capital assets, net $ 771,490,199 93,280,361 35,365,641 829,404,919

Depreciation expense for governmental activities was charged to functions of the Primary Government as follows:

General government $ 2,338,162
Judicial administration 585,486
Public safety 5,059,397
Public works 11,534,892
Health and welfare 175,388
Education 4,724,943
Parks, recreation and culture 3,654,239
Community development 1,140,022
Non-departmental 4,576
Internal Service Fund 5,625,017

$ 34,842,122
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Business-type Activities

Balance
July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases

Balance
June 30, 2019

Public utility:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 8,336,904 - - 8,336,904
Construction in progress 5,663,368 5,776,397 5,494,415 5,945,350

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 14,000,272 5,776,397 5,494,415 14,282,254

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 152,155,622 - 3,046,123 149,109,499
Improvements 493,930,232 7,864,211 12,302,909 489,491,534
Machinery and equipment 42,067,917 3,714,988 1,443,575 44,339,330

Total capital assets, being depreciated 688,153,771 11,579,199 16,792,607 682,940,363

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 64,167,614 3,593,454 2,479,875 65,281,193
Improvements 193,603,754 7,879,578 12,188,041 189,295,291
Machinery and equipment 31,889,593 2,534,626 1,403,908 33,020,311

Total accumulated depreciation 289,660,961 14,007,658 16,071,824 287,596,795

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 398,492,810 (2,428,459) 720,783 395,343,568

Capital assets, net $ 412,493,082 3,347,938 6,215,198 409,625,822

Discretely Presented Component Units

Balance
July 1, 2018 Increases Decreases

Adjustment
assets held

tenancy
in-common

Balance
June 30, 2019

Public schools:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 2,896,704 - 633,280 - 2,263,424
Construction in progress - 1,097,191 - - 1,097,191

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 2,896,704 1,097,191 633,280 - 3,360,615

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 73,391,826 90,000 2,529,340 6,982,320 77,934,806
Improvements 80,259,454 1,631,918 459,302 194,592 81,626,662
Machinery and equipment 67,614,176 4,312,736 2,121,115 - 69,805,797

Total capital assets, being depreciated 221,265,456 6,034,654 5,109,757 7,176,912 229,367,265

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 45,515,284 1,028,413 1,684,585 3,173,464 48,032,576
Improvements 29,936,567 2,626,925 282,854 112,868 32,393,506
Machinery and equipment 47,054,734 3,772,805 999,892 - 49,827,647

Total accumulated depreciation 122,506,585 7,428,143 2,967,331 3,286,332 130,253,729

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 98,758,871 (1,393,489) 2,142,426 3,890,580 99,113,536

Capital assets, net $ 101,655,575 (296,298) 2,775,706 3,890,580 102,474,151

An adjustment to buildings for Assets Held Tenancy in-Common is recorded for a school building held on the books of
the City until the bonded debt is repaid.  This is permitted per the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  Once the debt
is repaid, an accounting entry is made to move the building back to the School Board. All the while the School Board
holds the deed to the property, retains full control, and operates all programs at the property and insures the property.

Depreciation expense of $7,428,143 was charged to the Public School’s governmental functions.
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(5) Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2019, is as follows:

Receivables/payables between other funds:

Receivable fund Payable fund Amount

General Fund Nonmajor Gov. Fund: CDBG $ 264,145
General Fund Nonmajor Gov. Fund: Parks Grants 23
General Fund Nonmajor Gov. Fund: Animal Shelter 344,002
General Fund Nonmajor Gov. Fund: Police Grants 63,378
General Fund Nonmajor Gov. Fund: Comm. Atty. Grants 52,475
General Fund Nonmajor Gov. Fund: Misc. Grants 146,866
General Fund Capital Projects Other Federal and State 4,505,188
Nonmajor Gov. Fund: Gen. Cap. Imp. Fund Capital Projects Other Federal and State 14,553,732

Interfund balances result from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur and (2) payments between funds are made.

Due to/from external parties:

Due from external party Due to external party Amount

General Fund Pension fund $ 91,129
General Fund OPEB fund 377,040

Receivables/payables between Primary Government and component units: 

Receivable entity Payable entity Amount

Newport News Public Schools City $ 4,670,804

As of June 30, 2018, the IDA had a payable to the City of $10,155,757, which represented the outstanding balance of
the City’s financing of the construction of the Applied Research Center (ARC). During fiscal year 2019, declining
tenants, maintenance costs and notification by the primary tenants of their intent to vacate resulted in lease revenue
being insufficient to support the repayment of the debt. Accordingly, the payable was designated as uncollectible as of
June 30, 2019.

Individual fund interfund transfers for the Primary Government are as follows:  

Transfers to:

General Fund Debt Service

Nonmajor
Governmental

Capital
Projects

Nonmajor
Governmental

Special
Revenue Total

Transfers from:
General Fund $ - 42,262,898 12,775,945 5,731,459 60,770,302
Nonmajor Gov. -

Special Revenue - 10,728,775 - - 10,728,775
Public Utility 9,500,000 - - - 9,500,000

$ 9,500,000 52,991,673 12,775,945 5,731,459 80,999,077
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Transfers are used when another fund is required, legally or through budgetary design to provide resources for the
payment of current debt requirements. One fund is responsible for the initial receipt of funds and another fund is
authorized to use the resources to finance its operating expenditures or expenses. Transfer from the Public Utility Fund
to the General Fund is used to finance general governmental expenditures.

(6) Lease Agreements

(a) Capital Lease Payments - Public Schools (Component Unit)

The School Board has four lease agreements at June 30, 2019 for financing the acquisition of property and equipment.

The net book value of assets acquired through the four capital leases as of June 30, 2019 is as follows:  

Machinery and equipment $ 2,068,108
Less accumulated depreciation (1,186,250)

Assets acquired through capital leases, net $ 881,858

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2019,
were as follows:    

Years ending June 30:
2020 $ 354,643
2021 317,262
2022 374,602

Total minimum lease payments $ 1,046,507
Less amounts representing interest (62,884)

Present value of minimum capital lease payments $ 983,623

(b) Operating Lease Payments - Component Units

The School Board had three ongoing leased buildings in FY2019.  Part of the leased space expires on June 30, 2028 and
the other leased space in that same building expires on June 30, 2030.  One other lease expired on June 30, 2019, but the
School Board is negotiating a possible extension.  The School Board also leases space for high school graduation
ceremonies on a year-to-year basis.  Total costs for such leases were approximately $824,072 for the year ended June
30, 2019.

The E/IDA leases land and property in Newport News.  Lease terms range from one to twenty years.

PAC leases equipment under a long-term non-cancelable operating lease.  The lease term is five years and expires in
August 2024.  

The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Schools E/IDA PAC

Years ending June 30:
2020 $ 658,673 1,375,045 15,090
2021 663,605 1,383,152 14,340
2022 707,751 1,310,341 14,340
2023 712,882 1,276,773 14,340
2024 718,116 1,283,156 2,390
2025-2029 3,218,483 3,794,078 -
2030 296,938 - -

$ 6,976,448 10,422,545 60,500
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(7) Long-Term Liabilities

(a) A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as
follows: 

Balance

July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions

Balance

June 30, 2019

Due within

one year

Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds* $ 325,197,494 85,795,000 (32,017,494) 378,975,000 30,660,000
VRA* 15,270,245 - (1,877,478) 13,392,767 1,828,465
VPSA* 1,075,384 - (347,774) 727,610 358,278
Deferred amounts:

Add bonds premiums 32,103,254 7,656,996 (4,662,619) 35,097,631 4,962,255

Total bonds payable 373,646,377 93,451,996 (38,905,365) 428,193,008 37,808,998

Literary loan bonds 3,779,053 - (419,767) 3,359,286 419,767

Capital leases payable 98,801 - (98,801) - -

Landfill liability 3,512,000 - (318,000) 3,194,000 335,000

Accrued vacation 18,757,841 16,654,707 (16,206,210) 19,206,338 16,593,915

Net line of duty obligation 7,208,476 1,773,667 (3,258,562) 5,723,581 -

Net pension liability 295,835,834 26,840,269 (43,556,286) 279,119,817 -

Net OPEB obligation 79,656,021 7,127,192 (14,619,249) 72,163,964 -

Net OPEB obligation - GLI 4,290,160 1,817,960 (1,258,660) 4,849,460 -

Workers' comp. and other claims 12,044,450 3,270,313 (2,763,333) 12,551,430 2,834,926

Incurred but not reported medical claims 3,218,000 40,305,275 (40,152,275) 3,371,000 3,371,000

Total long-term liabilities $ 802,047,013 191,241,379 (161,556,508) 831,731,884 61,363,606

* Balances were reclassed to reflect implementation of GASB 88 (see Note 1).

Long-term liabilities are normally paid from the General Fund.

The Commonwealth of Virginia imposes a legal limit of 10% of the assessed valuation of taxable real property on the
amount of general obligation borrowing which may be outstanding by the City. The City has independently set a lower
debt limit of 3% of the assessed valuation. As of June 30, 2019, the City's aggregate general obligation indebtedness is
approximately $1,125.4 million less than the Commonwealth's limit and $38.9 million less than the City's independent
limit.

The Virginia Resources Authority (VRA) bonds were issued to finance the costs of capital improvement projects and
sewer rehabilitation projects to the wastewater treatment and sanitary sewer system owned and operated by the City of
Newport News. The City has a moral obligation to appropriate and pay the amounts due for bonds issued by the VRA
from the General Fund. In the event of default, the lender may provide prompt, written notice declaring the entire unpaid
balance due and payable.

The Virginia Public School Authority (VPSA) bond was issued to finance the cost of Mary Passage Middle School
owned and operated by the City of Newport News School Board. The City has a moral obligation to appropriate and pay
the amounts due for bonds issued by the VPSA from the General Fund. In the event of default, the lender may provide
prompt, written notice declaring the entire unpaid balance as due and payable.

General obligation bonds of $35.0 million are authorized but unissued.

At June 30, 2019, approximately $46.1 million is considered defeased because refunding trusts have been established to
pay for them.

On February 5, 2019, the City issued $85,795,000 principal amount of General Obligation General Improvement Bonds
Series 2019A with a true interest cost of 2.952%. The net proceeds of $92,924,911 (after an original issue premium of
$7,656,996 and payment of $527,085 for underwriting fees and other issuance costs) were used to finance the costs of
various capital improvement projects.
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Landfill Liability: The City closed its Denbigh landfill site on June 30, 1996. Virginia and Federal laws and regulations
require a final cover and the performance of certain maintenance monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after
closure.  The $3.2 million liability at June 30, 2019 represents the total estimated cost of closure and postclosure care
through fiscal year 2027 and reflects what it would cost to perform all closure/postclosure care in 2019. Actual costs
may be higher due to inflation, technology changes or regulation changes.

Outstanding general obligation bonds at June 30, 2019, of the Primary Government governmental activities, 
are comprised of the following issues: 

G.O Bond Series Bond date
Final maturity

date
Effective interest

rate (at issue)
Balance 

June 30, 2019

VRA 99A 03/09/99 12/01/19 3.80% $ 91,636
VRA 00A 03/01/00 03/01/21 3.50% 373,685
VPSA 00B 11/16/00 07/15/20 5.15% 727,610
VRA 01A 04/24/01 05/01/22 4.10% 410,451
VRA 02A 05/15/02 01/01/23 3.75% 692,839
VRA 03A 06/24/03 06/01/24 3.50% 960,357
VRA 04A 06/30/04 09/01/25 3.10% 1,167,595
VRA 05A 08/24/05 09/01/26 3.50% 1,506,841
VRA 06A 10/20/06 11/01/27 3.10% 1,376,484
Series 07B 04/05/07 07/01/22 5.00% 12,250,000
VRA 07A 09/11/07 09/01/28 3.00% 1,726,715
VRA 08 12/12/08 09/01/29 3.50% 1,844,213
Series 09A 05/06/09 06/30/30 3.44% 1,580,000
Series 09B 05/06/09 06/30/20 2.23% 1,255,000
VRA 09 12/16/09 09/01/30 3.35% 3,241,951
Series 11A 07/28/11 07/01/31 3.31% 4,200,000
Series 11B 07/28/11 07/01/19 1.97% 2,670,000
Series 12A 03/21/12 07/15/24 1.93% 25,290,000
Series 12B 03/21/12 07/15/19 1.41% 1,805,000
Series 12C 09/27/12 09/01/32 2.58% 26,400,000
Series 12D 09/27/12 09/01/21 1.77% 1,575,000
Series 14A 05/22/14 07/15/34 3.05% 36,000,000
Series 14A-Ref 05/22/14 07/15/27 2.43% 44,160,000
Series 14B 05/22/14 07/15/25 3.08% 4,770,000
Series 15 12/17/15 07/15/35 2.58% 41,555,000
Series 16A 06/21/16 08/01/31 2.01% 33,190,000
Series 17A 06/08/17 08/01/37 2.60% 56,480,000
Series 19A 02/05/19 02/01/40 2.95% 85,795,000

Totals $ 393,095,377
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The following table summarizes future debt service requirements as of June 30, 2019:

General Obligation Bonds VRA VPSA

Fiscal year ending June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 $ 30,660,000 $ 15,489,040 $ 1,828,465 312,875 $ 358,278 27,972

2021 30,745,000 14,196,061 1,778,515 270,524 369,332 9,418

2022 30,655,000 12,838,362 1,624,472 229,480 - -

2023 29,145,000 11,501,673 1,520,136 193,144 - -

2024 27,860,000 10,185,498 1,375,202 158,379 - -

2025-2029 107,320,000 34,243,937 4,685,241 363,010 - -

2030-2034 77,395,000 14,618,438 580,736 14,153 - -

2035-2039 42,720,000 3,856,787 - - - -

2040 2,475,000 86,625 - - - -

Total future debt service $ 378,975,000 $ 117,016,421 $ 13,392,767 1,541,565 $ 727,610 37,390

Outstanding literary loans at June 30, 2019, of the Primary Government governmental activities, are comprised of
the following issues:

Project Bond date
Final maturity

date
Effective interest

rate (at issue)
Balance

June 30, 2019

Warwick High 09/01/99 09/01/19 2% $ 9,200
Menchville High-2 10/01/00 10/01/20 2% 25,000
Denbigh High-2 08/01/01 08/01/21 2% 36,797
Gildersleeve Middle-2 08/15/01 08/15/21 2% 18,750
Dozier Middle 08/15/01 08/15/21 2% 18,750
Reservoir Middle 05/01/02 05/01/22 2% 18,750
Hines Middle 05/01/02 05/01/22 2% 18,750
Huntington Middle-2 09/01/02 09/01/22 2% 27,134
General Stanford 06/30/07 07/15/27 2% 3,186,155

Totals $ 3,359,286

The following table summarizes future debt service requirements as of June 30, 2019:

Literary Loans

Fiscal year ending June 30: Principal Interest

2020 $ 419,767 67,186
2021 410,567 58,791
2022 398,066 50,578
2023 360,803 42,618
2024 354,018 35,402
2025-2029 1,416,065 70,803

Total future debt service $ 3,359,286 325,378
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Business-type Activities

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for capital-related, business-type activities for the year ended June 30,
2019 is as follows:

Balance

July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions

Balance

June 30, 2019

Due within

one year

Bonds payable:
General obligation bonds $ 50,010,000 - (10,750,000) 39,260,000 9,025,000
Revenue bonds 55,237,698 - (1,257,698) 53,980,000 2,425,000
Deferred amounts:

Add bond premiums 11,352,689 - (1,455,102) 9,897,587 1,330,144

Total bonds payable 116,600,387 - (13,462,800) 103,137,587 12,780,144

Net pension liability 37,182,093 3,393,496 (5,477,019) 35,098,570 -
Net OPEB liability 11,055,462 989,183 (2,029,006) 10,015,639 -
Net OPEB liability-GLI 273,840 116,040 (80,340) 309,540 -
Deposits 4,668,902 2,223,076 (1,897,362) 4,994,616 -

Total long-term liabilities $ 169,780,684 6,721,795 (22,946,527) 153,555,952 12,780,144

Outstanding public utility bonds at June 30, 2019 are comprised of the following issues:

Public Utility Bond Series Issue date
Final maturity

date
Interest rate (at

issue)
Balance

June 30, 2019

2007B 04/05/07 07/01/22 %5.1 $ 12,845,000
2009B 05/06/09 09/01/29 %4.3 2,530,000
2012A 03/21/12 07/15/24 %1.9 5,135,000
2012B 03/21/12 07/15/19 %1.4 2,560,000
2014A 05/22/14 07/15/27 %2.5 16,190,000
2016A-IRB 06/02/16 06/30/37 %2.7 26,350,000
2017A-IRB 05/31/17 06/30/38 %2.6 27,630,000

Totals $ 93,240,000

The following table summarizes future debt service requirements of Business-type Activities as of June 30, 2019:

Business-type Activities

Fiscal year ending June 30: Principal Interest

2020 $ 11,450,000 3,993,884
2021 9,065,000 3,557,269
2022 9,485,000 3,091,875
2023 7,095,000 2,700,525
2024 5,780,000 2,402,600
2025-2029 22,755,000 8,206,900
2030-2034 15,665,000 4,071,225
2035-2038 11,945,000 818,325

Totals $ 93,240,000 28,842,603
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Public Schools - Component Unit

A summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the discretely presented component unit – Public Schools for the
year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows:

Balance

July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions

Balance

June 30, 2019

Due within

one year

Compensated absences $ 4,933,667 15,388,079 (15,254,241) 5,067,505 760,126

Workers' compensation claims 5,332,395 1,128,380 (1,459,114) 5,001,661 1,000,332

Capital leases payable 1,402,592 - (418,969) 983,623 322,522

Capital facility notes payable 16,517,067 - (844,017) 15,673,050 148,824

OPEB NNPS trust fund 89,334,628 12,121,886 (38,286,813) 63,169,701 -

OPEB VRS health care credit 25,671,000 2,483,000 (2,868,000) 25,286,000 -

OPEB VRS life insurance 13,753,000 2,498,000 (2,528,000) 13,723,000 -

Incurred but not reported medical claims 2,594,000 28,904,270 (28,808,270) 2,690,000 2,690,000

VRS teacher pool net pension liability 248,946,000 47,022,000 (61,654,000) 234,314,000 -

NNERF net pension liability 75,985,892 7,570,333 (11,276,851) 72,279,374 -

Totals $ 484,470,241 117,115,948 (163,398,275) 438,187,914 4,921,804

The capital facility notes payable provided financing for energy performance contract improvements.

The Code of Virginia, Section 22, sets forth the powers and responsibilities of the local school boards. School boards
in Virginia have no taxing authority, but they are authorized to borrow money from the Commonwealth and to sell
local school bonds through the City to the VPSA.

In February 2002, the Virginia General Assembly passed Senate Bill 276, which was subsequently signed by the
Governor of Virginia, that provides that localities have a tenancy in-common with the school board whenever a
locality incurs a financial obligation for school property, which is payable over more than one fiscal year.  As a
result, the City records on its Statement of Net Position any school property that is purchased with City long-term
obligations until the related debt is paid.  However, the Public Schools are still tasked with all care, management, and
control over these properties.

E/IDA and PAC - Component Units

Industrial Revenue Bonds and Notes Payable (the “Bonds and Notes”) have been issued in the name of E/IDA to
finance construction projects.  The Bonds and Notes, both as to principal and interest, are payable generally from
lease proceeds. In the event of default by the lessee, the holders of the Bonds and Notes have no recourse against the
E/IDA, but must look to the property and lessee for indemnity. In 2019, approximately $21.0 million of the Bonds
and Notes are considered a moral obligation of the City. A moral obligation of the City is a contingent guarantee of a
third party’s debt. It is referred to as a “moral” obligation because it is not a legal obligation of the City, but a good
faith obligation, which, if called upon, would require appropriations by City Council of amounts sufficient to pay the
guaranteed amounts.  Since 1995, when the first moral obligation was issued by the E/IDA, there has never been a
need to call upon the City to appropriate any funds on morally obligated debt.

At June 30, 2019, the E/IDA has outstanding bonds and notes from direct borrowings in the amount of $36,774,823.
Significant events of default are the presence of falsifying or misleading information in the financing documents,
assignment without prior consent, or non-payment. The CITI A and B notes are payable from revenues pledged and
derived from leases related to the properties less the E/IDA expenses plus any payments made to the E/IDA pursuant
to a support agreement with the City. The E/IDA has no lines of credit.
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The E/IDA bonds and Notes at June 30, 2019 are comprised of the following:

Issue

date

Maturity

date

Effective

interest

rates *

Balance

July 1, 2018 Additions Reductions

Balance

June 30, 2019

Amount due

within

one year

Bonds payable

Series 2012A 10/12/12 07/01/30 4.00% $ 25,390,000 - - 25,390,000 1,780,000

Series 2012B 10/12/12 07/01/31 0.76% 21,110,000 - (2,625,000) 18,485,000 1,950,000

Series 2015 07/23/15 09/01/27 3.48% 3,660,000 - (1,140,000) 2,520,000 -

Total bonds payable 50,160,000 - (3,765,000) 46,395,000 3,730,000
Premium on bonds

payable - 2012 2,649,457 - (330,391) 2,319,066 330,391
Premium on bonds

payable - 2015 238,887 - (24,872) 214,015 20,802

Total bonds payable,
net 53,048,344 - (4,120,263) 48,928,081 4,081,193

Direct borrowings:
Bonds payable

VSS 03/01/98 10/01/18 5.40% 257,876 - (257,876) - -

Sears 03/01/98 10/01/18 5.40% 284,132 - (284,132) - -

Downtown Eng 04/05/00 07/01/31 2.58% 12,600,000 - (1,060,000) 11,540,000 1,060,000

Merchant's Walk 12/21/10 12/01/20 2.70% 2,682,000 - (894,000) 1,788,000 894,000

Citi A '07 02/26/07 08/01/22 2.86% v 1,353,321 - (296,978) 1,056,343 318,102

Citi B '07 02/26/07 08/01/22 2.74% v 276,881 - (62,024) 214,857 65,605

A-School Garage 07/23/15 09/01/27 3.80% 9,769,228 - (976,924) 8,792,304 976,924

Foundry Bond 12/18/18 1/15/23 3.40% - 6,000,000 (750,000) 5,250,000 1,500,000

Total direct
borrowing bonds
payable 27,223,438 6,000,000 (4,581,934) 28,641,504 4,814,631

Notes payable:

809 Omni Blvd 08/31/07 07/01/22 3.49% 1,350,000 - (150,015) 1,199,985 150,000

Sherwood note A 11/23/16 01/01/32 3.14% 4,573,334 - (326,667) 4,246,667 326,667

Sherwood note B 11/23/16 01/01/32 3.14% 2,893,333 - (206,666) 2,686,667 206,667

Total direct
borrowing notes
payable 8,816,667 - (683,348) 8,133,319 683,334

Total direct borrowings 36,040,105 6,000,000 (5,265,282) 36,774,823 5,497,965

Total bonds and notes

payable $ 89,088,449 6,000,000 (9,385,545) 85,702,904 9,579,158

* v denotes variable rate
bonds

In December 2018, the E/IDA funded a grant of $6 million to Huntington Ingalls Industries (HII) with a borrowing
from Citizens & Farmers Bank at the rate of 3.40% amortized over five years. The borrowing is supported by a
payment agreement with the City. The Foundry grant was to support the construction, expansion and renovation of
the Foundry by HII who met the criteria of the grant by receiving a share of the work for the Columbia Class
Submarine Program, maintaining 120 full-time jobs within the Foundry and receiving funding commitments from the
Navy and the Commonwealth of Virginia. The grant also serves as a match for the Commonwealth's initial HII grant
of $6 million in October 2018.

Conduit Debt Obligations:  From time to time, the E/IDA has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds (the "Bonds") to
provide financial assistance to private-sector and nonprofit entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial,
commercial and residential facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The Bonds are secured by the property
financed and are payable solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans.  Upon repayment of the
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Bonds, ownership of the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance.  Neither
the City, the Commonwealth, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the
Bonds.  Furthermore, in the event of default by the lessee, the holders of the Bonds have no recourse to the E/IDA,
but must look to the property and lessee for indemnity. Accordingly, the Bonds are not reported as liabilities in the
accompanying basic financial statements. At June 30, 2019 there were thirteen bonds outstanding and at June 30,
2018, there were eleven Bonds outstanding with an aggregate principal balance of $467,257,663 and $472,976,729
million, respectively.

Maturities of industrial revenue bonds and notes payable for succeeding fiscal years are as follows:

Bonds Direct Borrowings Total Bonds and Notes

Fiscal year ending June 30: Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2020 $ 3,730,000 1,626,258 5,497,965 1,140,408 9,227,965 2,766,666
2021 3,910,000 1,531,699 5,524,788 972,013 9,434,788 2,503,712
2022 3,865,000 1,438,407 4,659,285 798,495 8,524,285 2,236,902
2023 3,825,000 1,321,421 4,108,177 629,104 7,933,177 1,950,525
2024 3,795,000 1,202,245 3,930,257 526,338 7,725,257 1,728,583
2025-2029 18,340,000 3,932,395 11,074,351 1,174,473 29,414,351 5,106,868
2030-2032 8,930,000 512,054 1,980,000 91,144 10,910,000 603,198

Totals $46,395,000 11,564,479 36,774,823 5,331,975 83,169,823 16,896,454

The PAC Airport Improvement Bonds at June 30, 2019, are comprised of the following:

Series Issue date Maturity date

Eff. int.

rate (%)

Balance

July 1, 2018 Reductions

Balance

June 30, 2019

Amt due

in one year

2002 07/03/02 07/01/27 2.8 $ 1,197,733 120,211 1,077,522 123,559

2005A 12/15/05 01/15/32 4.3 4,676,272 261,394 4,414,878 271,843

2005B 12/15/05 01/15/32 5.8 2,129,498 121,840 2,007,658 126,361

Totals $ 8,003,503 503,445 7,500,058 521,763

Maturities of bonds payable for succeeding fiscal years are as follows:

PAC

Fiscal year ending June 30: Principal Interest

2020 $ 521,763 291,087
2021 542,207 270,642
2022 563,475 249,375
2023 585,599 227,251
2024 608,615 204,235
2025-2029 3,097,423 650,892
2030-2032 1,580,976 91,898

Totals $ 7,500,058 1,985,380
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(8) Defined Benefit Retirement Plan

(a) Newport News Employees' Retirement Fund (NNERF or Plan)

Plan Description

The Plan is a single-employer, defined benefit, public employee retirement system established and administered by
the City to provide pension benefits for employees of the City and the Newport News School System (Schools). For
personnel employed by Schools, the Plan provides a small supplement to the Virginia Retirement System (VRS)
retirement plan. The Plan has been closed to new entrants since July 1, 2009 for Schools and March 1, 2010 for the
City.  For Schools employees receiving a supplemental benefit under the NNERF, their supplemental benefit was
frozen as of December 31, 2012.

The Plan is a separate fund, the Pension Fund (Pension), is considered a trust fund of the City and is included as a
fiduciary trust fund. The nine voting members of the Retirement Board oversee the operation of the Pension and
OPEB Funds. The City issues a publicly available CAFR that includes financial statements and required information
for the Plan. The report may be obtained by writing to the City of Newport News Finance Department, 2400
Washington Avenue, Newport News, VA 23607 or online at www.nnva.gov/2357/NNERF.

Benefits Provided

All full-time regular employees hired prior to March 1, 2010 for the City and hired prior to July 1, 2009 for Schools
are members of the Pension Fund. Employees hired after the above dates are in VRS, a multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Commonwealth of Virginia.

The Pension Fund provides pension, life insurance and disability benefits. Members vest after five years of credited
service. Employees who retire at or after age 60 (age 50 for public safety officers) with five years of credited service
are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 2.0% of their Average
Final Compensation for each year of credited service worked through February 28, 2010, 1.85% for each year of
credited service from March 1, 2010 through December 31, 2012, and 1.65% for each year of credited service after
January 1, 2013 (for public safety employees, the multiplier remains at 1.85% for time worked after January 1,
2013). Average Final Compensation (AFC) is defined as the average annual compensation earned by a member
during the member’s 36 highest earned consecutive months of credited service. Employees with 30 years credited
service (25 years for public safety) may retire at any age with full benefits. Employees (other than public service
employees) with 25 years of service may retire prior to age 60 and receive a reduced benefit.  City employees in
NNERF began to contribute 5% of their salary to the Plan as of January 1, 2013. Schools employees began
contributing 2% of their pay effective July 1, 2013 and contribute the full 5% of their pay effective July 1, 2014.

Benefits and contribution provisions are established by City Ordinance and may be amended only by the City
Council. An actuarial service is employed to advise the City Council and the Retirement Board of Trustees of the
contributions necessary to fund the Plan benefits.

Employees with at least five years of credited service are eligible to purchase all or part of certain prior service
credits, and “non-qualified time”, subject to IRS limits. The types of prior service eligible include time employed
under other government programs and military service.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

City membership as of the valuation date in the plan consisted of:

July 1, 2017
Participant

counts

Active members 2,168
Retirees and beneficiaries 6,184
Terminated vested members 4,638

Total 12,990

Contributions Required and Contributions Made

The Plan engages an actuary to determine the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC) in accordance with
GAAP. However, the City has elected to continue to compute the Actuarially Required Contribution (ARC) in order
to track its progress on the eight-year funding program established by the City in 2010, which was put in place to
provide that, by 2017, the City would be contributing 100% of the recommended contribution. The City began
funding 100% of the ADC beginning in fiscal year 2016, one year earlier than planned. The total contributions as a
percentage of the ARC was 100% for fiscal year 2019.

Effective January 1, 2013, employee contributions to the Pension were made mandatory. Contributions totaling
$40,853,742 and $5,530,796 were made by employers and employees, respectively, to the Pension Fund during the
year ended June 30, 2019.  The percentage of contributions to covered payroll for fiscal year 2019 was 39.4%.

Net Pension Liability

The City’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018. The total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of July 1, 2017, using an updated
actuarial assumption, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date
of June 30, 2018.

Actuarial Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the City and Plan members) and
include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City
and the Plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and
assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial valuation date July 1, 2017
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization method Closed
Remaining amortization period 30 years level dollar from July 1, 2011
Asset valuation method Five-year smoothed market
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.35%
Rate of salary increases 4.60%
Cost of living adjustment 1.26%
Inflation 2.60%
Rate of mortality RP-2014 Total Dataset Headcount-Weighted Employee

Mortality Table projected from the 2006 base rates using the
RPEC 2016 model
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Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on NNERF investments was determined using best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation),
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The annual money-weighted rate of return net of investment fees for fiscal year 2018 was 9.92%. Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2018 are summarized in the following table:

Asset class
Long-term expected

real rate of return
Target

allocation

Large cap equities 4.6% 24.0%
Mid cap equities 8.4% 14.0%
Small cap equities 6.3% 12.0%
International equities 3.5% 12.0%
Emerging markets 7.9% 4.0%
Real estate 6.5% 4.0%
Private equities 10.1% 6.0%
Timberland 3.6% 8.0%
Fixed income (bonds) 1.8% 15.0%
Cash (2.8)% 1.0%

Total 100.0%

Discount Rate and Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.35%. 

In developing the projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate, the actuaries have assumed that the
employer contributions will continue to follow the written contribution policy.  The City’s contribution rate is the
sum of the normal cost rate plus amortization of the Plan’s unfunded liability plus a provision for expenses. The
normal cost rate is determined under the entry age actuarial cost method while the UAL rate is that necessary to pay
down the UAL with a thirty year closed amortization with level dollar payments as of July 1, 2011.  The actuaries
also assume that member contributions will continue to be made at the rates specified in the Plan.

Based on these assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments for current members until the last payment for the current covered population is made as of
June 30, 2018 measurement date. Consequently, the single equivalent rate used to determine the total pension
liability as of June 30, 2018 is 7.35%, the long-term expected rate-of-return as defined by GAAP as of that date.

The following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.35%, as well as
what the City’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent point
lower (6.35%) or one percent point higher (8.35%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
6.35%

Discount rate
7.35%

1% Increase
8.35%

Total pension liability $ 1,495,492,268 1,344,247,663 1,217,152,479
Plan fiduciary net position 957,749,902 957,749,902 957,749,902

Net pension liability $ 537,742,366 386,497,761 259,402,577

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability %64.0 %71.2 %78.7

Detailed information about the pension plan is available in the separately issued NNERF financial report.
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability

The City’s change in net pension liability of the Pension Fund for 2018 was as follows:

Fiduciary net position

Total pension

liability (a) City's (b) Proprietary's (b) School's (b)

Net position

liability (a)-(b)

Balances at June 30, 2017 $ 1,308,437,308 $ 626,501,085 $ 69,726,519 $ 203,205,885 $ 409,003,819
Changes for the year:

Service cost 8,497,193 - - - 8,497,193
Interest 95,861,994 - - - 95,861,994
Differences between expected and actual

experience 17,695,138 - - - 17,695,138
Changes of assumptions (7,267,035) - - - (7,267,035)
Contributions - employer - 29,393,174 3,696,113 7,611,499 (40,700,786)
Contributions - member - 4,173,575 524,816 1,080,767 (5,779,158)
Net investment income - 66,327,672 8,340,542 17,175,852 (91,844,066)
Benefit payments (78,976,935) (57,035,326) (7,172,053) (14,769,556) -
Administrative expenses - (744,321) (93,596) (192,745) 1,030,662

Net changes 35,810,355 42,114,774 5,295,822 10,905,817 (22,506,058)

Balances at June 30, 2018 $ 1,344,247,663 $ 668,615,859 $ 75,022,341 $ 214,111,702 $ 386,497,761

The following schedule includes the proportionate shares of employer contributions of net pension liability by
Activities:

Activities Contributions Net pension liability Proportionate share

Governmental activities $ 29,393,174 279,119,817 %72.22
Business-type activities 3,696,113 35,098,570 %9.08
Component unit - Schools 7,611,499 72,279,374 %18.70

Total $ 40,700,786 386,497,761 %100.00

Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City and Schools recognized pension expense of $37,804,098. At June 30,
2019, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

Governmental activities Business-type activities

Total activities - Primary

Government Component unit - Schools

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Employer contributions

subsequent to

measurement date $28,711,291 - 3,544,184 - 32,255,475 - 8,598,267 -

Net difference between
projected and actual
earnings on pension plan
investments $ - 13,092,364 - 1,646,329 - 14,738,693 - 3,390,329

$32,255,475 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City’s contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension Liability in the Fiscal Year
ending June 30, 2020.
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follow:

Primary
Government Schools

Year ended June 30:
2020 $ 4,272,837 $ 982,877
2021 (1,711,497) (393,694)
2022 (13,134,096) (3,021,225)
2023 (4,165,937) (958,287)

$ (14,738,693) $ (3,390,329)

Schedules of Employer Contributions, Changes in the City’s Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, and Schedule
of City contributions are included in the Required Supplemental Information Section. 

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2019, the City did not have a payable to the pension plan.

(b) Virginia Retirement System

Plan Description

The City and PAC contribute to the VRS, an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the VRS.  Those hired between July 1, 2009 and June 30, 2010 are under the provisions of Plan 1, those hired
between July 1, 2010 and December 31, 2013 are under the provisions of Plan 2 and those hired on or after January
1, 2014 are under the provision of the hybrid plan.

The Schools contribute to the VRS, which administers two plans – an agent multiple employer plan and a cost-
sharing teachers multiple-employer defined benefit plan. VRS administers an agent multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan for all School Board non-professional employees hired on or after July 1, 2009. Those hired
between July 1, 2009 and June 30, 2010 are under the provisions of Plan 1, those hired between July 1, 2010 and
December 31, 2013 are under the provisions of Plan 2 and those hired on or after January 1, 2014 are under the
provisions of the hybrid plan. The Schools information is not included in this report, but can be obtained from the
School’s Web site at http://sbo.nn.k12.va.us/budget/CAFR.pdf.

Benefits Provided

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of participating employers must participate in the VRS. As of March 1,
2010, the City closed NNERF to new membership. All full-time employees hired after February 28, 2010 participate
in the VRS. Benefits vest after five years of service. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they
are employed and for which they and their employer pay contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase
prior service, based on specific criteria as defined in the Code of Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service that
may be purchased includes prior public service, active military service, certain periods of leave and previously
refunded VRS service.

VRS issues a publicly available CAFR that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
the plans administered by VRS.  A copy of the report may be obtained from the VRS Web site at
http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2018-annual-report.pdf or by writing to the System’s Chief Financial
Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500. 

VRS administers three different benefit structures for local government employees – Plan 1, Plan 2, and Hybrid.
Each of these benefit structures has different eligibility criteria. The specific information for each plan and the
eligibility for covered groups within each plan are set out in the following table:
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ƐƚĂƌƚ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀŝŶŐ�ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ͕�
ƌĞĨůĞĐƚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͕�
ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�ŐĂŝŶƐ�Žƌ�ůŽƐƐĞƐ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ĂŶǇ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ĨĞĞƐ͘�

�

�

�ůŝŐŝďůĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�
�ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĚĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ͕�
ϮϬϭϬ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�
:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϯ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ŶŽƚ�ƚĂŬĞŶ�Ă�ƌĞĨƵŶĚ͘��
�
�
,ǇďƌŝĚ�KƉƚͲ/Ŷ��ůĞĐƚŝŽŶ��
sZ^�ŶŽŶͲŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�ĚƵƚǇ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�
WůĂŶ�ϭ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ƚŽ�
ŵĂŬĞ�ĂŶ�ŝƌƌĞǀŽĐĂďůĞ�ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�
ŽƉƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
WůĂŶ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�Ă�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�ĞůĞĐƚŝŽŶ�
ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ŚĞůĚ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�
�Ɖƌŝů�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϰ͘��

�

�ůŝŐŝďůĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�
�ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĚĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ŽŶ�Žƌ�ĂĨƚĞƌ�
:ƵůǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϬ͕�Žƌ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�
ĚĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϬ͕�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�
:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϯ͘��
�
,ǇďƌŝĚ�KƉƚͲ/Ŷ��ůĞĐƚŝŽŶ��
�ůŝŐŝďůĞ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁĞƌĞ�
ĂůůŽǁĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ĂŶ�ŝƌƌĞǀŽĐĂďůĞ�
ĚĞĐŝƐŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�ŽƉƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�
ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�Ă�ƐƉĞĐŝĂů�
ĞůĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ŚĞůĚ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ�
ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ��Ɖƌŝů�ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϰ͘��
�

�

�ůŝŐŝďůĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�
�ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�
ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐŚŝƉ�ĚĂƚĞ�ŝƐ�ŽŶ�Žƌ�ĂĨƚĞƌ�
:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϰ͘�dŚŝƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ͗��
ͻ�WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐΎ��
ͻ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŝŶ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�Žƌ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�
ǁŚŽ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŽƉƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉůĂŶ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�ĞůĞĐƚŝŽŶ�
ǁŝŶĚŽǁ�ŚĞůĚ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭͲ�Ɖƌŝů�
ϯϬ͕�ϮϬϭϰ͖�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ͛Ɛ�ĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�
ĚĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƉƚͲŝŶ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁĂƐ�
:ƵůǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϰ�
��

ΎEŽŶͲ�ůŝŐŝďůĞ�DĞŵďĞƌƐ��
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�
dŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ͛Ɛ�
ĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ĚĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŽƉƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ǁĂƐ�:ƵůǇ�
ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϰ͘��
�
/Ĩ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�
ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞůĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�
ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŽƉƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�
ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ͘��
�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�
ĂŶ�ŽƉƚŝŽŶĂů�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ�
;KZWͿ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂĚ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ƵŶĚĞƌ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�
ĞůĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�
ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�Žƌ�KZW͘�

dŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ͛Ɛ�
ĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�ĚĂƚĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŽƉƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ǁĂƐ�:ƵůǇ�
ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϰ͘��
�
/Ĩ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�
ƌĞƚƵƌŶĞĚ�ƚŽ�ǁŽƌŬ�ĚƵƌŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞůĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ǁŝŶĚŽǁ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĂůƐŽ�
ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ŽƉƚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�
ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ͘��
�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ǁĞƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�
ĂŶ�ŽƉƚŝŽŶĂů�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ�
;KZWͿ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ƵŶĚĞƌ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�ǁĞƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�
ĞůĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�
ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŵĂŝŶ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�Žƌ�KZW͘�

^ŽŵĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŶŽƚ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�
ƚŽ�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�
ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ͘�dŚĞǇ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ͗��
ͻ�WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ďǇ�
ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�
ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ��

�
dŚŽƐĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�
ŽƉƚŝŽŶĂů�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƉůĂŶ�;KZWͿ�
ŵƵƐƚ�ĞůĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�KZW�ƉůĂŶ�Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�
,ǇďƌŝĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ͘�/Ĩ�ƚŚĞƐĞ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŚĂǀĞ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ƵŶĚĞƌ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�Žƌ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ͕�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�
ŶŽƚ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ĞůĞĐƚ�ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�
ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�ĂŶĚ�ŵƵƐƚ�ƐĞůĞĐƚ�
WůĂŶ�ϭ�Žƌ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�;ĂƐ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞͿ�Žƌ�
KZW͘�
�

�

ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�
�ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚĞ�ϱй�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŵŽŶƚŚ�ƚŽ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�Ă�ƉƌĞͲƚĂǆ�ƐĂůĂƌǇ�
ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ͘�DĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�
ĂƌĞ�ƚĂǆͲĚĞĨĞƌƌĞĚ�ƵŶƚŝů�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�
ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁŶ�ĂƐ�ƉĂƌƚ�ŽĨ�Ă�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�Žƌ�ĂƐ�Ă�ƌĞĨƵŶĚ͘�
dŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ŵĂŬĞƐ�Ă�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞ�
ĂĐƚƵĂƌŝĂůůǇ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞĚ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ƚŽ�sZ^�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�
ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͘�sZ^�ŝŶǀĞƐƚƐ�
ďŽƚŚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ�
ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ƉĂǇŵĞŶƚ͘�
�

�

ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘�
�

�

ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�
��ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ŝƐ�
ĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƚŚƌŽƵŐŚ�ŵĂŶĚĂƚŽƌǇ�ĂŶĚ�
ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ďǇ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�
ƚŽ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ĂŶĚ�
ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚƐ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ͘�
DĂŶĚĂƚŽƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂƌĞ�
ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞ͛Ɛ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�
ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�ĂƌĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ďŽƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ͘��ĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂůůǇ͕�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�
ŵĂǇ�ĐŚŽŽƐĞ�ƚŽ�ŵĂŬĞ�ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉůĂŶ͕�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ŝƐ�
ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ƚŽ�ŵĂƚĐŚ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�
ǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌǇ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�
ĂĐĐŽƌĚŝŶŐ�ƚŽ�ƐƉĞĐŝĨŝĞĚ�
ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞƐ͘�
�

�

�ƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
�ƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĞĂƌŶ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�

�

�ƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘�

�

�ƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ��
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ��ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
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ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�ŵŽŶƚŚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘�
/ƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ŵĂǇ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ĨŽƌ�
ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŚĂƐ�
ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ�Žƌ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�
ǁĂƐ�ŐƌĂŶƚĞĚ͘���ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ�ƚŽƚĂů�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝƐ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ĞůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�
ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ͘�/ƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ŵĂǇ�ĐŽƵŶƚ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚ�
ĞůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ŝŶ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ŽĨĨĞƌƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�
ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ͘�

hŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�
ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ͕�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĞĂƌŶ�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĞĂĐŚ�
ŵŽŶƚŚ�ƚŚĞǇ�ĂƌĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĚ�ŝŶ�Ă�
ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ƉŽƐŝƚŝŽŶ͘�/ƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ŵĂǇ�
ŝŶĐůƵĚĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŚĂƐ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ�Žƌ�
ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƚŚĞ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ǁĂƐ�ŐƌĂŶƚĞĚ͘���
ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ�ƚŽƚĂů�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝƐ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�
ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĞůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ͘�/ƚ�ĂůƐŽ�ŵĂǇ�
ĐŽƵŶƚ�ƚŽǁĂƌĚ�ĞůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�ŝŶ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͕�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�
ŽĨĨĞƌƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚ͘��
�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�
�ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
hŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͕�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝƐ�
ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�ǀĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
ƉŽƌƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ͘�
�

�

sĞƐƚŝŶŐ�
sĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ůĞŶŐƚŚ�ŽĨ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�
ƋƵĂůŝĨǇ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ͘�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ďĞĐŽŵĞ�
ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�
ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�;ϲϬ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͿ�ŽĨ�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�sĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ŵĞĂŶƐ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƋƵĂůŝĨǇ�
ĨŽƌ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞǇ�ŵĞĞƚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉůĂŶ͘�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŵƵƐƚ�ďĞ�
ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�Ă�ĨƵůů�ƌĞĨƵŶĚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
ĂĐĐŽƵŶƚ�ďĂůĂŶĐĞ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞǇ�ůĞĂǀĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƋƵĞƐƚ�Ă�
ƌĞĨƵŶĚ͘��

�

sĞƐƚŝŶŐ�
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘ 

�

sĞƐƚŝŶŐ�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ��ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ǀĞƐƚŝŶŐ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�
ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ůĞŶŐƚŚ�ŽĨ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�Ă�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�ƋƵĂůŝĨǇ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�
ĨƵƚƵƌĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ͘�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�
ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞǇ�ƌĞĂĐŚ�ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�;ϲϬ�
ŵŽŶƚŚƐͿ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�
WůĂŶ�ϭ�Žƌ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�
ůĞĂƐƚ�ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�;ϲϬ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͿ�ŽĨ�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ǁŚŽ�ŽƉƚĞĚ�
ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�,ǇďƌŝĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�
ƌĞŵĂŝŶ�ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͘��
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�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂůǁĂǇƐ�ϭϬϬй�
ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ƚŚĞǇ�ŵĂŬĞ͘�

�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�
�ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ǀĞƐƚŝŶŐ�
ƌĞĨĞƌƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŝŶŝŵƵŵ�ůĞŶŐƚŚ�ŽĨ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŶĞĞĚƐ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�
ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ͘�
�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĂůǁĂǇƐ�ϭϬϬй�
ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŚĂƚ�
ƚŚĞǇ�ŵĂŬĞ͘��
�
hƉŽŶ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�Žƌ�ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ�
ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�
ŝƐ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁ�Ă�
ƉĞƌĐĞŶƚĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ƉůĂŶ͕�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘��
ͻ��ĨƚĞƌ�ƚǁŽ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŝƐ�
ϱϬй�ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂǇ�ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁ�
ϱϬй�ŽĨ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘��
ͻ��ĨƚĞƌ�ƚŚƌĞĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�
ŝƐ�ϳϱй�ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�ŵĂǇ�
ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁ�ϳϱй�ŽĨ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘��
ͻ��ĨƚĞƌ�ĨŽƵƌ�Žƌ�ŵŽƌĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ͕�Ă�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŝƐ�ϭϬϬй�ǀĞƐƚĞĚ�ĂŶĚ�
ŵĂǇ�ǁŝƚŚĚƌĂǁ�ϭϬϬй�ŽĨ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘��
�

�ŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞĚ�ďǇ�
ůĂǁ�ƵŶƚŝů�ĂŐĞ�ϳϬЪ͘��
�

�

�ĂůĐƵůĂƚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ�
dŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ŝƐ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞĚ�
ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�Ă�ĨŽƌŵƵůĂ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĨŝŶĂů�
ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ͕�Ă�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ŵƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŽƚĂů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ�
Ăƚ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͘�/ƚ�ŝƐ�ŽŶĞ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ƉĂǇŽƵƚ�ŽƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�
ƚŽ�Ă�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�Ăƚ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ͘�

�
�ĂůĐƵůĂƚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ�
^ĞĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶŝƚŝŽŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘�
�
�

�

�ĂůĐƵůĂƚŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ��ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
^ĞĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶŝƚŝŽŶ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�
�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
�ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
dŚĞ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ŝƐ�ďĂƐĞĚ�ŽŶ�
ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĂŶĚ�ĂŶǇ�ŵĂƚĐŚŝŶŐ�
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�
�Ŷ�ĞĂƌůǇ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ƌĞĚƵĐƚŝŽŶ�
ĨĂĐƚŽƌ�ŝƐ�ĂƉƉůŝĞĚ�ƚŽ�ƚŚĞ��ĂƐŝĐ�
�ĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ŝĨ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞƐ�
ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�Žƌ�ƐĞůĞĐƚƐ�Ă�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�
ƉĂǇŽƵƚ�ŽƉƚŝŽŶ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƚŚĞ�
�ĂƐŝĐ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ͘�
�

ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ŵĂĚĞ�ďǇ�ƚŚĞ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ͕�ƉůƵƐ�ŶĞƚ�ŝŶǀĞƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
ĞĂƌŶŝŶŐƐ�ŽŶ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ĐŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ͘�
�
�

�

�ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�&ŝŶĂů��ŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�
��ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĨŝŶĂů�
ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ϯϲ�ĐŽŶƐĞĐƵƚŝǀĞ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ŽĨ�
ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�
ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞ͘�
�

�

�ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�&ŝŶĂů��ŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�
��ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ĨŝŶĂů�
ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ŝƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĂǀĞƌĂŐĞ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞŝƌ�ϲϬ�ĐŽŶƐĞĐƵƚŝǀĞ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐ�ŽĨ�
ŚŝŐŚĞƐƚ�ĐŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂƐ�Ă�
ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞ͘�

�

�ǀĞƌĂŐĞ�&ŝŶĂů��ŽŵƉĞŶƐĂƚŝŽŶ�
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ͘�/ƚ�ŝƐ�ƵƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĨŽƌŵƵůĂ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�
ƚŚĞ�ƉůĂŶ͘�

�

^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�DƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�
sZ^͗��dŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�ŝƐ�
Ă�ĨĂĐƚŽƌ�ƵƐĞĚ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽƌŵƵůĂ�ƚŽ�
ĚĞƚĞƌŵŝŶĞ�Ă�ĨŝŶĂů�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ͘�dŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�
ĨŽƌ�ŶŽŶͲŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�ĚƵƚǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�
ŝƐ�ϭ͘ϳϬй͘��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
^ŚĞƌŝĨĨƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ũĂŝů�
ƐƵƉĞƌŝŶƚĞŶĚĞŶƚƐ͗��dŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ŵƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�ĨŽƌ�ƐŚĞƌŝĨĨƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ƌĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ũĂŝů�ƐƵƉĞƌŝŶƚĞŶĚĞŶƚƐ�ŝƐ�
ϭ͘ϴϱй͘��
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗��dŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ŵƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�ŽĨ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƉŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�
ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�ĚƵƚǇ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ƐŚĞƌŝĨĨƐ�
ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ũĂŝů�ƐƵƉĞƌŝŶƚĞŶĚĞŶƚƐ�
ŝƐ�ϭ͘ϳϬй�Žƌ�ϭ͘ϴϱй�ĂƐ�ĞůĞĐƚĞĚ�ďǇ�
ƚŚĞ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌ͘�
�

�

^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�DƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�
sZ^͗��^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ĞĂƌŶĞĚ͕�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ�Žƌ�ŐƌĂŶƚĞĚ�
ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƚŽ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϯ͘�&Žƌ�ŶŽŶͲ
ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�ĚƵƚǇ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ƚŚĞ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�ŝƐ�ϭ͘ϲϱй�ĨŽƌ�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĞĂƌŶĞĚ͕�
ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ�Žƌ�ŐƌĂŶƚĞĚ�ŽŶ�Žƌ�ĂĨƚĞƌ�
:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϯ͘�
�
�
�
�
�
^ŚĞƌŝĨĨƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ũĂŝů�
ƐƵƉĞƌŝŶƚĞŶĚĞŶƚƐ͗��^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�
ϭ͘�
�
�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗��^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘��

�

^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�DƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ��ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
sZ^͗��dŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ŵƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�
ĨŽƌ�ƚŚĞ�ĚĞĨŝŶĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�
ĐŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ�ŝƐ�ϭ͘ϬϬй͘�
�
&Žƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ŽƉƚĞĚ�ŝŶƚŽ�ƚŚĞ�
,ǇďƌŝĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�ĨƌŽŵ�
WůĂŶ�ϭ�Žƌ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ͕�ƚŚĞ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ�
ŵƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌƐ�ĨŽƌ�ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƉůĂŶƐ�ǁŝůů�ďĞ�
ƵƐĞĚ�ƚŽ�ĐĂůĐƵůĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ĨŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚŽƐĞ�ƉůĂŶƐ͘��
�
^ŚĞƌŝĨĨƐ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞŐŝŽŶĂů�ũĂŝů�
ƐƵƉĞƌŝŶƚĞŶĚĞŶƚƐ͗��EŽƚ�
ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ͘�
�
�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗��EŽƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ͘�
�
�
�
�
�
�
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�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
�ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
EŽƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ͘�
�

�

EŽƌŵĂů�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞ�
sZ^͗���ŐĞ�ϲϱ͘�
�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗���ŐĞ�ϲϬ͘�
�

�

EŽƌŵĂů�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞ�
sZ^͗��EŽƌŵĂů�^ŽĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŐĞ͘�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗��^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘�
�

�

EŽƌŵĂů�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ŐĞ�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ��ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
sZ^͗��^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ͘�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗��EŽƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ͘�
�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
�ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�
ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƵƉŽŶ�ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�
ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘��
�

�

�ĂƌůŝĞƐƚ�hŶƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�
ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�
sZ^͗���ŐĞ�ϲϱ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ĨŝǀĞ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�;ϲϬ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͿ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�Žƌ�Ăƚ�ĂŐĞ�ϱϬ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�
ϯϬ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�
�
�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗���ŐĞ�ϲϬ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�
ůĞĂƐƚ�ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�Žƌ�ĂŐĞ�ϱϬ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�Ϯϱ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�
�
�

�

�ĂƌůŝĞƐƚ�hŶƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�
ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�
sZ^͗��EŽƌŵĂů�^ŽĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŐĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ĨŝǀĞ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�;ϲϬ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͿ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�Žƌ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĞƋƵĂů�ϵϬ͘�
�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗��^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘�
�
�
�
�
�

�

�ĂƌůŝĞƐƚ�hŶƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�
ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��ůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ��ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
sZ^͗��EŽƌŵĂů�^ŽĐŝĂů�^ĞĐƵƌŝƚǇ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂǀĞ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�
ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�;ϲϬ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͿ�ŽĨ�
ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�Žƌ�ǁŚĞŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�
ĂŐĞ�ĂŶĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĞƋƵĂů�ϵϬ͘�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗��EŽƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ͘�
�
�
�
�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
�ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�
ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƵƉŽŶ�ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�
ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘��
�

�

�ĂƌůŝĞƐƚ�ZĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
�ůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�
sZ^͗���ŐĞ�ϱϱ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ĨŝǀĞ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�;ϲϬ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͿ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�

�

�ĂƌůŝĞƐƚ�ZĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
�ůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�

�

�ĂƌůŝĞƐƚ�ZĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
�ůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ��ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
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ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�Žƌ�ĂŐĞ�ϱϬ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ϭϬ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�
�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗��ϱϬ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�
ĨŝǀĞ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�
�
�

sZ^͗���ŐĞ�ϲϬ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ĨŝǀĞ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�;ϲϬ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͿ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗��^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘�
�
�
�

sZ^͗���ŐĞ�ϲϬ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ĨŝǀĞ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�;ϲϬ�ŵŽŶƚŚƐͿ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�
�
WŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�ŚĂǌĂƌĚŽƵƐ�
ĚƵƚǇ�ĞŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ͗��EŽƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ͘�
��
�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
�ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞĐĞŝǀĞ�
ĚŝƐƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶƐ�ƵƉŽŶ�ůĞĂǀŝŶŐ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�
ƌĞƐƚƌŝĐƚŝŽŶƐ͘�
�

�
�ŽƐƚͲŽĨͲ>ŝǀŝŶŐ��ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
;�K>�Ϳ�ŝŶ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��
dŚĞ��ŽƐƚͲŽĨͲ>ŝǀŝŶŐ��ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
;�K>�Ϳ�ŵĂƚĐŚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌƐƚ�ϯй�
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��ŽŶƐƵŵĞƌ�WƌŝĐĞ�
/ŶĚĞǆ�ĨŽƌ�Ăůů�hƌďĂŶ��ŽŶƐƵŵĞƌƐ�
;�W/ͲhͿ�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�ĂŶǇ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�;ƵƉ�ƚŽ�ϰйͿ�ƵƉ�ƚŽ�Ă�
ŵĂǆŝŵƵŵ��K>��ŽĨ�ϱй͘�
�
�ůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ͗��
&Žƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĂŶ�
ƵŶƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�Žƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ăƚ�ůĞĂƐƚ�ϮϬ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�ƚŚĞ�
�K>��ǁŝůů�ŐŽ�ŝŶƚŽ�ĞĨĨĞĐƚ�ŽŶ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ�
ĂĨƚĞƌ�ŽŶĞ�ĨƵůů�ĐĂůĞŶĚĂƌ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĨƌŽŵ�
ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĚĂƚĞ͘��
�
&Žƌ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ă�
ƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ĂŶĚ�ǁŚŽ�ŚĂǀĞ�
ůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĂŶ�ϮϬ�ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�
ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�ƚŚĞ��K>��ǁŝůů�ŐŽ�ŝŶƚŽ�
ĞĨĨĞĐƚ�ŽŶ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ�ĂĨƚĞƌ�ŽŶĞ�
ĐĂůĞŶĚĂƌ�ǇĞĂƌ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ƚŚĞ�
ƵŶƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĞůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�
ĚĂƚĞ͘�
�
�ǆĐĞƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ��K>���ĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�
�ĂƚĞƐ͗��

�
�ŽƐƚͲŽĨͲ>ŝǀŝŶŐ��ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
;�K>�Ϳ�ŝŶ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��
dŚĞ��ŽƐƚͲŽĨͲ>ŝǀŝŶŐ��ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
;�K>�Ϳ�ŵĂƚĐŚĞƐ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŝƌƐƚ�Ϯй�
ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞ��W/Ͳh�ĂŶĚ�ŚĂůĨ�ŽĨ�
ĂŶǇ�ĂĚĚŝƚŝŽŶĂů�ŝŶĐƌĞĂƐĞ�;ƵƉ�ƚŽ�
ϮйͿ͕�ĨŽƌ�Ă�ŵĂǆŝŵƵŵ��K>��ŽĨ�ϯй͘��
�
�
�
�ůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ͗��
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�ǆĐĞƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ��K>���ĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�
�ĂƚĞƐ͗��
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘��

�
�ŽƐƚͲŽĨͲ>ŝǀŝŶŐ��ĚũƵƐƚŵĞŶƚ�
;�K>�Ϳ�ŝŶ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ��
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ��ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ͘�
�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
�ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
EŽƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ͘�
�
�
�ůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ͗��
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�ĂŶĚ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ͘�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�ǆĐĞƉƚŝŽŶƐ�ƚŽ��K>���ĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�
�ĂƚĞƐ͗��
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�ĂŶĚ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ͘�
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dŚĞ��K>��ŝƐ�ĞĨĨĞĐƚŝǀĞ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ�
ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ŽŶĞ�ĨƵůů�ĐĂůĞŶĚĂƌ�ǇĞĂƌ�
;:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ�ƚŽ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϯϭͿ�
ƵŶĚĞƌ�ĂŶǇ�ŽĨ�ƚŚĞ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�
ĐŝƌĐƵŵƐƚĂŶĐĞƐ͗�
ͻ�dŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ŝƐ�ǁŝƚŚŝŶ�ĨŝǀĞ�
ǇĞĂƌƐ�ŽĨ�ƋƵĂůŝĨǇŝŶŐ�ĨŽƌ�ĂŶ�
ƵŶƌĞĚƵĐĞĚ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�ĂƐ�ŽĨ�:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ͕�ϮϬϭϯ͘�

ͻ�dŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞƐ�ŽŶ�
ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͘��

ͻ�dŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞƐ�ĚŝƌĞĐƚůǇ�
ĨƌŽŵ�ƐŚŽƌƚͲƚĞƌŵ�Žƌ�ůŽŶŐͲƚĞƌŵ�
ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�ƚŚĞ�sŝƌŐŝŶŝĂ�
^ŝĐŬŶĞƐƐ�ĂŶĚ��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�;s^�WͿ͘�

ͻ�dŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�/Ɛ�ŝŶǀŽůƵŶƚĂƌŝůǇ�
ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞĚ�ĨƌŽŵ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�
ĨŽƌ�ĐĂƵƐĞƐ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ƚŚĂŶ�ũŽď�
ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�Žƌ�ŵŝƐĐŽŶĚƵĐƚ�
ĂŶĚ�ŝƐ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞ�ƵŶĚĞƌ�
ƚŚĞ�tŽƌŬĨŽƌĐĞ�dƌĂŶƐŝƚŝŽŶ��Đƚ�
Žƌ�ƚŚĞ�dƌĂŶƐŝƚŝŽŶĂů��ĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ�
WƌŽŐƌĂŵ͘�

ͻ�dŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ�ĚŝĞƐ�ŝŶ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŵĞŵďĞƌ͛Ɛ�ƐƵƌǀŝǀŽƌ�Žƌ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝĐŝĂƌǇ�ŝƐ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�Ă�
ŵŽŶƚŚůǇ�ĚĞĂƚŚͲŝŶͲƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ͘�dŚĞ��K>��ǁŝůů�ŐŽ�ŝŶƚŽ�
ĞĨĨĞĐƚ�ŽŶ�:ƵůǇ�ϭ�ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ŽŶĞ�
ĨƵůů�ĐĂůĞŶĚĂƌ�ǇĞĂƌ�;:ĂŶƵĂƌǇ�ϭ�
ƚŽ��ĞĐĞŵďĞƌ�ϯϭͿ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƚŚĞ�
ĚĂƚĞ�ƚŚĞ�ŵŽŶƚŚůǇ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚ�
ďĞŐŝŶƐ͘�

�

� �

�
�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ��ŽǀĞƌĂŐĞ�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞ�ŽŶ�
ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ŵƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�ŝƐ�ϭ͘ϳй�ŽŶ�Ăůů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�
ƌĞŐĂƌĚůĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ǁŚĞŶ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ĞĂƌŶĞĚ͕�
ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ�Žƌ�ŐƌĂŶƚĞĚ͘�
�

�

�
�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ��ŽǀĞƌĂŐĞ�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ǁŚŽ�ĂƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�
ĐŽŶƐŝĚĞƌĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞ�ŽŶ�
ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ͕�ƚŚĞ�ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�
ŵƵůƚŝƉůŝĞƌ�ŝƐ�ϭ͘ϲϱй�ŽŶ�Ăůů�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�
ƌĞŐĂƌĚůĞƐƐ�ŽĨ�ǁŚĞŶ�ŝƚ�ǁĂƐ�ĞĂƌŶĞĚ͕�
ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞĚ�Žƌ�ŐƌĂŶƚĞĚ͘�
�

�

�
�ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ��ŽǀĞƌĂŐĞ�
�ŵƉůŽǇĞĞƐ�ŽĨ�ƉŽůŝƚŝĐĂů�
ƐƵďĚŝǀŝƐŝŽŶƐ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ�
ĂŶĚ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�ŽƉƚͲŝŶƐͿ�ƉĂƌƚŝĐŝƉĂƚĞ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�sŝƌŐŝŶŝĂ�>ŽĐĂů��ŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�
WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�;s>�WͿ�ƵŶůĞƐƐ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ůŽĐĂů�
ŐŽǀĞƌŶŝŶŐ�ďŽĚǇ�ƉƌŽǀŝĚĞƐ�ĂŶĚ�
ĞŵƉůŽǇĞƌͲƉĂŝĚ�ĐŽŵƉĂƌĂďůĞ�
ƉƌŽŐƌĂŵ�ĨŽƌ�ŝƚƐ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ͘�
�
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,ǇďƌŝĚ�ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�;ŝŶĐůƵĚŝŶŐ�WůĂŶ�
ϭ�ĂŶĚ�WůĂŶ�Ϯ�ŽƉƚͲŝŶƐͿ�ĐŽǀĞƌĞĚ�
ƵŶĚĞƌ�s>�W�ĂƌĞ�ƐƵďũĞĐƚ�ƚŽ�Ă�ŽŶĞͲ
ǇĞĂƌ�ǁĂŝƚŝŶŐ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�ďĞĨŽƌĞ�
ďĞĐŽŵŝŶŐ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ŶŽŶͲǁŽƌŬͲ
ƌĞůĂƚĞĚ�ĚŝƐĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ďĞŶĞĨŝƚƐ͘�
�

�
WƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�WƌŝŽƌ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ŵĂǇ�ďĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�
ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĨƌŽŵ�ƉƌĞǀŝŽƵƐ�
ƉƵďůŝĐ�ĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ͕�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�ĚƵƚǇ�
ŵŝůŝƚĂƌǇ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͕�ĂŶ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚ�
ŽĨ�ůĞĂǀĞ�Žƌ�sZ^�ƌĞĨƵŶĚĞĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
ĂƐ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ŝŶ�ƚŚĞŝƌ�ƉůĂŶ͘�
WƌŝŽƌ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ�ĐŽƵŶƚƐ�
ƚŽǁĂƌĚ�ǀĞƐƚŝŶŐ͕�ĞůŝŐŝďŝůŝƚǇ�ĨŽƌ�
ƌĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�ĂŶĚ�ƚŚĞ�ŚĞĂůƚŚ�
ŝŶƐƵƌĂŶĐĞ�ĐƌĞĚŝƚ͘�KŶůǇ�ĂĐƚŝǀĞ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�
ƉƌŝŽƌ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�DĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂůƐŽ�ŵĂǇ�
ďĞ�ĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ƚŽ�ƉƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ƉĞƌŝŽĚƐ�ŽĨ�
ůĞĂǀĞ�ǁŝƚŚŽƵƚ�ƉĂǇ͘�
�

�
WƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�WƌŝŽƌ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͘�

�

WƵƌĐŚĂƐĞ�ŽĨ�WƌŝŽƌ�^ĞƌǀŝĐĞ�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ĞŶĞĨŝƚ��ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
^ĂŵĞ�ĂƐ�WůĂŶ�ϭ͕�ǁŝƚŚ�ƚŚĞ�
ĨŽůůŽǁŝŶŐ�ĞǆĐĞƉƚŝŽŶƐ͗�

x�,ǇďƌŝĚ�ZĞƚŝƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WůĂŶ�
ŵĞŵďĞƌƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŝŶĞůŝŐŝďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�
ƉŽƌƚĞĚ�ƐĞƌǀŝĐĞ͘�

�
�ĞĨŝŶĞĚ��ŽŶƚƌŝďƵƚŝŽŶ�
�ŽŵƉŽŶĞŶƚ͗�
EŽƚ�ĂƉƉůŝĐĂďůĞ͘�
�
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Number of Employees by Class

City membership as of the valuation date in the plan consisted of:

June 30, 2017
Retirees

and
beneficiaries

Inactive members or their beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 13
Inactive members

Vested 48
Non-vested 335
Active elsewhere in VRS 201

Total inactive members 584
Active members 1,344

Total 1,941

Contributions Made and Contributions Required

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as amended,
but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the Virginia General
Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensation toward their retirement.  Prior to July
1, 2012, all or part of the 5.00% member contribution may have been assumed by the employer.  Beginning July 1,
2012 new employees were required to pay the 5.00% member contribution.  In addition, for existing employees,
employers were required to begin making the employee pay the 5.00% member contribution.  This could be phased
in over a period of up to 5 years and the employer is required to provide a salary increase equal to the amount of the
increase in the employee-paid member contribution.

The City’s contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 5.67% of covered employee
compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017.
This rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by
employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.  Contributions to the
pension plan from the City were $3,470,159 and $3,074,885 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018,
respectively.

Net Pension Asset

The City’s net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2018.  The total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2017, rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2018.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for General Employees was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, using the
Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2018.

Inflation 2.5 percent
Salary increases, including inflation 3.5 percent - 5.35%
Investment rate of return 7.0 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation*
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* Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were found to be
approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment
return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 7.0%. However, since the difference was minimal,
and a more conservative 7.0% investment return assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the
projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be 7.0% to simplify
preparation of pension liabilities. 

Mortality rates: 

Largest 10 – Non-Hazardous Duty : 20% of deaths are assumed to be service related

Pre-Retirement: 

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates at age 81 and older projected with scale BB to
2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates. 

Post-Retirement: 

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with scale BB to
2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90. 

Post-Disablement: 

RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020 males set forward 2 years, 110% of rates;
females 125% of rates.

All Others (Non 10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty: 15% of deaths are assumed to be service related

Pre-Retirement: 

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 81 and older projected with scale BB to
2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates. 

Post-Retirement: 

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with scale BB to
2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded ages 70 to 90.

Post-Disablement: 

RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years, 110% of rates;
females 125% of rates.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016.  Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the
experience study are as follows:
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Largest 10 – Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement healthy,
disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table-RP-2014
projected to 2020

Retirement rates Lowered rates at older ages and changed final
retirement from 70 to 75

Withdrawal rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year
age and service through 9 years of service

Disability rates Lowered rates

Salary scale No change

Line of duty disability Increase rate from 14% to 20%

All Others (Non 10 Largest) – Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement healthy, and
disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table-RP-2014
projected to 2020

Retirement rates Lowered rates at older ages and changed final
retirement from 70 to 75

Withdrawal rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year
age and service through 9 years of service

Disability rates Lowered rates

Salary scale No change

Line of duty disability Increase rate from 14% to 15%

Long-term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined using a log-normal distribution
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension System
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset class (strategy)
Target

allocation
Arithmetic long-term

expected rate of return
Weighted avg long-term
expected rate of return

Public equity 40.00% 4.54% 1.82%
Fixed income 15.00% 0.69% 0.10%
Credit strategies 15.00% 3.96% 0.59%
Real assets 15.00% 5.76% 0.86%
Private equity 15.00% 9.53% 1.43%

Total 100.00% 4.80%

Inflation 2.50%

* Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.30%

* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.30%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the
volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic
projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of
returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 6.83% including expected inflation of
2.50%.
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Discount Rate and Sensitivity of Net Pension Liability to Change in the Discount

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be
made per the VRS Statutes and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy
at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of
Trustees and the member rate. Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by the General Assembly for state and
teacher employer contributions; political subdivisions were also provided with an opportunity to used an alternate
employer contribution rate. For the year ended June 30, 2018, the alternate rate was the employer contribution rate
used in FY 2012 or 90% of the actuarially determined employer contribution rate from the June 30, 2015 actuarial
valuations, whichever was greater. From July 1, 2018 on, participating employers are assumed to contribute 100% of
the actuarially determined contribution rates.  Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.
Therefore, the Long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

The following presents the net pension asset of the City using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the City’s
net pension asset would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00%) or
one percentage point higher (8.00%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
6.00%

Discount rate
7.00%

1% Increase
8.00%

Plan's net pension asset (1,399,030) (8,271,704) (13,640,680)

Detailed information about the PAC and Schools is available in the separately issued financial reports for each entity.

Changes in the Net Pension Asset

The City’s change in net pension asset of the VRS Plan for 2018 was as follows:

Total pension
liability

(a)

City's fiduciary
net position

(b)

Proprietary's
fiduciary net

position
(b)

Net pension
asset

(a)-(b)
Balances at June 30, 2017 $ 25,027,784 30,640,384 2,266,067 (7,878,667)
Changes for the year:

Service cost 5,810,589 - - 5,810,589
Interest 1,732,518 - - 1,732,518
Differences between expected and actual experience 746,189 - - 746,189
Contributions - employer - 2,890,392 184,493 (3,074,885)
Contributions - member - 2,868,909 183,122 (3,052,031)
Net investment income - 2,420,505 154,500 (2,575,005)
Benefit payments (555,062) (521,758) (33,304) -
Administrative expenses - (16,019) (1,023) 17,042
Other changes - (2,393) (153) 2,546

Net changes 7,734,234 7,639,636 487,635 (393,037)

Balances at June 30, 2018 $ 32,762,018 38,280,020 2,753,702 (8,271,704)
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Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized VRS pension expense of $1,607,305. At June 30, 2019, the
City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following
sources:

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total activities

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Employer contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 3,261,950 - 208,209 - 3,470,159 -

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 586,619 469,533 37,444 29,970 624,063 499,503

Changes of assumptions $ - 794,743 - 50,728 - 845,471

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan
investments $ - 411,402 - 26,260 - 437,662

$3,470,159 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City’s contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension Liability in the Fiscal Year
ending June 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to VRS will be
recognized in pension expense in future reporting periods as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2020 $ (229,289)
2021 (303,710)
2022 (507,915)
2023 (175,510)
2024 44,418
Thereafter 13,433

Total $ (1,158,573)

Schedules of Employer Contributions, Changes in the City’s Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios, and Schedule
of City contributions are included in the Required Supplemental Information Section.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2019, the City did not have a payable to the VRS plan.

(9) Other Postemployment Benefits

(a) City of Newport News Other Postemployment Fund

Plan Description

The OPEB Fund provides medical benefits, insurance premium payments and dental insurance to City retirees who
enroll in the programs offered. Schools retirees are not eligible for programs offered by the OPEB Fund, but are
offered different benefits through a separate fund established by Schools on their behalf. Once a retiree has
withdrawn from the OPEB Fund by terminating coverage, they are not allowed to rejoin the plan. Benefits and
contribution provisions are established by City Ordinance and may be amended only by the City Council. An
actuarial service is employed to advise the City Council and the Retirement Board of the contributions necessary to
fund the benefits.
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For reporting purposes, the assets, income and expenses of the OPEB fund were included with the Pension Fund
from FY 2000 – 2007. However, the calculation of the net pension obligation for pension excluded OPEB
contributions.

The OPEB Fund is a separate trust fund and is considered part of the City’s financial reporting entity. The pension
trust issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required information for the
OPEB Fund. This information can be obtained at https://www.nnva.gov/580/Retirement.

Benefits Provided

The City offers health and dental coverage to eligible retirees and their eligible dependents through the OPEB plan.
Effective July 1, 2005, the City’s contribution to retirees’ medical insurance premiums was capped and annually
adjusted with a CPI-based formula. Retirees must have at least 10 years of service to receive a premium contribution.
Those having 25 years or more receive the maximum contribution. At age 65, the retiree’s coverage converts to a
Medicare Advantage insurance program. City participants who were eligible to retire before July 1, 2005 are
provided a life insurance benefit of 50% of salary upon retirement. For participants not eligible to retire before July
1, 2005, the life insurance benefit is 50% of salary at retirement, and is reduced 20% per year after retirement, but
not below $10,000. The life insurance is provided at no cost to retirees.

Benefit provisions for the City are established and amended through the City Council. Since 1958, the City has
allowed employees to continue their health, dental and vision coverage after retirement.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

City membership as of the valuation date in the plan consisted of:

July 1, 2017
Active employees
Count 1,689

Retirees with medical, dental, and/or life coverage
Retirees 1,831
Surviving spouses 208
Non-line of duty disabled retirees 61

Total 2,100

Employees who leave City employment before meeting the age and service requirements for receiving a pension
benefit are not eligible for postemployment benefits.

Contribution Required and Contributions Made

The City does not have a formal funding policy for the OPEB Fund and operates on a pay-as-you-go basis. The City
makes monthly contributions to the OPEB Fund based on anticipated expenditures for the fiscal year, which are not
covered by the retiree contributions to the Fund for their portion of their insurance premiums.

Contributions by the City to the OPEB Fund during the year ended June 30, 2019 totaled $8,240,000. The
percentage of contributions to covered payroll for fiscal year 2019 was 8.9%.

Net OPEB Liability

The City’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018. The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net
OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2017, using an updated actuarial
assumption, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June
30, 2018.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the City and Plan members) and
include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City
and the Plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and
assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Actuarial valuation date July 1, 2017
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization method Level dollar closed
Remaining amortization period 23 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.35%
Rate of salary increases 4.60%
Initial rate of medical inflation 1.26%
Ultimate rate of medical inflation 1.26%
(capped by employer policy)
Inflation 2.60%

Rate of mortality:
Non-retired members:

RP-2014 Total Dataset Headcount-Weighted Employee Mortality Table
projected from the 2006 base rates using the RPEC_2016 model

Retired members:
RP-2014 Total Dataset Headcount-Weighted Annuitant Mortality Table

projected from the 2006 base rates using the RPEC_2016 model

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on NNERF OPEB investments was determined using best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation),
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. The annual money weighted rate of return net of investment fees for fiscal year 2018 was 11.29%. Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the OPEB plan’s target asset
allocation as of June 30, 2018 are summarized in the following table:

Asset class
Long-term expected

real rate of return

Large cap equities 4.6%
Mid cap equities 7.3%
Developed markets equities 3.8%
Emerging markets equities 7.9%
Cash (2.8)%
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Discount Rate and Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.35%.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from the City will be
made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. 

Based on these assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current Plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on Plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 7.35%, as well as
what the City’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent point lower
(6.35%) or one percent point higher (8.35%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
6.35%

Discount rate
7.35%

1% Increase
8.35%

Total OPEB liability $ 128,399,133 116,033,448 105,684,450
Plan fiduciary net position 33,853,845 33,853,845 33,853,845

Net OPEB liability $ 94,545,288 82,179,603 71,830,605

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability %26.4 %29.2 %32.0

Detailed information about the OPEB Plan is available in the separately issued NNERF financial report.

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

Changes in the healthcare trends affect the measurement of the Total OPEB liability (TOL). Lower healthcare trends
produce a lower TOL and higher healthcare trends produce a higher TOL. The table below shows the sensitivity of
the collective NOL to the healthcare trends. Note that the healthcare trend is limited by the City’s cost of living
formula, which is related to the inflation assumption. 

1% Decrease Healthcare trend 1% Increase

Total OPEB liability $ 105,995,714 116,033,448 127,928,366
Plan fiduciary net position 33,853,845 33,853,845 33,853,845

Net OPEB liability 72,141,869 82,179,603 94,074,521

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total OPEB liability %31.9 %29.2 %26.5

A one percent decrease in the healthcare trends decreases the TOL by approximately 9% and decreases the collective
NOL by approximately 12%. A one percent increase in the healthcare trends increases the TOL by approximately
10% and increases the collective NOL by approximately 14%.
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Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

The City’s change in net OPEB liability to the OPEB Fund for 2018 was as follows:

Total OPEB
liability

(a)

City's fiduciary

net position

(b)

Proprietary's

fiduciary net

position

(b)

Net OPEB
liability
(a)-(b)

Balances at June 30, 2017 $ 122,243,009 27,688,621 3,842,905 90,711,483
Changes for the year:

Service cost 519,381 - - 519,381
Interest 8,847,501 - - 8,847,501
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,053,023 - - 1,053,023
Changes of assumptions (7,399,952) - - (7,399,952)
Contributions - employer - 7,235,750 1,004,250 (8,240,000)
Contributions - member - - - -
Net investment income - 2,946,852 408,994 (3,355,846)
Benefit payments (9,229,514) (8,104,667) (1,124,847) -
Administrative expenses - (38,649) (5,364) 44,013

Net changes (6,209,561) 2,039,286 283,033 (8,531,880)

Balances at June 30, 2018 $ 116,033,448 29,727,907 4,125,938 82,179,603

The following schedule includes the proportionate shares of employer contributions of OPEB liability by Activities:

Activities Contributions
Net pension

liability
Proportionate

share

Governmental activities $ 7,235,750 72,163,964 %87.81
Business-type activities 1,004,250 10,015,639 %12.19

Total $ 8,240,000 82,179,603 %100.00

OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2019 the City recognized OPEB expense of $4,613,194. At June 30, 2019, the City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following
sources:

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total activities

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Employer contributions subsequent to

measurement date $ 7,235,750 - 1,004,250 - 8,240,000 -

Differences between expected and actual

experience $ 693,514 - 96,253 - 789,767 -

Changes in assumptions $ - 4,873,562 - 676,402 - 5,549,964

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments $ - 2,509,937 - 348,354 - 2,858,291
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$8,240,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City’s contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net Pension Liability in the Fiscal Year
ending June 30, 2020. 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be
recognized in OPEB expense as follow:

Year ended June 30:
2020 $ (2,470,893)
2021 (2,470,893)
2022 (2,470,896)
2023 (205,806)

$ (7,618,488)

Schedules of Employer Contributions, Changes in the City’s Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and Schedule
of City contributions are included in the Required Supplemental Information Section.

(b) City of Newport News Line of Duty Plan (LOD)

Plan Description

The LOD was established by the 2010 Appropriation Act of the Virginia General Assembly, and provides health,
dental, and vision insurance benefits for public safety employees who are injured in the line of duty.  

Effective July 1, 2017, the Virginia Department of Human Resource Management (DHRM) became responsible for
administration of the premium-free health benefits provided to eligible LODA recipients. All LODA eligible
members and their eligible family members are covered under one State Program, even if the entity previously
elected to not participate in the State LODA Plan.

The Plan is a separate fund, LOD, is considered a trust fund of the City, and is included as a fiduciary trust fund. The
nine voting members of the Retirement Board oversee the operation of the LOD Fund. A formal trust arrangement
was in place as of June 30, 2019.

Benefits Provided

The Virginia Line of Duty Act (LODA) provides benefits to eligible family members of eligible employees and
volunteers killed in the line of duty. In addition, there are benefits for those eligible employees and volunteers who
are disabled in the line of duty and their eligible family members.

For survivors of an individual killed in the line of duty, a one-time death benefit payment to surviving beneficiaries
and premium-free LODA Health Benefits Plans coverage for eligible family members administered by DHRM.  For
disabled individuals and families, premium-free LODA Health Benefits Plans coverage for disabled individuals and
their eligible family members.
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

City membership as of the valuation date in the plan consisted of:

July 1, 2017
Active employees
Count 1,174

Retirees and spouses - with medical coverage
Non medicare eligible 16
Medicare eligible 7

Total 23

With dental coverage 22
With vision coverage 20

Contributions Required and Contributions Made

The Plan is funded on a pay-go basis, so there is no actuarially determined contribution. The City pays all claims and
expenses related to the LOD Plan when incurred.

The actual cost to the City was $323,485 for the year ending June 30, 2019.

Net OPEB Liability

The City’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018. The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net
OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2017, using an updated actuarial
assumption, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June
30, 2018.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the City and Plan members) and
include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City
and the Plan members to that point.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and
assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in the short term. Significant methods and assumptions
were as follows:

Actuarial valuation date July 1, 2017
Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Amortization method Level dollar open
Remaining amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return %3.58
Rate of salary increases %4.60
Ultimate rate of medical inflation %5.00
Inflation %2.60
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Discount Rate and Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.87%.

This Plan uses the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index to satisfy the requirements within GAAP. As this
index is issued weekly, the value closest to but not after the reporting date is used in determining the appropriate
rate. Based on this practice, the municipal bond rate at June 30, 2017 was 3.58% and the municipal bond rate at June
29, 2018 was 3.87%.

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate of 3.87%, as well as
what the City’s net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percent point lower
(2.87%) or one percent point higher (4.87%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
2.87%

Discount rate
3.87%

1% Increase
4.87%

Total OPEB liability $ 9,804,013 8,308,635 7,118,487
Plan fiduciary net position 2,585,054 2,585,054 2,585,054

Net OPEB liability $ 7,218,959 5,723,581 4,533,433

Plan fiduciary net position as a
percentage of the total OPEB liability %26.4 %31.1 %36.3

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in Trend Rates

Changes in the healthcare trends affect the measurement of the TOL. Lower healthcare trends produce a lower TOL
and higher healthcare trends produce a higher TOL. The table below shows the sensitivity of the collective NOL to
the healthcare trends. Note that the healthcare trend is limited by the City’s cost of living formula, which is related to
the inflation assumption.

Trend
minus 1%

Baseline
trends

Trend
plus 1%

Total OPEB liability $ 7,105,178 8,308,635 9,757,744
Plan fiduciary net position 2,585,054 2,585,054 2,585,054

Net OPEB liability $ 4,520,124 5,723,581 7,172,690

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total OPEB liability %36.4 %31.1 %26.5

A one percent decrease in the healthcare trends decreases the TOL by approximately 14% and decreases the NOL by
approximately 21%. A one percent increase in the healthcare trend increases the TOL by approximately 17% and
increases the NOL by approximately 25%.
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Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

The City’s change in net OPEB liability of the LOD Fund for 2018 was as follows:

Total OPEB
liability

(a)

Plan fiduciary
net position

(b)

Net OPEB
liability
(a)-(b)

Balances at June 30, 2017 $ 9,716,974 2,508,498 7,208,476
Changes for the year:

Service cost 1,148,034 - 1,148,034
Interest 383,248 - 383,248
Changes of benefits 905,453 - 905,453
Differences between expected and actual

experience (686,746) - (686,746)
Change of assumptions (2,835,907) - (2,835,907)
Contributions - employer - 300,000 (300,000)
Contributions - member - - -
Net investment income - 104,072 (104,072)
Benefit payments (322,421) (322,421) -
Administrative expenses - (5,095) 5,095

Net changes (1,408,339) 76,556 (1,484,895)

Balances at June 30, 2018 $ 8,308,635 2,585,054 5,723,581

OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized OPEB expense of $1,744,048. At June 30, 2019, the City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following
sources:

Deferred outflows
of resources

Deferred inflows
of resources

Employer contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 300,000 -

Differences between expected and actual experience $ - 610,441

Changes in assumptions $ - 3,556,912

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on OPEB
plan investments $ 164,932 -

$300,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from the City’s contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net OPEB Liability in the Fiscal Year
ending June 30, 2020. Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized
in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2020 $ (514,401)
2021 (514,401)
2022 (514,400)
2023 (548,230)
2024 (564,091)
Thereafter (1,346,898)

Total $ (4,002,421)
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(c) VRS Group Life Insurance Program

Plan Description

The VRS Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program is a multiple employer, cost-sharing plan. It provides coverage to
state employees, teachers, and employees of participating political subdivisions. The GLI Program was established
pursuant to §51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under which
benefit terms are established or may be amended. The GLI Program is a defined benefit plan that provides a basic
group life insurance benefit for employees of participating employers. 

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the state agencies, teachers and employees of participating political
subdivisions are automatically covered by the GLI Program upon employment. This plan is administered by the
VRS, along with pensions and other OBEB plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. 

In addition to the Basic Group Life Insurance benefit, members are also eligible to elect additional coverage for
themselves as well as a spouse or dependent children through the Optional Group Life Insurance Program. For
members who elect the optional group life insurance coverage, the insurer bills employers directly for the premiums.
Employers deduct these premiums from members’ paychecks and pay the premiums to the insurer. Since this is a
separate and fully insured program, it is not included as part of the GLI Program.

Benefits Provided

The specific information for GLI Program, including eligibility, coverage and benefits is set out in the table below:

GLI Program Plan Provisions

Eligible Employees

The GLI Program was established July 1, 1960, for state employees, teachers and employees of political
subdivisions that elect the program, including the following employers that do not participate in VRS for retirement: 

 City of Richmond

 City of Portsmouth

 City of Roanoke

 City of Norfolk

 Roanoke City Schools Board

Basic group life insurance coverage is automatic upon employment. Coverage ends for employees who leave their
position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their accumulated retirement member contributions and
accrued interest. 

Benefit Amounts
The benefits payable under the GLI Program have several components.

 Natural Death Benefit - The natural death benefit is equal to the employee’s covered compensation rounded

to the next highest thousand and then doubled. 

 Accidental Death Benefit - The accidental death benefit is double the natural death benefit.

 Other Benefit Provisions - In addition to the basic natural and accidental death benefits, the program provides

additional benefits provided under specific circumstances. These include:

 Accidental dismemberment benefit

 Safety belt benefit

 Repatriation benefit

 Felonious assault benefit

 Accelerated death benefit option
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Reduction in Benefit Amounts

The benefit amounts provided to members covered under the GLI Program are subject to a reduction factor. The
benefit amount reduces by 25% on January 1 following one calendar year of separation. The benefit amount reduces
by an additional 25% on each subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its original value. 

Minimum Benefit Amount and Cost-of Living Adjustment (COLA)

For covered members with at least 30 years of creditable service, there is a minimum benefit payable under the
Group Life Insurance Program. The minimum benefit was set at $8,000 by statute. This amount is increased
annually based on the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-living adjustment and was increased to $8,279 effective July 1, 2018.

Contributions Required and Contributions Made

The contribution requirements for the GLI Program are governed by §51.1-506 and §51.1-508 of the Code of
Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies and school divisions by
the Virginia General Assembly. The total rate for the GLI Program was 1.31% of covered employee compensation.
This was allocated into an employee and an employer component using a 60/40 split. The employee component was
0.79% (1.31% X 60%) and the employer component was 0.52% (1.31% X 40%). Employers may elect to pay all or
part of the employee contribution, however the employer must pay all of the employer contribution. Each employer’s
contractually required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2019 was 0.52% of covered employee
compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017.
The actuarially determined rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of
benefits payable during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions
by the City to the GLI Program were $370,964 and $335,894 for the years ended June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018,
respectively.

Net GLI OPEB Liability

The net OPEB liability (NOL) for the GLI Program represents the program’s total OPEB liability determined in
accordance with GAAP, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of June 30, 2018, NOL amounts for the GLI
Program are as follows (amounts expressed in thousands): 

Group life
insurance

OPEB program

Total GLI OPEB liability $ 3,113,508
Plan fiduciary net position 1,594,773

Employers' net GLI OPEB liability $ 1,518,735

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total GLI OPEB liability %51.22

The total GLI OPEB liability is calculated by the System’s actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is reported
in the System’s financial statements. The net GLI OPEB liability is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of
GAAP in the System’s notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information. 
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Actuarial Assumptions

The total GLI OPEB liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017, using the Entry Age Normal
actuarial cost method. The following assumptions, which applied to all periods included in the measurement, were
used to roll the valuation forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2018. 

Inflation 2.5%
Salary increases, including inflation -

General state employees 3.5% - 5.35%
Teachers 3.5% - 5.95%
SPORS employees 3.5% - 4.75%
VaLORS employees 3.5% - 4.75%
JRS employees 4.5%
Locality - general employees 3.5% - 5.35%
Locality - hazardous duty employees 3.5% - 4.75%

Investment rate of return 7.0% net of plan investment
expenses, including inflation*

*Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were found to be
approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment
return rate for GAAP purposes of slightly more than the assumed 7.0%. However, since the difference was minimal,
and a more conservative 7.0% investment return assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the
projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be 7.0% to simplify
preparation of the liabilities.

Mortality Rates - Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees

Pre-Retirement: 
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected with Scale BB to 2020;
males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates. 

Post-Retirement: 
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with Scale BB to
2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90. 

Post-Disablement: 
RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Table projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years, 110% of
rates; females 125% of rates. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the
experience study are as follows:

Mortality rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement healthy,
and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014
projected to 2020

Retirement rates Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended
final retirement age from 70 to 75

Withdrawal rates Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at
each age and service year

Disability rates Lowered disability rates

Salary scale No change

Line of Duty Disability Increased rate from 14% to 15%
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Mortality Rates - Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - Hazardous Duty Employees

Pre-Retirement: 
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates to 81 and older projected with Scale BB to 2020;
males 90% of rates; females set forward 1 year.  

Post-Retirement: 
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with Scale BB to
2020; males set forward 1 year with 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90; females set forward 3 years. 

Post-Disablement: 
RP-2014 Disability Life Mortality Table projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years; unisex
using 100% male.  

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016. Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the
experience study are as follows:

Mortality rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement healthy,
and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table - RP-2014
projected to 2020

Retirement rates Increased age 50 rates and lowered rates at older ages

Withdrawal rates Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at
each age and service year

Disability rates Adjusted rates to better match experience

Salary scale No change

Line of Duty Disability Decreased rate from 60% to 45%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on the System’s investments was determined using a log-normal distribution
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of System’s
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic
real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset class (strategy) Target allocation
Arithmetic long-term

expected rate of return
Weighted avg long-term
expected rate of return

Public equity %40.00 %4.54 %1.82
Fixed income %15.00 %0.69 %0.10
Credit strategies %15.00 %3.96 %0.59
Real assets %15.00 %5.76 %0.86
Private equity %15.00 %9.53 %1.43

Total %100.00 %4.80

Inflation %2.50

*Expected arithmetic nominal return %7.30

*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.30%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the
volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic
projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of
returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 6.83%, including expected inflation of
2.50%. 
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total GLI OPEB liability was 7.00%. 

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made
per the VRS guidance and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy and
at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees. Through the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, the rate contributed by employers for the VRS GLI OPEB plan will be subject to
the portion of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly, which was 100% of
the actuarially determined rate. From July 1, 2018 on, employers are assumed to contribute 100% of the actuarially
determined contribution rates. 

Based on those assumptions, the GLI OPEB’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total GLI OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate 

The following presents the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability using the discount rate of
7.00%, as well as what the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00%) or one percentage point higher (8.00%)
than the current rate:

1% Decrease
6.00%

Current
discount rate

7.00%
1% Increase

8.00%

Employer's proportionate share of the GLI program net OPEB
liability $ 6,742,000 5,159,000 3,873,000

The following schedule includes the proportionate shares of employer contributions of OPEB liability by Activities:

June 30, 2018
Contributions Net pension liability Proportionate share

Governmental activities $ 315,740 4,849,460 %94.00
Business-type activities 20,154 309,540 %6.00

Total $ 335,894 5,159,000 %100.00

GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to the GLI Program OPEB 

At June 30, 2019, the City reported a liability of $5,159,000 for its proportionate share of the Net GLI OPEB
Liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and the total GLI OPEB liability used to
calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The covered
employer’s proportion of the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on the covered employer’s actuarially determined
employer contributions to the GLI Program for the year ended June 30, 2018 relative to the total of the actuarially
determined employer contributions for all participating employers. At June 30, 2018, the City’s proportion was
0.33971% as compared to 0.30329% at June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the City recognized GLI OPEB expense of $228,000. Since there was a change in
proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the GLI OPEB expense was related to deferred
amounts from changes in proportion.
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At June 30, 2019, the employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
the GLI OPEB from the following sources:

Governmental activities Business-type activities Total activities

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Deferred

outflows of

resources

Deferred

inflows of

resources

Employer contributions subsequent to

measurement date $ 348,706 - 22,258 - 370,964 -

Differences between expected and actual
experience $ 236,880 86,480 15,120 5,520 252,000 92,000

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on GLI OPEB program investments $ - 157,920 - 10,080 - 168,000

Changes in assumptions $ - 202,100 - 12,900 - 215,000

Changes in proportion $ 889,240 - 56,760 - 946,000 -

$370,964 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB resulting from the employer’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net GLI OPEB Liability
in the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB will be recognized in the GLI OPEB expense in future reporting
periods as follows:

Year ended June 30:
2020 $ 116,000
2021 116,000
2022 116,000
2023 164,000
2024 155,000
Thereafter 56,000

Total $ 723,000

GLI Program Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the GLI Program’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the separately issued VRS 2018
CAFR. A copy of the 2018 VRS CAFR may be downloaded from the VRS website at
http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2018-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s Chief Financial
Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500. 

Payables to the VRS GLI OPEB Plan

At June 30, 2019, the City did not have a payable to the VRS GLI OPEB plan.

86



City of Newport News, Virginia
Notes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2019

(10) Deferred Compensation Plans

(a) 457 Deferred Compensation Plan - Traditional and Roth

Employees of the City, except those of Schools, may participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted under the
provisions of Internal Revenue Code Sec. 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with Respect to Service for State and
Local Governments).  Under the Traditional Plan, employees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries and postpone
paying taxes on the deferred portion until those funds are withdrawn by the employee. The traditional deferred
compensation amount is not available for withdrawal by employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable
emergency. Under the Roth Plan, employees may elect to defer a portion of their salaries on an after tax basis. Roth
deferrals and associated earnings can be withdrawn tax free if certain criteria are met.

The deferred compensation plan is administered by an unrelated financial institution on behalf of the City. Investment
options available to employees include common stock, corporate and government bonds, guaranteed interest contracts,
or combinations thereof. All deferred compensation and income attributable to the investment of the deferred
compensation amounts are held by the financial institution, until paid or made available to the employees or

beneficiaries.

(b) Health Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA)

All full-time employees of the City hired after March 1, 2010 (except Schools employees) are automatically enrolled in
the HRA Plan adopted under the provision of the IRS Notice 2002-45 and Revenue Ruling 2002-41.  Under the plan, the
City contributes 3% of the average City salary into each employee’s HRA account.  For fiscal 2019, based on an average
City salary of $52,251, the City contributed $1,568 per participant for a total of $2,434,929 to the HRA accounts.  The
accumulated amounts are available to participants at retirement or at age 55, if terminated prior to reaching retirement
eligibility.  The Plan reimburses the participant, the participant’s spouse, and dependents for insurance premiums or
other medical payments expended for permissible benefits described under the plan. HRA participants cannot be
members of the City’s OPEB Fund.  

The HRA is administered by an unrelated financial institution.  Investments options are available to employees.

(11) Self Insurance

(a) Medical Benefits

The School Board is self-insured for medical benefits through funding from the General Fund for employees up to
$175,000, per employee per year. The City self-insures its active employees for medical and prescription drug benefits.
The City’s claims liability per member per contract year is the amount up to the amount of the City’s portion of paid
claims or $200,000, whichever is less. Claims in excess of the limitation are covered by third-party insurance.
Expenditures are charged to the fund to which the employees’ payroll expenditure is charged at amounts that
approximate what third-party insurers would have charged. The insurance coverage is substantially the same as in prior
fiscal years.

Changes in the medical incurred but not reported amount during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 for the
City and the Public Schools were as follows:

City Public schools

2019 2018 2019 2018

Claims payable at beginning of year $ 3,218,000 3,497,000 2,594,000 3,078,000
Claims and changes in estimates 40,305,275 37,305,914 28,904,270 28,348,765
Claim payments (40,152,275) (37,584,914) (28,808,270) (28,832,765)

Claims payable at end of year $ 3,371,000 3,218,000 2,690,000 2,594,000
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(b) Workers' Compensation

The City self-insures for workers’ compensation through the General Fund up to $1,750,000 per claim.  The School
Board has discontinued excess insurance coverage, effective July 1, 2006.  Expenditures are charged to the various
departments at amounts that approximate what third-party insurers would have charged. Amounts due in future years on
claims made as of June 30, 2019 are accounted for in the long-term liabilities.  The following is a reconciliation of
changes in workers’ compensation claims payable for years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 for the City and the Public
Schools.

City Public schools

2019 2018 2019 2018

Claims payable at beginning of year $ 10,413,617 10,941,802 5,332,395 5,332,357
Claims and changes in estimates 2,712,289 1,402,338 1,128,380 1,173,032
Claim payments (2,217,170) (1,930,523) (1,459,114) (1,172,994)

Claims payable at end of year $ 10,908,736 10,413,617 5,001,661 5,332,395

A loss analysis was conducted by Oliver Wyman Actuarial Consulting, Inc. on this fund. The total actuarially computed
liability as of June 30, 2019 for the City and School Board was determined to be approximately $10.9 million and $5.0
million, respectively.

(c) Other

The City self-insures for automotive and general liability through the General Fund up to $1 million per occurrence, up
to $100,000 for each property claim and up to $250,000 for each fire claim. The School Board insures for property
losses with self-insured retention per occurrence of $25,000 for basic and earthquakes and $5,000 for floods and in-land
marine. The School Board is self-insured for losses resulting from vehicular accidents of up to $1,000,000. Claims in
excess of the self-insured retention limitations are covered by third party insurance.

Included in the fund balances of the General Fund of the City and the School Board are reserved and designated fund
balances related to self-insurance activities.

City

Auto & General Liability 2019 2018

Claims payable at beginning of year $ 1,630,833 1,602,759
Claims and changes in estimates 558,024 1,004,069
Claim payments (546,163) (975,995)

Claims payable at end of year $ 1,642,694 1,630,833

The auto and general liability claims increased slightly from $1.63 million to $1.64 million.

(12) Contingent Liabilities

(a) Grants

The City received grant funds, principally from the U.S. Government, for construction and various other programs.
Expenditures from these grants are subject to audit by the grantor and the City is contingently liable to refund amounts
received in excess of allowable expenditures. In the opinion of the management of the City, no material refunds will be
required as a result of expenditures disallowed by the grantors.
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(b) Litigation

The City is involved in several lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of operations. The City is self-insured with respect
to automotive liability, general liability, and property damage and workers’ compensation.  It is the opinion of City
management, based on the advice of the City Attorney, that any losses incurred as a result of claims not included in
accrued liabilities as of June 30, 2019, will not be material to the financial statements.

(c) Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, the recording of purchase orders, contracts, and other monetary commitments in order to
reserve an applicable portion of an appropriation is used as an extension of formal budgetary control by the City.  At
June 30, 2019, the City had outstanding encumbrances as follows:

General fund
General government $ 1,222,546
Public safety 494,867
Public works 2,071,939
Health and welfare 146
Parks, recreation and cultural 174,282
Community development 1,078

Total general fund 3,964,858

Debt service fund
Debt service 53,698

Total debt service fund 53,698

Bond fund
Public works 9,816,915
Parks, recreation and cultural 196,038
Community development 26,491,346

Total bond fund 36,504,299

Capital projects other federal and state fund
Public works 29,124,394

Total capital projects other federal and state fund 29,124,394

Nonmajor governmental funds
General government 1,984,424
Public safety 149,795
Public works 3,256,931
Health and welfare 42,727
Parks, recreation and cultural 148,536
Community development 78,825

Total nonmajor governmental funds 5,661,238

Total $ 75,308,487

(13) Jointly Governed Organizations and Joint Ventures

(a) Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board (CSB)

The CSB operates as an agent for the cities of Hampton and Newport News in the establishment and operation of
community mental health, mental retardation and substance abuse programs as provided for in Chapter 10 of Title 37.1
of the Code of Virginia. The CSB designates its own management and adopts its own budget. The operations are
financed principally by state and federal funds. Separate financial statements are available from the CSB, 300 Medical
Drive, Hampton, VA  23666.
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(b) Hampton Roads Regional Jail Authority (HRRJA)

The HRRJA is a public corporate instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Virginia, created December 14, 1993, by the
cities of Hampton, Newport News, Norfolk and Portsmouth. Beginning July 1, 2014, the City of Chesapeake entered
into an agreement with the Authority to become a full member upon adoption of the agreement by all five City Councils.
This was accomplished by approval of a revised and restated Service Agreement by all five governing bodies, effective
August 26, 2014. The HRRJA is governed by a fifteen-member board, consisting of three members from each city. The
purpose of the intergovernmental authority is to develop, construct, equip, maintain and operate a regional jail. No one
locality contributes more than 50% of the HRRJA funding or has responsibility over its operations. Separate financial
statements are available from the HRRJA, 2690 Elmhurst Lane, Portsmouth, Virginia  23701-2745.

(c) Hampton Roads Economic Development Alliance (HREDA)

The HREDA is a non-profit, public-private partnership that aggressively markets Virginia’s Hampton Roads region as
the primary region of choice for economic investment and business expansion. All HREDA business attraction
initiatives and activities are designed to promote the jurisdictions of Chesapeake, Franklin, Gloucester County,
Hampton, Isle of Wight County, James City County, Newport News, Norfolk, Poquoson, Portsmouth, Southampton
County, Suffolk, Virginia Beach, Williamsburg and York County, Virginia. The business affairs are managed by a
Board of not less than fifty or more than 300 Directors. The City’s Mayor and the Director of E/IDA are board
members. HREDA receives funding from both private and public entities. Newport News contributed $172,734 in FY
19. Separate financial statements are available from the HREDA, 500 Main Street, Suite 1300, Norfolk, Virginia
23510.   

(14) Deficit Fund Balance

The City has an accumulated deficit in the Nonmajor Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balance as of June 30, 2019 of $203,502 for the Animal Shelter fund. The Animal Shelter fund deficit is the result
of operating expenditures exceeding budgeted amounts in fiscal years 2016 and 2018. As a result, budgeted amounts
were inadequate to cover unforeseen operating overages. Fund balance increased by $76,631 in fiscal year 2019, thus
reducing the accumulated deficit from $280,133 to $203,502. This deficit does not indicate the Animal Shelter is facing
financial difficulty.

(15) Tax Abatements

The EDA administers a Local Tourism Zone grant program which provides companies, if meeting the eligibility criteria,
to a 100% reimbursement of business license tax and between 40% to 50% reimbursement of food and beverage tax
revenues and transient taxes paid by the company. The EDA negotiates business license tax and food and beverage tax
abatements on an individual basis. The City has tax abatement agreements to a restaurant for opening and investing in a
location within the tourism zone.  The abatements for the fiscal years ended June 30 were as follows:

Fiscal year ended
Amount of

taxes abated

June 30, 2019 $ 225,185
June 30, 2018 103,592
June 30, 2017 51,956
June 30, 2016 48,929
June 30, 2015 48,759
June 30, 2014 20,337
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The EDA administers an Expansion/Relocation Cost Reduction (ERCR) Incentive program within the City of Newport
News. The program is a customized incentive available to companies in targeted industries investing $2.5 million or
more in capital investment, machinery and tools and/or business personal property. The company must also create at
least twenty-five (25) new full-time jobs meeting a minimum salary requirement. The City has tax abatement agreements
with four entities as of June 30, 2019.

Industry 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Automotive manufacturer $ 115,395 $ 55,136 $ 186,438 $ 472,906 $ 632,945 $ 781,022

Industrial digital imaging 1,379,246 1,515,016 1,092,673 893,688 697,173 653,200

Food processor and distributor 12,568 34,365 46,983 65,053 97,790 124,065

Manufacturer of flavors and related
specialties - - - - - 3,535

$ 1,507,209 $ 1,604,517 $ 1,326,094 $ 1,431,647 $ 1,427,908 $ 1,561,822

(16) Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been analyzed through  November 21, 2018 noting the following:

   E/IDA

In July 2019, a new lease of the Coats and Clark facility was executed between the IDA and the City for an additional ten
years with two, five-year renewal options. The new lease includes a $55,000 annual maintenance reserve and $20,000 annual
administrative fee for the IDA, with escalations at the five-year renewal periods.

In July 2019, the EDA authorized funding of $600,000 to be used as matching funds to support the Newport
News/Williamsburg International Airport (PHF) grant application to the U.S. Department of Transportation's Small
Community Air Service Development Program (SCASDP) to expand air service from PHF. The expenditure of these grant
match funds are subject to PHF's receipt of the SCASDP grant.

In August 2019, the E/IDA entered into a contract with The WorkPlace for the fiscal year 2020 in the amount of $110,000 to
provide services as the management entity for the workplace development activities to be held at the Brooks Crossing
Innovation and Opportunity Center.

In September 2019, the E/IDA authorized the award of a bid in the amount of $1,778,178 for building rehabilitation and
parking lot and hardscape improvements at 2506 Jefferson Avenue and 610 26th Street to create a co-working space. This
project will be funded through the appropriated City Capital Improvement Plan and the Industrial Revitalization Fund Grant
of $480,000 which was awarded for this purpose.
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Original
budget

Amended
budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Revenue from local sources:

General property taxes:
Real property taxes $ 188,947,000 188,947,000 186,521,445 (2,425,555)
Real and personal public service corporation property taxes 6,700,206 6,700,206 6,790,733 90,527
Personal property taxes 55,404,000 55,404,000 57,322,626 1,918,626
Machinery and tools taxes 21,200,000 21,200,000 23,674,195 2,474,195
Penalties and interest 1,408,000 1,408,000 1,926,840 518,840

Total general property taxes 273,659,206 273,659,206 276,235,839 2,576,633

Other local taxes:
E-911 service revenue 775,885 775,885 789,725 13,840
Telecom sales taxes 10,900,000 10,900,000 9,982,359 (917,641)
Local sales and use taxes 25,040,000 25,040,000 26,197,558 1,157,558
Consumers’ utility taxes 6,275,000 6,275,000 6,341,872 66,872
Consumption tax 747,000 747,000 696,656 (50,344)
Business license taxes 17,095,000 17,095,000 18,015,385 920,385
Rental car taxes 1,145,000 1,145,000 1,157,389 12,389
Motor vehicle license 4,250,000 4,250,000 4,286,075 36,075
Bank stock taxes 960,000 960,000 1,140,972 180,972
Taxes on recordation and wills 1,750,000 1,750,000 1,389,607 (360,393)
Tobacco taxes 4,900,000 4,900,000 4,761,217 (138,783)
Hotel and motel room taxes 4,586,500 4,586,500 4,634,839 48,339
Restaurant food taxes 25,950,000 25,950,000 27,364,800 1,414,800
Tourism zone taxes 62,000 62,000 44,858 (17,142)
Amusement taxes 985,000 985,000 961,140 (23,860)

Total other local taxes 105,421,385 105,421,385 107,764,452 2,343,067

Permits, privilege fees and regulatory licenses:
Animal licenses 45,000 45,000 49,545 4,545
Permits and other licenses 3,763,637 3,763,637 3,969,685 206,048

Total permits, privilege fees and regulatory licenses 3,808,637 3,808,637 4,019,230 210,593

Fines and forfeitures 1,765,500 1,765,500 1,834,016 68,516

Revenue from use of money and property:
Revenue from use of money 959,540 959,540 3,345,642 2,386,102
Revenue from use of property 2,025,366 2,025,366 2,093,085 67,719

Total revenue from use of money and property 2,984,906 2,984,906 5,438,727 2,453,821

Charges for services:
Court costs 969,097 969,097 855,722 (113,375)
Law enforcement and traffic control 142,000 142,000 95,262 (46,738)
Fire and rescue services 4,400,000 4,400,000 4,561,245 161,245
Information Technology 1,878,705 1,878,705 1,878,705 -
Parks and recreation 7,601,526 7,601,526 6,913,334 (688,192)
Cultural enrichment 245,261 245,261 123,531 (121,730)
Self-insurance premiums 2,576,207 2,576,207 2,485,298 (90,909)
Library 45,500 45,500 31,343 (14,157)
Planning and community development 600 600 482 (118)
Indirect costs 5,360,416 5,360,416 5,360,416 -
Animal services 43,246 43,246 42,737 (509)
Applied research center 40,562 40,562 - (40,562)

Total charges for services $ 23,303,120 23,303,120 22,348,075 (955,045)

(continued)
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budget
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budget Actual Variance

Recovered costs:
Health department $ 24,658 24,658 299,680 275,022
Juvenile detention home 4,782,040 4,782,040 5,111,420 329,380
City jail 1,193,601 1,193,601 1,163,533 (30,068)
Sewer assessments - debt service 19,000 19,000 159,869 140,869

Total recovered costs 6,019,299 6,019,299 6,734,502 715,203

Miscellaneous revenues:
Payments in lieu of taxes 2,774,651 2,774,651 2,733,422 (41,229)
Miscellaneous 2,371,579 2,371,579 2,388,452 16,873

Total miscellaneous revenues 5,146,230 5,146,230 5,121,874 (24,356)

Total revenue from local sources 422,108,283 422,108,283 429,496,715 7,388,432

Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Noncategorical aid:

Motor vehicle carriers’ taxes 65,000 65,000 65,186 186
Mobile home titling taxes 60,000 60,000 59,039 (961)
Tax on deeds 445,000 445,000 388,510 (56,490)
State rebate – recording tax 492,000 492,000 429,855 (62,145)
DCJP grants for law enforcement 9,357,454 9,357,454 9,357,452 (2)

Total noncategorical aid 10,419,454 10,419,454 10,300,042 (119,412)

Shared expenses:
Technology trust fund 133,739 133,739 133,739 -
Commonwealth’s Attorney 1,855,000 1,855,000 1,821,141 (33,859)
Sheriff 7,155,000 7,155,000 7,633,394 478,394
Commissioner of the Revenue 341,000 341,000 391,708 50,708
Treasurer 300,000 300,000 368,291 68,291
Registrar/Electoral board 59,034 59,034 59,809 775

Total shared expenses 9,843,773 9,843,773 10,408,082 564,309

Categorical state aid:
Welfare 24,278,066 24,278,066 26,251,362 1,973,296
Emergency medical service funds 155,000 155,000 - (155,000)
Library 174,189 174,189 175,538 1,349
Other - - 104,087 104,087

Total categorical state aid 24,607,255 24,607,255 26,530,987 1,923,732

Total revenue from the Commonwealth 44,870,482 44,870,482 47,239,111 2,368,629

Other financing sources:
Transfers from other funds 9,500,000 9,500,000 9,500,000 -
Transfers from fund balance 500,000 500,000 - (500,000)

Total other financing sources 10,000,000 10,000,000 9,500,000 (500,000)

Total revenues $ 476,978,765 476,978,765 486,235,826 9,257,061

(continued)
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Expenditures:
General government administration:

Legislative:
City Council $ 275,245 275,451 270,463 4,988
City Clerk 326,610 330,220 312,896 17,324

Total legislative 601,855 605,671 583,359 22,312

General and financial administration:
City Manager 1,411,027 1,414,633 1,347,721 66,912
Human resources 1,233,199 1,233,686 1,063,867 169,819
Employee benefits 402,557 402,557 414,741 (12,184)
Medical services 37,791 37,791 30,421 7,370
City Attorney 2,028,864 2,063,953 2,067,377 (3,424)
Internal Auditor 556,127 556,168 542,462 13,706
Commissioner of the Revenue 2,530,598 2,536,364 2,301,600 234,764
Real Estate Assessor 1,656,386 1,681,659 1,659,707 21,952
City Treasurer 2,482,525 2,483,574 2,406,509 77,065
Finance 3,126,938 3,131,013 2,994,489 136,524
Budget and evaluation 708,865 708,884 586,202 122,682
Auto self-insurance 1,341,000 1,341,000 1,264,259 76,741
General liability self-insurance 1,550,000 1,550,000 1,623,217 (73,217)
Workers’ compensation 3,128,000 3,128,000 2,604,066 523,934
Information technology 10,058,290 10,060,898 9,767,163 293,735

Total general and financial administration 32,252,167 32,330,180 30,673,801 1,656,379

Board of elections:
Registrar 473,579 474,035 472,232 1,803

Nondepartmental:
Appointed boards 111,911 111,911 71,917 39,994
Community support 2,589,089 2,589,089 2,505,990 83,099
Contract community agencies 8,769,267 8,769,267 8,640,390 128,877
City development 40,442,000 38,777,118 37,159,502 1,617,616
Contractual services 2,220,301 2,220,301 2,115,566 104,735
Internal services 176,000 43,288 4,700 38,588
Machinery and equipment 570,000 570,000 404,247 165,753
Security Services 1,501,837 1,501,837 1,387,075 114,762
Strategic priorities 2,005,500 2,005,500 2,314,277 (308,777)
Street lighting 545,706 545,706 10,482 535,224
Other 6,686,282 6,661,078 5,421,988 1,239,090

Total nondepartmental 65,617,893 63,795,095 60,036,134 3,758,961

Total general government administration 98,945,494 97,204,981 91,765,526 5,439,455

Judicial administration:
Courts:

Circuit Courts 510,395 510,395 508,629 1,766
District Courts 150,199 150,199 79,400 70,799
Office of the Magistrate 6,947 6,947 4,841 2,106
Juvenile/Domestic Relations Court 57,000 57,051 48,739 8,312
Clerk of the Circuit Court 1,701,128 1,730,076 1,737,285 (7,209)
Court services 486,477 487,070 454,946 32,124

Total courts 2,912,146 2,941,738 2,833,840 107,898

Commonwealth’s Attorney 4,226,134 4,239,156 4,237,338 1,818

Total judicial administration $ 7,138,280 7,180,894 7,071,178 109,716

(continued)
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Required Supplementary Information

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Year ended June 30, 2019

Original
budget

Amended
budget Actual Variance

Public safety:
Law enforcement and traffic control:

Police department $ 48,391,858 49,076,417 50,971,523 (1,895,106)
Emergency communications 361,594 364,046 336,467 27,579

Total law enforcement and traffic control 48,753,452 49,440,463 51,307,990 (1,867,527)

Fire and rescue services:
Fire department 31,399,142 31,884,930 33,025,880 (1,140,950)
Ambulance and rescue service 2,486,849 2,481,849 2,587,328 (105,479)

Total fire and rescue services 33,885,991 34,366,779 35,613,208 (1,246,429)

Correction and detention:
Sheriff 22,041,166 22,259,803 22,368,181 (108,378)
Juvenile detention 8,477,001 8,506,793 8,172,141 334,652

Total correction and detention 30,518,167 30,766,596 30,540,322 226,274

Inspection – codes compliance 3,180,050 3,182,797 3,127,337 55,460

Total public safety 116,337,660 117,756,635 120,588,857 (2,832,222)

Public works:
Engineering:

Administration 317,150 405,582 14,793 390,789
Civil services 178,892 211,558 195,791 15,767
Construction and bridge 674,969 685,197 591,192 94,005
Architectural services 536,419 478,921 432,777 46,144
Technical support 213,967 218,839 175,831 43,008
Transportation services 870,228 819,383 881,262 (61,879)

Total engineering 2,791,625 2,819,480 2,291,646 527,834

Public works administration 704,125 1,173,592 30,313 1,143,279
Maintenance of highways, streets, bridges, and sidewalks 855,536 494,258 1,634,453 (1,140,195)
Maintenance of general buildings and grounds 7,690,489 7,590,278 7,465,408 124,870

Total public works 12,041,775 12,077,608 11,421,820 655,788

Health and welfare:
Health:

Medical services 3,620,493 3,645,697 3,641,799 3,898

Welfare:
Social services administration 6,993,771 7,062,584 6,968,598 93,986
Financial services 9,551,964 9,578,941 7,990,071 1,588,870
Social work services 13,254,202 13,210,017 14,258,926 (1,048,909)
Healthy families 1,320,622 1,332,335 1,263,353 68,982
Employment service program 2,266,065 2,266,065 2,073,186 192,879
CSA administration 330,713 330,713 342,536 (11,823)
Fuel assistance 27,903 - - -
Youth services 558,733 558,733 524,000 34,733
Family and community education 210,827 220,515 221,409 (894)
Homeless family services 382,487 397,887 430,344 (32,457)

Cooperative extension 212,639 192,437 182,504 9,933
CHIP program 72,151 72,151 71,547 604

Total welfare 35,182,077 35,222,378 34,326,474 895,904

Total health and welfare $ 38,802,570 38,868,075 37,968,273 899,802

(continued)
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Required Supplementary Information

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Year ended June 30, 2019

Original
budget

Amended
budget Actual Variance

Parks, recreation and cultural:
Parks and recreation:

Administration $ 6,197,996 6,317,796 5,605,425 712,371
Recreation division 2,761,132 2,777,314 2,604,689 172,625
Parks division 3,586,005 3,587,142 3,910,958 (323,816)
Recreation classes 4,996,000 4,996,000 4,952,314 43,686
Golf course 1,728,000 1,728,000 1,800,740 (72,740)
Leeward Marina 265,000 265,000 244,025 20,975
Festival support 269,732 269,774 390,632 (120,858)
Tourism, promotion and development 1,452,000 1,452,000 1,511,225 (59,225)
Animal services 609,890 612,810 645,753 (32,943)

Total parks and recreation 21,865,755 22,005,836 21,665,761 340,075

Cultural enrichment – museum 1,124,000 1,124,000 1,249,582 (125,582)
Library 4,674,794 4,675,888 4,417,937 257,951

Total parks, recreation and cultural 27,664,549 27,805,724 27,333,280 472,444

Community development:
Planning and community development:

Development 1,253,143 1,286,467 1,266,664 19,803
Planning 1,586,899 1,589,838 1,274,696 315,142
Communications 1,788,634 1,788,782 1,677,320 111,462
Economic development 3,889,576 3,889,576 14,042,943 (10,153,367)

Total community development 8,518,252 8,554,663 18,261,623 (9,706,960)

Education:
General fund transfer to Public Schools 110,889,307 110,889,307 110,889,307 -
Capital projects' transfer to Public Schools 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 -

Total education 112,889,307 112,889,307 112,889,307 -

Transfers to other funds:
Debt service 34,152,206 34,152,206 34,152,205 1
Debt service - Public Schools 8,110,693 8,110,693 8,110,693 -
Capital projects 8,175,945 8,175,945 10,775,945 (2,600,000)
Other 4,202,034 4,202,034 5,731,459 (1,529,425)

Total transfers to other funds 54,640,878 54,640,878 58,770,302 (4,129,424)

Total expenditures and transfers to other funds 476,978,765 476,978,765 486,070,166 (9,091,401)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures $ - - 165,660 (165,660)

Less encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2018 expended or canceled at
June 30, 2019 (2,800,236)

Add encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2019 3,964,858

FY 2019 surplus (deficit) 1,330,282

Fund balance at beginning of year 94,681,764

Fund balance at end of year $ 96,012,046

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the City's Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios for NNERF
Fiscal years ended June 30

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Total pension liability

Service costs $ 8,497,193 9,045,434 9,467,439 9,926,558 10,534,763

Interest 95,861,994 93,983,070 91,489,549 88,917,067 86,803,765

Differences between expected and actual experience 17,695,138 (185,230) 6,473,172 6,665,024 -

Changes of assumptions (7,267,035) - - - -

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (78,976,935) (75,570,088) (72,016,569) (69,527,978) (67,393,918)

Net change in total pension liability 35,810,355 27,273,186 35,413,591 35,980,671 29,944,610
Total pension liability - beginning 1,308,437,308 1,281,164,122 1,245,750,531 1,209,769,860 1,179,825,250

Total pension liability - ending $ 1,344,247,663 1,308,437,308 1,281,164,122 1,245,750,531 1,209,769,860

Plan fiduciary net position

Contributions - employer $ 40,700,786 39,135,864 39,005,899 33,258,275 29,364,826

Contributions - member 5,779,158 5,987,851 6,416,136 6,738,148 6,558,611

Net investment income 91,844,066 115,173,724 (7,465,822) 26,194,662 113,205,029

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (78,976,935) (75,570,088) (72,016,569) (69,527,978) (67,393,918)

Administrative expense (1,030,662) (952,560) (921,181) (1,003,673) (866,517)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position $ 58,316,413 83,774,791 (34,981,537) (4,340,566) 80,868,031
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 899,433,489 815,658,698 850,640,235 854,980,801 774,112,770

Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 957,749,902 899,433,489 815,658,698 850,640,235 854,980,801

Net pension liability ending $ 386,497,761 409,003,819 465,505,424 395,110,296 354,789,059

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension
liability %71.25 %68.74 %63.67 %68.28 %70.67

Covered payroll $ 108,187,035 113,302,877 118,639,692 123,619,906 129,912,288

Net position liability as a percentage of covered payroll %357.25 %360.98 %392.37 %319.62 %273.10

Note: This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. However, additional years will be included as they become available. Per GAAP, net pension liabilities are reported using the measurement date,
which is one year prior to the reporting date.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the City's Net Pension Asset and Related Ratios for VRS
Fiscal years ended June 30

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Total pension liability
Service costs $ 5,810,589 5,556,353 4,831,751 4,219,577 3,376,352
Interest 1,732,518 1,382,295 1,000,116 702,834 441,527
Differences between expected and actual experience 746,189 (271,408) (127,774) (522,034) -
Changes of assumptions - (1,239,629) - - -
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (555,062) (293,811) (194,963) (112,015) (57,843)

Net change in total pension liability 7,734,234 5,133,800 5,509,130 4,288,362 3,760,036
Total pension liability - beginning 25,027,784 19,893,984 14,384,854 10,096,492 6,336,456

Total pension liability - ending $ 32,762,018 25,027,784 19,893,984 14,384,854 10,096,492

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 3,074,885 2,766,138 2,754,620 2,346,626 3,039,422
Contributions - member 3,052,031 2,685,841 2,326,164 2,054,662 1,685,840
Net investment income 2,575,005 3,322,147 485,326 760,402 1,589,581
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (555,062) (293,811) (194,963) (112,015) (57,843)
Administrative expense (17,042) (13,687) (8,716) (5,937) (4,461)
Other (2,546) (3,225) (153) (177) (83)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position $ 8,127,271 8,463,403 5,362,278 5,043,561 6,252,456
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 32,906,451 24,443,048 19,080,770 14,037,209 7,784,753

Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 41,033,722 32,906,451 24,443,048 19,080,770 14,037,209

Net pension asset ending $ (8,271,704) (7,878,667) (4,549,064) (4,695,916) (3,940,717)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total net pension
asset %125.25 %131.48 %122.87 %132.64 %139.03

Covered payroll $ 64,320,834 55,753,786 47,926,329 36,397,255 33,287,071
Net position asset as a percentage of covered payroll %12.86 %14.13 %9.49 %12.90 %11.84

Note: This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. However, additional years will be included as they become available. Per GAAP, net pension liabilities are reported using the measurement date,
which is one year prior to the reporting date.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the City's Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
Fiscal years ended June 30

2018 2017

Total OPEB liability
Service costs $ 519,381 811,867
Interest 8,847,501 8,837,567
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,053,023 -
Changes of assumptions (7,399,952) -
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (9,229,514) (9,512,163)

Net change in total OPEB liability (6,209,561) 137,271
Total OPEB liability - beginning 122,243,009 122,105,738

Total OPEB liability - ending $ 116,033,448 122,243,009

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 8,240,000 8,240,000
Net investment income 3,355,846 5,402,335
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (9,229,514) (9,512,163)
Administrative expense (44,013) (60,497)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position $ 2,322,319 4,069,675
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 31,531,526 27,461,851

Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 33,853,845 31,531,526

Net OPEB liability ending $ 82,179,603 90,711,483

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability %29.18 %25.79

Covered payroll $ 95,734,439 100,618,959
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll %85.84 %90.15

Note: This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. However, additional years will be included as they become available. Per GAAP, net pension liabilities are
reported using the measurement date, which is one year prior to the reporting date.
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Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Changes in the City's Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios for Line of Duty
Fiscal years ended June 30

2018 2017

Total OPEB liability
Service costs $ 1,148,034 1,130,417
Interest 383,248 311,181
Changes of benefit terms 905,453 -
Differences between expected and actual experience (686,746) -
Changes of assumptions (2,835,907) (1,381,476)
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (322,421) (260,856)

Net change in total OPEB liability (1,408,339) (200,734)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 9,716,974 9,917,708

Total OPEB liability - ending $ 8,308,635 9,716,974

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 300,000 256,300
Net investment income 104,072 19,499
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (322,421) (260,856)
Administrative expense (5,095) (46,909)

Net change in plan fiduciary net position $ 76,556 (31,966)
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 2,508,498 2,540,464

Plan fiduciary net position - ending $ 2,585,054 2,508,498

Net OPEB liability ending $ 5,723,581 7,208,476

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability %31.11 %25.82

Covered payroll $ 59,928,556 59,195,883
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll %9.55 %12.18

Note: This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. However, additional years will be included as they become available. Per GAAP, net pension liabilities are
reported using the measurement date, which is one year prior to the reporting date.
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Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of City & NNPS Contributions NNERF
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Actuarially determined contribution $ 40,854 40,701 39,262 39,154 40,394 40,628
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 40,854 40,701 39,136 39,006 33,258 29,365

Contribution deficiency $ - - 126 148 7,136 11,263

Covered payroll $ 103,823 108,187 113,303 118,640 123,620 129,912
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %39.35 %37.62 %34.54 %32.88 %26.90 %22.60

Schedule of City Contributions VRS
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Contractually required contribution $ 3,470 3,075 2,766 2,755 2,347 3,039
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 3,470 3,075 2,766 2,755 2,347 3,039

Contribution excess $ - - - - - -

Covered payroll $ 70,556 64,321 55,754 47,926 36,397 33,287
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %4.92 %4.78 %4.96 %5.75 %6.45 %9.13

Schedule of City Contributions OPEB
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2019 2018 2017

Actuarially determined contribution $ 8,240 8,240 8,240
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 8,240 8,240 8,240

Contribution deficiency $ - - -

Covered payroll $ 92,290 95,734 100,619
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %8.93 %8.61 %8.19

Note: This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. However, additional years will be included as they become available.
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Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of City Contributions OPEB GLI
(Dollar amounts in thousands)

2019 2018

Contractually required contribution $ 371 336
Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 371 336

Contribution excess $ - -

Covered payroll $ 70,556 64,321
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll %0.53 %0.52

Note: This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. However, additional years will be included as they become available.
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Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Investment Returns NNERF
Years ended June 30

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment fees 3.30% 9.92% 14.83% (1.05)% 2.92% 15.08%

Schedule of Investment Returns OPEB
Years ended June 30

2019 2018 2017

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment fees 3.60% 11.29% 21.23%

Note: These schedules are intended to show information for 10 years. However, additional years will be included as they become available.
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Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Employer's Share of Net OPEB Liability GLI Program
Fiscal years ended June 30

2018 2017

Employer's proportion of the net GLI OPEB liability 0.33971% 0.30329%

Employer's proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability $ 5,159,000 4,564,000

Employer's covered payroll $ 64,320,834 55,753,786

Employer's proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 8.02% 8.19%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total GLI OPEB liability 51.22% 48.86%

Note: This schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. However, additional years will be included as they become available. Per GAAP, net pension liabilities are
reported using the measurement date, which is one year prior to the reporting date.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Year ended  June 30, 2019

(1) Budgetary Data

The budgetary data reflected in the required supplementary information was established by the City using the following
procedures:

On or before April 1, management submits to the City Council of the City proposed operating budgets that include proposed
expenditures and other financing uses and the means of financing them.

A public hearing on the budget is held after a synopsis of the budget is published in a local newspaper of general circulation.
An appropriation ordinance must be adopted by the City Council by June 15.

The City may amend the budget or make transfers between functions and budgetary line items without City Council approval.
However, the City may not make transfers or expend any sum of money in excess of City Council appropriations, at the fund
level, without the consent of the City Council. The legal level of budgetary control for the General Fund is the fund level;
however, management control is exercised over the budget at the budgetary line item level. Appropriations, except for
encumbrances and committed or assigned fund balances, lapse at year-end. There were supplemental appropriations made
during 2019 for the following reasons: (1) grant matching, (2) funding to meet the increase in operating expenses.

(2) Legally Adopted Budgets

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General Fund, the Debt
Service Fund, the Enterprise Funds and the Internal Service Fund. Annual operating budgets are adopted by ordinances passed
by City Council for the General Fund; Debt Service Fund; Internal Service Fund; the following Enterprise Funds and
Component Units: Public Utility, Parking Authority, E/IDA; the following Special Revenue Funds: Street Maintenance,
Economic Development, Animal Shelter, Law Library, Stormwater, Solid Waste, and Wastewater. City Council makes an
annual appropriation to the School Board but is prohibited from exercising any control over specific expenditures of School
Board operating funds.

Annual operating budgets are not adopted for Special Revenue Funds, except those funds identified above.  Program budgets
for these funds are approved by executive departments on a basis consistent with the related grant applications. Project and
program budgets are utilized in the Capital Projects Funds where appropriations remain open and carry over to succeeding
years.

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
except that encumbrances are included as budgetary expenditures. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at the function
level, the legal level of control, as defined in the budget ordinance. Management can transfer unencumbered appropriation
balances, or portions thereof, within a function. Transfers within the School Operating Fund are controlled by the School
Board.

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year for the General, School Operating, Street Maintenance,
Economic Development, Law Library, Animal Shelter and Debt Service Funds.

(3) Encumbrances

Encumbrances outstanding at year-end represent the estimated amount of the expenditures required to complete contracts,
purchase orders and commitments-in-process at year-end. 
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

Special Revenue

Community
development

Street
maintenance

Economic
development Law library Stormwater Solid waste Wastewater

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ - - 1,177,687 183,480 14,458,084 6,276,394 7,135,086
Accounts receivable, net - - - 10,616 808,111 1,838,226 1,634,698
Receivables from other funds - - - - - - -
Receivables from other governments:

Virginia 38,479 - - - - - -
Federal 237,023 - - - - - -

Inventory, at cost - - - - - - -

Total assets $ 275,502 - 1,177,687 194,096 15,266,195 8,114,620 8,769,784

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 10,096 - 9,093 3,358 319,373 533,309 205,812
Accrued liabilities 1,261 - - 2,475 234,155 160,879 231,823
Unearned revenues - - 751 - - 37,688 -
Payable to major governmental funds 264,145 - - - - - -

Total liabilities 275,502 - 9,844 5,833 553,528 731,876 437,635

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue-stormwater fees - - - - 589,327 - -

Fund balances
Nonspendable - - - - - - -
Restricted - - - 25 14,123,340 7,382,744 8,332,149
Committed - - 1,167,843 188,238 - - -
Unassigned - - - - - - -

Total fund balances - - 1,167,843 188,263 14,123,340 7,382,744 8,332,149

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $ 275,502 - 1,177,687 194,096 15,266,195 8,114,620 8,769,784

(continued)
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

Special Revenue
Capital
Projects

Comprehensive
Services Act

Criminal
Justice

Academy
Animal
shelter

Special
events

Other federal
and state

General capital
improvements

Total
nonmajor

governmental
funds

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 74,235 225,020 300 672,965 2,648,510 6,216,590 39,068,351
Accounts receivable, net - 6,957 220,586 - - 1,058,709 5,577,903
Receivables from other funds - - - - - 14,553,732 14,553,732
Receivables from other governments:

Virginia 1,339,737 - - - 131,926 - 1,510,142
Federal - - - - 481,192 - 718,215

Inventory, at cost - - 6,869 - - - 6,869

Total assets $ 1,413,972 231,977 227,755 672,965 3,261,628 21,829,031 61,435,212

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,162,039 1,477 41,972 20,722 251,956 974,282 3,533,489
Accrued liabilities - - 45,283 - 46,657 108,776 831,309
Unearned revenues - - - 150 163,821 - 202,410
Payable to major governmental funds - - 344,002 - 262,742 - 870,889

Total liabilities 1,162,039 1,477 431,257 20,872 725,176 1,083,058 5,438,097

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue-stormwater fees - - - - - - 589,327

Fund balances
Nonspendable - - 6,869 - - - 6,869
Restricted - - - - 2,536,452 - 32,374,710
Committed 251,933 230,500 10,265 652,093 - 20,745,973 23,246,845
Unassigned - - (220,636) - - - (220,636)

Total fund balances 251,933 230,500 (203,502) 652,093 2,536,452 20,745,973 55,407,788

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and fund balances $ 1,413,972 231,977 227,755 672,965 3,261,628 21,829,031 61,435,212
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019

Special Revenue

Community
development

Street
maintenance

Economic
development Law library Stormwater Solid waste Wastewater

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

Local $ 42,569 - - - - - -
Virginia - 17,510,921 - - - 29,045 -
Federal 1,789,158 - - - - - -

Charges for services - - - 128,288 20,973,824 15,695,508 23,198,614
Interest and rent - - 234,740 - 115,769 102,594 126,588
Sale of property - - 6,100 - - - -
Local fees and contributions - - - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - 106,900 - 13,624 2,765 -

Total revenues 1,831,727 17,510,921 347,740 128,288 21,103,217 15,829,912 23,325,202

Expenditures:
Current operating:

General government - - - 130,099 - - -
Judicial administration - - - - - - -
Public safety - - - - - - -
Public works - 17,510,921 - - 14,125,842 13,244,265 14,384,659
Health and welfare - - - - - - -
Education - - - - - - -
Parks, recreation, and culture - - - - - - -
Community development 1,831,727 - 325,125 - - - -

Capital outlay - - - - - - -

Total expenditures 1,831,727 17,510,921 325,125 130,099 14,125,842 13,244,265 14,384,659

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures - - 22,615 (1,811) 6,977,375 2,585,647 8,940,543

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - - - -
Transfers out - - - - (4,034,944) (313,979) (5,710,674)

Total other financing sources (uses), net - - - - (4,034,944) (313,979) (5,710,674)

Net changes in fund balances - - 22,615 (1,811) 2,942,431 2,271,668 3,229,869

Fund balances at June 30, 2018 - - 1,145,228 190,074 11,180,909 5,111,076 5,102,280

Fund balances at June 30, 2019 $ - - 1,167,843 188,263 14,123,340 7,382,744 8,332,149
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019

Special Revenue
Capital
Projects

Comprehensive
Services Act

Criminal
Justice

Academy
Animal
shelter

Special
events

Other federal
and state

General capital
improvements

Total
nonmajor

governmental
funds

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

Local $ - - 1,101,213 - 246,347 - 1,390,129
Virginia 5,549,741 - - - 1,531,882 - 24,621,589
Federal 382,483 - - - 1,930,037 - 4,101,678

Charges for services - 124,854 160,890 - - - 60,281,978
Interest and rent - - - - 21,028 40,370 641,089
Sale of property - - - - - - 6,100
Local fees and contributions - - - 61,150 - 346,607 407,757
Miscellaneous - - 15,496 - - - 138,785

Total revenues 5,932,224 124,854 1,277,599 61,150 3,729,294 386,977 91,589,105

Expenditures:
Current operating:

General government - - - - - - 130,099
Judicial administration - - - - 492,595 - 492,595
Public safety - 57,632 - - 1,813,000 - 1,870,632
Public works - - - - 76,855 - 59,342,542
Health and welfare 8,177,135 - - - 380,948 - 8,558,083
Education - - - - - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Parks, recreation, and culture - - 1,798,493 1,223,354 132,612 - 3,154,459
Community development - - - - 387,138 - 2,543,990

Capital outlay - - - - - 11,114,993 11,114,993

Total expenditures 8,177,135 57,632 1,798,493 1,223,354 3,283,148 13,114,993 89,207,393

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (2,244,911) 67,222 (520,894) (1,162,204) 446,146 (12,728,016) 2,381,712

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 2,490,247 - 1,266,703 1,974,509 - 12,775,945 18,507,404
Transfers out - - (669,178) - - - (10,728,775)

Total other financing sources (uses), net 2,490,247 - 597,525 1,974,509 - 12,775,945 7,778,629

Net changes in fund balances 245,336 67,222 76,631 812,305 446,146 47,929 10,160,341

Fund balances at June 30, 2018 6,597 163,278 (280,133) (160,212) 2,090,306 20,698,044 45,247,447

Fund balances at June 30, 2019 $ 251,933 230,500 (203,502) 652,093 2,536,452 20,745,973 55,407,788
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
Street Maintenance

Year ended June 30, 2019

Original budget Final budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

Virginia $ 16,990,752 17,510,921 17,510,921 -

Total revenues 16,990,752 17,510,921 17,510,921 -

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 16,990,752 17,510,921 17,510,921 -

Total expenditures 16,990,752 17,510,921 17,510,921 -

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures $ - - - -

Fund balance at June 30, 2018 -

Fund balance at June 30, 2019 $ -
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
Economic Development

Year ended June 30, 2019

Original budget Final budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Interest and rent $ 177,912 177,912 234,740 56,828
Sale of property 10,000 10,000 6,100 (3,900)
Miscellaneous 88 88 106,900 106,812

Total revenues 188,000 188,000 347,740 159,740

Expenditures:
Current:

Community development 188,000 188,155 325,125 (136,970)

Total expenditures 188,000 188,155 325,125 (136,970)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures $ - (155) 22,615 22,770

Fund balance at June 30, 2018 1,145,228

Fund balance at June 30, 2019 $ 1,167,843
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
Law Library

Year ended June 30, 2019

Original budget Final budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 110,771 110,771 128,288 17,517
Miscellaneous 15,229 15,229 - (15,229)

Total revenues 126,000 126,000 128,288 2,288

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 126,000 126,000 130,099 (4,099)

Total expenditures 126,000 126,000 130,099 (4,099)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures $ - - (1,811) (1,811)

Fund balance at June 30, 2018 190,074

Fund balance at June 30, 2019 $ 188,263
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
Stormwater

Year ended June 30, 2019

Original budget Final budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 20,218,095 20,218,095 20,973,824 755,729
Interest and rent 62,000 62,000 115,769 53,769
Miscellaneous 1,502,990 3,437,990 13,624 (3,424,366)

Total revenues 21,783,085 23,718,085 21,103,217 (2,614,868)

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 17,748,141 20,156,588 14,125,842 6,030,746

Total expenditures 17,748,141 20,156,588 14,125,842 6,030,746

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 4,034,944 3,561,497 6,977,375 3,415,878

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (4,034,944) (4,034,944) (4,034,944) -

Net change in fund balance $ - (473,447) 2,942,431 3,415,878

Fund balance at June 30, 2018 11,180,909

Fund balance at June 30, 2019 $ 14,123,340
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
Solid Waste

Year ended June 30, 2019

Original budget Final budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

Virginia $ 26,500 26,500 29,045 2,545
Charges for services 14,651,100 14,651,100 15,695,508 1,044,408
Interest and rent 4,000 4,000 102,594 98,594
Miscellaneous 4,400 4,400 2,765 (1,635)

Total revenues 14,686,000 14,686,000 15,829,912 1,143,912

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 14,372,021 14,482,660 13,244,265 1,238,395

Total expenditures 14,372,021 14,482,660 13,244,265 1,238,395

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 313,979 203,340 2,585,647 2,382,307

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (313,979) (313,979) (313,979) -

Net change in fund balance $ - (110,639) 2,271,668 2,382,307

Fund balance at June 30, 2018 5,111,076

Fund balance at June 30, 2019 $ 7,382,744
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
Wastewater

Year ended June 30, 2019

Original budget Final budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 21,777,605 21,777,605 23,198,614 1,421,009
Interest and rent 395 395 126,588 126,193

Total revenues 21,778,000 21,778,000 23,325,202 1,547,202

Expenditures:
Current:

Public works 16,034,875 17,254,768 14,384,659 2,870,109

Total expenditures 16,034,875 17,254,768 14,384,659 2,870,109

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 5,743,125 4,523,232 8,940,543 4,417,311

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out (5,743,125) (5,743,125) (5,710,674) 32,451

Net change in fund balance $ - (1,219,893) 3,229,869 4,449,762

Fund balance at June 30, 2018 5,102,280

Fund balance at June 30, 2019 $ 8,332,149
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
Animal Shelter

Year ended June 30, 2019

Original budget Final budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

Local $ 1,101,213 1,101,213 1,101,213 -
Charges for services 118,500 118,500 160,890 42,390
Miscellaneous 9,584 9,584 15,496 5,912

Total revenues 1,229,297 1,229,297 1,277,599 48,302

Expenditures:
Current:

Parks, recreation, and culture 1,826,822 1,826,822 1,798,493 28,329

Total expenditures 1,826,822 1,826,822 1,798,493 28,329

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (597,525) (597,525) (520,894) 76,631

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1,266,703 1,266,703 1,266,703 -
Transfers out (669,178) (669,178) (669,178) -

Total other financing sources (uses), net 597,525 597,525 597,525 -

Net change in fund balance $ - - 76,631 76,631

Fund balance at June 30, 2018 (280,133)

Fund balance at June 30, 2019 $ (203,502)
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
Debt Service Fund

Year ended June 30, 2019

Original budget Final budget Actual Variance

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:

Local $ 339,010 339,010 339,010 -
Miscellaneous - - 34,273 34,273

Total revenues 339,010 339,010 373,283 34,273

Expenditures:

Debt service payments 53,363,135 53,363,135 54,181,230 (818,095)

Total expenditures 53,363,135 53,363,135 54,181,230 (818,095)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (53,024,125) (53,024,125) (53,807,947) (783,822)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 53,024,125 53,024,125 52,991,673 (32,452)

Net change in fund balance $ - - (816,274) (816,274)

Fund balance at June 30, 2018 2,277,296

Fund balance at June 30, 2019 $ 1,461,022
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Combining Statement of Net Position

Nonmajor Component Units
June 30, 2019

Peninsula
Airport

Commission

Economic and
Industrial

Development
Authorities

Total
Nonmajor

Component
Units

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,629,123 7,405,827 9,034,950
Restricted cash - 12,083,707 12,083,707
Receivables:

Accounts 567,383 353,445 920,828
Loans 31,215 76,477 107,692
Other - 187,578 187,578

Inventories 45,540 - 45,540
Other current assets 54,078 - 54,078

Total current assets 2,327,339 20,107,034 22,434,373

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,330,784 2,457,376 10,788,160
Deferred project costs 164,592 - 164,592
Net pension asset 261,500 - 261,500
Receivables:

Loans - 1,187,313 1,187,313
Accounts, notes & grants - 6,725,682 6,725,682

Land held for lease or resale - 34,694,532 34,694,532
Property, plant and equipment:

Land 6,604,658 - 6,604,658
Construction in progress 444,706 8,615,664 9,060,370
Infrastructure - 2,543,500 2,543,500
Buildings - 201,667,374 201,667,374
Improvements - 19,700,793 19,700,793
Airfield 90,658,261 - 90,658,261
Terminal 89,367,640 - 89,367,640
Trailer park and rental units 1,548,885 - 1,548,885
Machinery and equipment 6,422,304 84,674 6,506,978
Less accumulated depreciation (106,511,906) (74,027,866) (180,539,772)

Total assets 99,618,763 223,756,076 323,374,839

Deferred outflows of resources
Pension deferrals 147,248 - 147,248
OPEB deferrals 126,400 - 126,400
Deferred amount on refunding - 4,271,542 4,271,542

Total deferred outflows of resources 273,648 4,271,542 4,545,190

Liabilities
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 256,992 1,853,315 2,110,307
Accrued liabilities 370,659 50,537 421,196
Deposits 29,252 - 29,252
Bonds and notes payable 521,763 9,579,158 10,100,921

Total current liabilities 1,178,666 11,483,010 12,661,676

Notes payable - 7,449,985 7,449,985
Bonds payable 6,978,295 68,673,761 75,652,056
Net OPEB liability 5,346,294 - 5,346,294

Total liabilities 13,503,255 87,606,756 101,110,011

Deferred inflows of resources
Pension deferrals 415,497 - 415,497
OPEB deferrals 1,965,230 - 1,965,230
Deferred revenues - 1,000 1,000

Total deferred inflows of resources 2,380,727 1,000 2,381,727

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 81,034,490 77,150,525 158,185,015
Restricted for:

Capital projects 8,592,284 12,706,754 21,299,038
Capital loans - 1,654,991 1,654,991

Unrestricted (5,618,345) 48,907,592 43,289,247

Total net position $ 84,008,429 140,419,862 224,428,291
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Nonmajor Component Units
Year ended June 30, 2019

Peninsula
Airport

Commission

Economic and
Industrial

Development
Authorities

Total
Nonmajor

Component
Units

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services $ 8,198,264 - 8,198,264
Property rentals - 7,067,031 7,067,031
Parking contributions - 199,601 199,601
Parking Authority revenues - 849,556 849,556
Intergovernmental - Primary Government - 16,597,783 16,597,783

Total operating revenues 8,198,264 24,713,971 32,912,235

Operating expenses: 
Personal services 3,795,869 789,740 4,585,609
Contractual services 2,409,375 6,209,473 8,618,848
Materials and supplies 1,092,367 450,322 1,542,689
Depreciation and amortization 7,867,862 5,484,341 13,352,203
Rental expenses - 1,155,804 1,155,804
Miscellaneous 98,410 4,933,681 5,032,091

Total operating expenses 15,263,883 19,023,361 34,287,244

Operating income (loss) (7,065,619) 5,690,610 (1,375,009)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest revenue 1,183 701,934 703,117
Bond and admin fee income - 229,342 229,342
Interest expense (313,809) (3,138,049) (3,451,858)
Letter of credit and trustee fees - (51,650) (51,650)
Gain (loss) on disposal (6,138) - (6,138)
Other revenues - 613,414 613,414
Governor's opportunity grants - 2,000,000 2,000,000
Governor's opportunity grants - (2,000,000) (2,000,000)
Foundry grant - (6,000,000) (6,000,000)
OPEB expense (220,894) - (220,894)

Total non-operating revenues (expenses), net (539,658) (7,645,009) (8,184,667)

Gain (loss) before capital contributions and extraordinary item (7,605,277) (1,954,399) (9,559,676)
Capital contributions, net 3,121,562 - 3,121,562
Extraordinary item: Contribution - Primary Government - 10,155,757 10,155,757

Change in net position (4,483,715) 8,201,358 3,717,643

Net position at June 30, 2018 88,492,144 132,218,504 220,710,648

Net position at June 30, 2019 $ 84,008,429 140,419,862 224,428,291

119



City of Newport News, Virginia
Statement of Cash Flows

Nonmajor Component Units
Year ended June 30, 2019

Peninsula
Airport

Commission

Economic and
Industrial

Development
Authorities Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $ 8,630,680 24,944,324 33,575,004
Payments to suppliers (4,069,978) (12,703,122) (16,773,100)
Payments to employees (4,100,276) (789,740) (4,890,016)
Receipts from loans and mortgages - 111,065 111,065

Net cash provided by operating activities 460,426 11,562,527 12,022,953

Cash flows used in noncapital financing activities:
OPEB expenses paid (104,670) - (104,670)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets (743,709) (583,030) (1,326,739)
Contributed capital 3,601,030 - 3,601,030
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 5,131 - 5,131
Repayment and retirement of long-term debt, net (503,445) (3,385,545) (3,888,990)
Interest paid (313,809) (3,138,049) (3,451,858)
Other revenue and expenses (321) 791,106 790,785
Proceeds from debt refunding - 643,637 643,637
Payment to foundry grant - (6,000,000) (6,000,000)

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities 2,044,877 (11,671,881) (9,627,004)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 1,183 701,934 703,117
Loans issued - (126,137) (126,137)
Investment in future projects (3,115) - (3,115)
Decrease in restricted investments, net (2,362,352) - (2,362,352)

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (2,364,284) 575,797 (1,788,487)

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 36,349 466,443 502,792
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of year 1,592,774 21,480,467 23,073,241

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of year 1,629,123 21,946,910 23,576,033

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) (7,065,619) 5,690,610 (1,375,009)
Adjustment to reconcile operating income (loss) to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 7,867,862 5,484,341 13,352,203
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Accounts receivable (39,279) - (39,279)
Inventories 10,408 - 10,408
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and leases payable (58,995) 578,905 519,910
Unearned revenues - 1,000 1,000
Net pension liability and related deferred inflows/outflows of resources (220,347) - (220,347)
Net GLI OPEB liability and related deferred inflows/outflows of resources (13,918) - (13,918)
Other receivables - 4,562,045 4,562,045
Prepaid assets (19,686) - (19,686)
Changes in land inventory - (4,865,439) (4,865,439)
Mortgages receivable - 111,065 111,065

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 460,426 11,562,527 12,022,953

Supplemental disclosure:
Noncash investing and financing activities:

Contributed capital funded by accounts receivable 31,215 - 31,215
Write off of ARC receivable $ - 10,155,757 10,155,757
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Trust Funds
June 30, 2019

Line of Duty Act
Benefit Fund Pension Fund OPEB Fund Total

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,828,740 4,526,105 1,659,874 9,014,719
Cash and cash equivalents with trustee - 11,244,612 173,930 11,418,542
Investments, at fair value:

Debt securities - 138,289,330 9,497,899 147,787,229
Equity investments - 638,833,266 23,707,133 662,540,399
Private equities - 45,305,240 - 45,305,240
Real estate and timber - 120,771,284 - 120,771,284

Due from other components - 73,357 - 73,357
Sales receivable - 998,444 292 998,736
Claims Fluctuation Reserve (Anthem) - - 1,827,864 1,827,864
Other assets 15,686 - - 15,686

Total assets 2,844,426 960,041,638 36,866,992 999,753,056

Liabilities
Accounts payable 221,948 169,812 1,616,753 2,008,513
Due to City - 91,129 377,040 468,169
Purchases payable - 2,302,235 - 2,302,235

Total liabilities 221,948 2,563,176 1,993,793 4,778,917

Net Position
Assets held in trust

Restricted for pension and OPEB benefits - 957,478,462 34,873,199 992,351,661
Restricted 2,622,478 - - 2,622,478

Total net position $ 2,622,478 957,478,462 34,873,199 994,974,139
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Trust Funds
Year ended June 30, 2019

Line of Duty Act
Benefit Fund Pension Fund OPEB Fund Total

Additions:
Employer contributions:

City General Fund $ 300,000 28,711,291 7,235,750 36,247,041
Waterworks Fund - 3,544,184 1,004,250 4,548,434
School Operating Fund - 8,598,267 - 8,598,267

Employee contributions:
City General Fund - 4,191,223 - 4,191,223
Waterworks Fund - 547,053 - 547,053
School Operating Fund - 602,601 - 602,601

Other contributions:
Income from leave exchange - 128,152 - 128,152
Employee buy-back - 61,767 - 61,767

Total contributions 300,000 46,384,538 8,240,000 54,924,538

Investment income:
Net appreciation (depreciation) - bonds - 1,935,215 310,125 2,245,340
Net appreciation (depreciation) - stocks - 21,363,244 263,004 21,626,248
Interest 57,051 3,977,880 42,119 4,077,050
Dividends - 5,743,567 609,034 6,352,601
Real estate operating income - 7,209,718 - 7,209,718
Commission recapture - 29,642 - 29,642
Other investment income - 15,075 - 15,075

Total investment income 57,051 40,274,341 1,224,282 41,555,674
Less investment expenses - (3,045,890) (6,146) (3,052,036)

Net investment gain 57,051 37,228,451 1,218,136 38,503,638

Total additions 357,051 83,612,989 9,458,136 93,428,176

Deductions:
Benefits paid to participants 247,202 82,831,443 8,393,848 91,472,493
Refunds of member contributions - 70,306 - 70,306
Administrative expenses 3,786 982,680 44,934 1,031,400
Other expenses 72,497 - - 72,497

Total deductions 323,485 83,884,429 8,438,782 92,646,696

Change in net position 33,566 (271,440) 1,019,354 781,480

Net position held in trust for retirement benefits at
June 30, 2018 2,588,912 957,749,902 33,853,845 994,192,659

Net position held in trust for retirement benefits at
June 30, 2019 $ 2,622,478 957,478,462 34,873,199 994,974,139
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities 

Agency Funds
June 30, 2019

Balance
June 30, 2018 Additions Deductions

Balance
June 30, 2019

GPWDC
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 149,122 3,159,140 3,131,324 176,938
Accounts receivable 824,642 93,061 10,000 907,703

Total assets $ 973,764 3,252,201 3,141,324 1,084,641

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 150,326 2,059,844 2,013,500 196,670
Due to other agencies 823,438 64,533 - 887,971

Total liabilities $ 973,764 2,124,377 2,013,500 1,084,641

Other agency funds
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,470,982 23,217,088 21,708,839 7,979,231
Accounts receivable 3,937,481 22,752,409 24,834,273 1,855,617

Total assets $ 10,408,463 45,969,497 46,543,112 9,834,848

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 997,150 22,233,244 21,468,546 1,761,848
Due to other governments 6,817,439 - 1,328,757 5,488,682
Due to other agencies 2,593,874 138,354 147,910 2,584,318

Total liabilities $ 10,408,463 22,371,598 22,945,213 9,834,848

Total agency funds
Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,620,104 26,376,228 24,840,163 8,156,169
Accounts receivable 4,762,123 22,845,470 24,844,273 2,763,320

Total assets $ 11,382,227 49,221,698 49,684,436 10,919,489

Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,147,476 24,293,088 23,482,046 1,958,518
Due to other governments 6,817,439 - 1,328,757 5,488,682
Due to other agencies 3,417,312 202,887 147,910 3,472,289

Total liabilities $ 11,382,227 24,495,975 24,958,713 10,919,489
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Statistical Section

This part of the City's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what
the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the
government's overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends 124
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City’s financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 130
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the City’s ability to
generate its property and sales taxes.

Debt Capacity 135
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City’s current level of
outstanding debt and the City’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.
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S-1

City of Newport News, Virginia
Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015* 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Governmental activities:
Net investment in capital assets $ 473,716,004 $ 434,506,011 $ 403,502,237 $ 384,685,456 $ 362,541,053 $ 344,253,405 $ 331,677,129 $ 311,394,219 $ 290,455,293 $ 251,724,446
Restricted 34,772,461 28,002,362 19,682,760 19,333,167 15,441,843 11,105,034 9,396,408 10,732,493 1,182,184 1,034,412
Unrestricted (deficit) (250,348,726) (263,060,889) (226,610,632) (202,853,172) (201,104,209) (169,541,405) (165,087,764) (141,023,569) (104,156,300) (59,047,595)

Total governmental activities net position $ 258,139,739 $ 199,447,484 $ 196,574,365 $ 201,165,451 $ 176,878,687 $ 185,817,034 $ 175,985,773 $ 181,103,143 $ 187,481,177 $ 193,711,263

Business-type activities:
Net investment in capital assets $ 332,048,472 $ 321,533,379 $ 312,211,263 $ 299,063,108 $ 284,602,082 $ 243,541,418 $ 232,313,434 $ 257,644,908 $ 251,759,910 $ 238,441,047
Restricted - - - - - 28,007,541 30,427,669 - - -
Unrestricted 19,864,260 11,132,237 9,195,280 3,558,442 1,951,106 27,165,354 21,103,436 19,485,138 23,521,844 31,828,423

Total business-type activities net position $ 351,912,732 $ 332,665,616 $ 321,406,543 $ 302,621,550 $ 286,553,188 $ 298,714,313 $ 283,844,539 $ 277,130,046 $ 275,281,754 $ 270,269,470

Primary Government:
Net investment in capital assets $ 805,764,476 $ 756,039,390 $ 715,713,500 $ 683,748,564 $ 647,143,135 $ 587,794,823 $ 563,990,563 $ 569,039,127 $ 542,215,203 $ 490,165,493
Restricted 34,772,461 28,002,362 19,682,760 19,333,167 15,441,843 39,112,575 39,824,077 10,732,493 1,182,184 1,034,412
Unrestricted (deficit) (230,484,466) (251,928,652) (217,415,352) (199,294,730) (199,153,103) (142,376,051) (143,984,328) (121,538,431) (80,634,456) (27,219,172)

Total Primary Government net position $ 610,052,471 $ 532,113,100 $ 517,980,908 $ 503,787,001 $ 463,431,875 $ 484,531,347 $ 459,830,312 $ 458,233,189 $ 462,762,931 $ 463,980,733

Note: * Implementation of GASB 68
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S-2

City of Newport News, Virginia
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015** 2014* 2013 2012 2011 2010

Program revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
Public works $ 60,027,815 $ 57,160,432 $ 55,846,420 $ 54,559,279 $ 52,316,287 $ 45,729,958 $ 40,889,684 $ 37,095,768 $ 36,800,694 $ 37,744,481
All others 31,176,856 30,035,422 29,954,030 28,819,222 29,469,594 27,341,075 27,279,880 26,264,076 25,854,740 25,805,742

Operating grants and contributions 30,452,406 39,075,745 40,933,661 41,835,794 41,537,105 41,230,144 39,249,011 41,429,302 44,986,270 42,704,554
Capital grants and contributions 38,072,400 30,410,059 16,980,158 9,891,763 9,852,965 8,261,793 6,482,329 4,966,923 3,156,118 4,740,959

Total governmental activities program
revenues 159,729,477 156,681,658 143,714,269 135,106,058 133,175,951 122,562,970 113,900,904 109,756,069 110,797,822 110,995,736

Business-type activities:
Charges for services 95,343,639 99,350,705 91,990,145 89,992,744 88,819,826 85,580,834 76,099,474 73,337,822 74,497,015 72,719,343
Operating/Capital grants and contributions 2,396,486 3,986,319 2,263,856 3,352,599 2,434,032 2,327,993 2,811,556 3,475,356 4,810,036 5,381,669

Total business-type activities program
revenues 97,740,125 103,337,024 94,254,001 93,345,343 91,253,858 87,908,827 78,911,030 76,813,178 79,307,051 78,101,012

Total Primary Government program revenues 257,469,602 260,018,682 237,968,270 228,451,401 224,429,809 210,471,797 192,811,934 186,569,247 190,104,873 189,096,748

Expenses
Governmental activities:

General government 104,489,210 99,745,558 110,180,530 105,287,988 95,389,412 98,295,537 85,544,610 53,687,583 41,072,050 56,496,116
Judicial administration 8,087,466 7,996,313 8,150,550 7,000,968 6,705,580 6,801,427 6,779,007 7,796,103 7,675,395 7,061,964
Public safety 126,206,588 123,683,767 128,952,047 117,228,275 112,771,624 116,029,097 113,305,100 131,544,707 129,661,963 119,642,698
Public works 78,239,758 76,410,545 85,577,272 77,766,098 70,465,462 72,201,809 70,293,521 76,076,207 77,288,468 71,950,527
Health and welfare 46,245,011 45,434,568 44,848,871 41,363,323 39,218,507 40,894,433 42,283,290 49,131,969 54,114,507 52,805,082
Education 122,254,884 132,474,462 138,929,299 121,829,209 147,634,659 119,743,781 116,592,925 117,566,704 118,376,318 119,956,981
Parks, recreation and culture 33,704,442 33,766,228 35,237,952 32,294,586 31,522,216 32,804,044 34,050,686 34,690,901 34,385,246 32,614,571
Community development 11,669,637 11,298,553 11,180,081 11,490,635 7,371,121 9,764,564 11,194,312 8,743,779 12,678,704 10,369,291
Interest and other fiscal charges 20,959,483 20,083,955 19,860,527 20,545,591 20,497,054 20,607,931 22,927,201 25,545,336 30,258,101 23,923,629

Total governmental activities expenses 551,856,479 550,893,949 582,917,129 534,806,673 531,575,635 517,142,623 502,970,652 504,783,289 505,510,752 494,820,859

Business-type activities:
Public utilities 72,132,481 74,291,178 67,605,709 69,011,682 64,775,097 63,629,010 62,502,189 65,287,629 64,529,867 64,078,572

Total business-type activities expenses 72,132,481 74,291,178 67,605,709 69,011,682 64,775,097 63,629,010 62,502,189 65,287,629 64,529,867 64,078,572

Total Primary Government expenses 623,988,960 625,185,127 650,522,838 603,818,355 596,350,732 580,771,633 565,472,841 570,070,918 570,040,619 558,899,431

Net revenue/(expenses)
Governmental activities (392,127,002) (394,212,291) (439,202,860) (399,700,615) (398,399,684) (394,579,653) (389,069,748) (395,027,220) (394,712,930) (383,825,123)
Business-type activities 25,607,644 29,045,846 26,648,292 24,333,661 26,478,761 24,279,817 16,408,841 11,525,549 14,777,184 14,022,440

Total Primary Government $ (366,519,358) $ (365,166,445) $ (412,554,568) $ (375,366,954) $ (371,920,923) $ (370,299,836) $ (372,660,907) $ (383,501,671) $ (379,935,746) $ (369,802,683)

125



S-2

City of Newport News, Virginia
Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

General revenues and other changes in net
assets

Governmental activities: 
General property taxes $ 277,522,739 $ 265,622,961 $ 261,245,586 $ 256,787,386 $ 250,847,834 $ 246,119,180 $ 229,811,554 $ 229,194,920 $ 230,980,102 $ 236,993,370
Other taxes 107,764,452 105,492,219 103,889,921 102,082,792 100,362,448 96,418,092 96,537,561 91,744,426 89,063,340 88,595,948
Grants and contributions not restricted to

specific programs 47,239,111 46,117,575 44,482,705 43,217,511 43,235,474 42,216,776 41,481,654 47,106,347 48,209,536 48,630,187
Investment earnings 6,240,402 4,345,961 3,102,177 2,688,086 2,438,265 2,293,272 2,328,310 2,270,634 2,395,569 2,663,324
Special item: Loss on extinguishment (10,155,757) - - - - - - - - -
Miscellaneous 12,708,310 14,270,016 12,391,385 9,711,606 10,542,858 9,358,360 3,902,299 8,441,859 7,834,297 7,466,092
Transfers 9,500,000 9,500,000 9,500,000 9,500,000 9,500,000 9,391,000 9,891,000 9,891,000 10,000,000 10,000,000

Total governmental activities 450,819,257 445,348,732 434,611,774 423,987,381 416,926,879 405,796,680 383,952,378 388,649,186 388,482,844 394,348,921

Business-type activities: 
Investment earnings 1,684,370 1,033,077 454,799 276,491 167,947 153,241 196,652 213,743 235,100 549,737
Extraordinary loss - - - - - - - - - (52,612,401)
Miscellaneous 1,455,102 1,474,323 1,181,902 958,210 962,131 717,187 - - - -
Transfers (9,500,000) (9,500,000) (9,500,000) (9,500,000) (9,500,000) (9,391,000) (9,891,000) (9,891,000) (10,000,000) (10,000,000)

Total business-type activities (6,360,528) (6,992,600) (7,863,299) (8,265,299) (8,369,922) (8,520,572) (9,694,348) (9,677,257) (9,764,900) (62,062,664)

Total Primary Government 444,458,729 438,356,132 426,748,475 415,722,082 408,556,957 397,276,108 374,258,030 378,971,929 378,717,944 332,286,257

Change in net position
Governmental activities 58,692,255 51,136,441 (4,591,086) 24,286,766 18,527,195 11,217,027 (5,117,370) (6,378,034) (6,230,086) 10,523,798
Business-type activities 19,247,116 22,053,246 18,784,993 16,068,362 18,108,839 15,759,245 6,714,493 1,848,292 5,012,284 (48,040,224)

Total Primary Government $ 77,939,371 $ 73,189,687 $ 14,193,907 $ 40,355,128 $ 36,636,034 $ 26,976,272 $ 1,597,123 $ (4,529,742) $ (1,217,802) $ (37,516,426)

Note:  * Implementation of GASB 65

         ** Implementation of GASB 68
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S-3

City of Newport News, Virginia
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

General fund
Reserved $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 6,305,988
Unreserved - - - - - - - - - 97,366,646
Nonspendable 1,177,088 11,427,627 11,519,118 11,436,689 11,541,956 11,370,286 12,862,783 15,412,699 15,711,917 -
Restricted 596,452 437,862 322,798 224,814 133,554 90,649 563,863 2,013,986 2,011,665 -
Assigned 27,739,746 25,939,296 28,279,733 31,855,250 39,089,271 38,415,687 34,939,767 34,656,608 31,290,680 -
Unassigned 66,498,760 56,876,979 51,711,616 51,054,853 49,692,460 47,366,583 45,353,317 41,364,679 41,390,600 -

Total general fund $ 96,012,046 94,681,764 91,833,265 94,571,606 100,457,241 97,243,205 93,719,730 93,447,972 90,404,862 103,672,634

All other governmental funds
Reserved $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 17,170,639
Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue fund - - - - - - - - - 12,372,862
Debt service fund - - - - - - - - - 6,511,346
Capital project fund - - - - - - - - - 13,290,298
Bond fund - - - - - - - - - 1,144,480

Nonspendable 6,869 4,708 - - - - - - - -
Restricted 94,628,279 48,257,170 74,987,521 37,764,123 30,414,816 56,269,407 32,442,547 24,773,693 28,210,329 -
Committed 24,654,169 22,255,786 19,575,222 20,806,270 32,354,805 30,841,880 30,148,309 32,951,026 40,772,110 -
Assigned 53,698 - 15,223 - - - 92,000 - 30,000 -
Unassigned (220,636) (497,643) (368,067) (429,701) (20,674,947) - - (17,129,925) (32,086,837) -

Total all other governmental funds $ 119,122,379 $ 70,020,021 $ 94,209,899 $ 58,140,692 $ 42,094,674 $ 87,111,287 $ 62,682,856 $ 40,594,794 $ 36,925,602 $ 50,489,625

With the implementation of GASB Statement No. 54 in Fiscal Year 2011, the fund balance terminology was changed.

127



S-4

City of Newport News, Virginia
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

(in thousands of dollars)
Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Revenues
General property taxes $ 276,236 $ 266,110 $ 261,130 $ 256,442 $ 248,297 $ 245,531 $ 228,025 $ 229,353 $ 230,860 $ 236,184
Other local taxes 107,764 105,492 103,890 102,083 100,362 96,418 96,538 91,744 89,063 88,596
Licenses and permits 4,019 4,006 3,724 3,413 3,866 3,433 2,803 3,645 3,372 2,846
Fines and forfeitures 1,834 1,741 1,727 1,517 2,247 2,599 2,984 2,697 2,332 2,213
Intergovernmental 111,959 113,955 99,943 92,433 92,649 90,606 86,344 93,076 94,980 92,883
Charges for services 82,630 79,547 78,390 76,208 73,593 64,421 59,179 54,895 54,057 55,523
Interest and rent 6,108 4,280 3,065 2,669 2,425 2,285 2,322 2,264 2,391 2,653
Recovered costs 6,741 5,908 5,683 5,654 5,946 6,051 6,007 5,768 6,267 5,814
Miscellaneous 5,703 7,296 6,000 4,211 4,348 3,596 3,810 3,034 3,476 3,348

Total revenues 602,994 588,335 563,552 544,630 533,733 514,940 488,012 486,476 486,798 490,060

Expenditures
General government 93,951 92,769 91,034 94,516 83,730 77,930 76,785 50,109 49,331 51,254
Judicial administration 7,588 7,436 7,225 6,442 6,383 6,129 5,861 6,733 6,592 6,236
Public safety 122,534 119,923 118,558 113,199 111,415 107,104 100,419 116,183 114,075 108,877
Public works 67,468 65,966 71,256 67,487 61,926 59,511 55,527 60,806 62,152 58,764
Health and welfare 46,597 45,825 42,722 41,461 40,244 39,113 38,807 44,654 48,918 49,309
Education 116,183 128,632 130,697 120,300 140,727 117,890 119,362 123,007 118,262 119,581
Parks, recreation, and culture 30,394 30,170 30,047 28,396 27,984 26,637 26,829 27,421 26,923 25,976
Community development 10,650 10,315 9,895 10,974 6,990 8,811 9,778 7,429 10,852 8,959
Debt service:

Principal 34,662 33,690 40,085 38,000 38,687 38,295 35,123 36,792 33,675 33,444
Interest and other charges 20,046 19,683 19,995 20,670 19,499 21,690 22,426 25,424 28,100 24,356

Capital outlay 95,284 64,767 45,078 56,311 47,865 45,878 38,271 37,883 27,791 27,186

Total expenditures 645,357 619,176 606,592 597,756 585,450 548,988 529,188 536,441 526,671 513,942

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (42,363) (30,841) (43,040) (53,126) (51,717) (34,048) (41,176) (49,965) (39,873) (23,882)
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S-4

City of Newport News, Virginia
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

(in thousands of dollars)
Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 80,999 70,054 71,696 70,403 73,313 69,806 64,854 63,980 87,189 69,587
Transfers out (71,499) (60,554) (62,196) (60,903) (63,398) (60,415) (54,963) (54,089) (77,189) (59,587)
Payment to refund bonds - - - (39,614) - (64,867) - (76,685) - -
Premium on refunded bonds - - - 6,728 - 7,464 - 7,756 - -
Refund bonds proceeds - - - 33,190 - 56,115 - 69,335 - -
Bond and note proceeds 85,795 - 59,455 48,890 - 45,000 51,905 42,121 3,041 2,918
Premium on bonds issuance 7,657 - 7,416 4,592 - 8,897 5,698 4,259 - -
Contribution to PAC - - - - - - (3,958) - - -

Total other financing sources (uses), net 102,952 9,500 76,371 63,286 9,915 62,000 63,536 56,677 13,041 12,918

Special item
Loss on extinguishment (10,156) - - - - - - - - -

Net change in fund balance $ 50,433 $ (21,341) $ 33,331 $ 10,160 $ (41,802) $ 27,952 $ 22,360 $ 6,712 $ (26,832) $ (10,964)

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures * %9.6 %9.5 %10.5 %10.6 %10.6 %11.6 %11.7 %12.6 %12.8 %11.9

* Corrected capitalized expenditure amounts that are used to determine debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures for fiscal years 2010 thru
2018.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
% Change
2010-2019

Revenues
General property taxes $ 277,522,739 $ 265,622,961 $ 261,245,586 $ 256,787,386 $ 250,847,834 $ 246,119,180 $ 229,811,554 $ 229,194,920 $ 230,980,102 $ 236,183,979 %17.5
E-911 service 789,725 746,818 722,114 701,894 722,381 637,060 596,242 699,378 729,711 737,734 %7.0
Telecom sales 9,982,359 10,685,005 11,012,699 11,289,782 11,679,829 11,697,528 11,992,112 11,681,054 12,321,643 12,018,133 %(16.9)
Sales tax 26,197,558 25,693,286 24,553,589 23,601,270 23,390,029 22,426,753 22,920,353 22,022,527 21,206,724 20,862,730 %25.6
Utility tax 6,341,872 6,428,968 6,043,252 6,262,091 6,312,731 6,279,595 6,262,714 5,891,989 6,511,120 6,321,381 %0.3
Consumption tax 696,656 554,807 904,868 669,850 714,814 709,174 700,021 653,430 674,265 776,672 %(10.3)
Business license tax 18,015,385 17,239,148 16,762,176 16,383,239 16,360,314 15,750,751 16,200,207 16,109,141 15,115,176 15,266,938 %18.0
Rental car tax 1,157,389 1,110,324 1,144,248 1,115,643 1,119,583 1,041,657 1,151,221 1,229,911 1,044,775 1,021,610 %13.3
Motor vehicle license tax 4,286,075 4,273,220 4,131,204 4,096,782 4,009,795 4,103,933 3,876,035 3,917,451 3,880,996 3,922,803 %9.3
Bank stock tax 1,140,972 1,018,617 1,012,668 804,718 642,977 675,657 666,072 847,745 957,902 1,015,597 %12.3
Recordation and wills tax 1,389,607 1,477,452 1,598,418 1,490,565 1,340,624 1,265,779 1,370,840 1,407,159 1,065,889 1,263,938 %9.9
Tobacco tax 4,761,217 4,576,884 4,925,919 4,808,217 4,949,954 5,102,091 5,228,287 4,799,234 4,269,564 4,160,343 %14.4
Hotel and motel room tax 4,634,839 4,345,781 4,278,009 4,297,160 4,013,332 3,178,730 3,008,260 3,191,992 3,064,515 2,969,053 %56.1
Restaurant food tax 27,364,800 26,263,697 25,757,894 25,551,404 24,136,927 22,873,051 22,082,728 18,835,979 17,767,348 17,765,937 %54.0
Amusement tax 961,140 984,277 980,953 929,005 872,557 665,301 482,469 457,436 453,712 493,079 %94.9
Tourism zone tax 44,858 93,935 61,910 81,172 96,601 11,032 - - - - %-

Total taxes $ 385,287,191 $ 371,115,180 $ 365,135,507 $ 358,870,178 $ 351,210,282 $ 342,537,272 $ 326,349,115 $ 320,939,346 $ 320,043,442 $ 324,779,927 %18.6
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars)

Fiscal Real Personal Machinery Public Utility Less: Tax- Total Taxable Total Direct Estimated Actual

Year Property Property and Tools Real Estate Personal Property Exempt Property Assessed Value Tax Rate Taxable Value

2010 $ 19,762,256 $ 1,154,011 $ 419,441 $ 293,307 $ 172,545 $ (3,753,027) $ 18,048,533 $ 1.37 $ 21,801,560
2011 18,600,158 1,165,494 438,747 326,889 173,108 (3,614,365) 17,090,031 1.40 20,704,396
2012 18,342,224 1,186,515 468,330 339,790 163,940 (3,622,298) 16,878,501 1.41 20,500,799
2013 17,744,690 1,221,798 486,090 333,266 163,292 (3,641,733) 16,307,403 1.45 19,949,136
2014 17,768,798 1,248,199 507,497 353,179 156,714 (3,826,649) 16,207,738 1.41 20,034,387
2015 17,979,237 1,263,012 531,235 352,226 155,737 (3,962,290) 16,319,157 1.40 20,281,447
2016 18,396,884 1,322,984 543,091 349,931 157,772 (4,053,925) 16,716,737 1.42 20,770,662
2017 18,782,332 1,365,979 554,965 355,023 167,828 (4,143,466) 17,082,661 1.53 21,226,127
2018 21,798,305 1,371,461 587,738 379,115 158,661 (6,922,307) 17,372,973 1.53 24,295,280
2019 22,673,480 1,413,676 632,389 384,420 161,155 (7,208,716) 18,056,404 1.53 25,265,120

Source: City of Newport News Real Estate Assessors Office & Commissioner of the Revenue's Office
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Direct and Overlapping Property Taxes

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Rate per $100 of assessed value)

City Direct Rates

Fiscal
Year

Real
Estate

Mobile
Homes Trawlers

Pleasure
Boats

Machinery
& Tools

Motor
Vehicles

Total
Direct Rate

2010 $ 1.10 $ 1.10 $ 0.90 $ 1.00 $ 3.75 $ 4.25 $ 1.37
2011 1.10 1.10 0.90 1.00 3.75 4.25 1.40
2012 1.10 1.10 0.90 1.00 3.75 4.25 1.41
2013 1.10 1.10 0.90 1.00 3.75 4.50 1.45
2014 1.22 1.22 0.90 1.00 3.75 4.50 1.41
2015 1.22 1.22 0.90 1.00 3.75 4.50 1.40
2016 1.22 1.22 0.90 1.00 3.75 4.50 1.42
2017 1.22 1.22 0.90 1.00 3.75 4.50 1.53
2018 1.22 1.22 0.90 1.00 3.75 4.50 1.53
2019 1.22 1.22 0.90 1.00 3.75 4.50 1.53

Source: City of Newport News FY19 Adopted Operating Budget
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Principal Property Tax Payers

Current Year and Nine Years Prior
(in thousands of dollars)

2019 2010

Taxes Due
based on

Assessed Value
Percentage of

Taxes Due

Taxes Due
based on

Assessed Value
Percentage of

Taxes Due

Huntington Ingalls Incorporated $25,060 9.08% $14,944 8.48%
Canon USA Inc/ Canon Virginia Inc 5,494 1.99% 2,412 1.37%
Virginia Electric & Power Co Richmond 3,144 1.14% 1,154 0.65%
The Mariners Museum 2,819 1.02% 1,582 0.90%
Continental Automotive Systems US Inc 2,270 0.82% 1,831 1.04%
PR Patrick Henry LLC 1,930 0.70% 1,453 0.82%
Dominion Terminal Associates 1,258 0.46% 1,035 0.59%
Virginia Natural Gas Inc. 1,132 0.41% 433 0.25%
Verizon Virginia LLC 1,116 0.40% 881 0.50%
Kinder Morgan Operating LP 991 0.36% 1,050 0.60%
Ferguson Enterprises Corp 949 0.34% 582 0.33%
Pointe Hope LLC 944 0.34% - -
IREIT Newport News Tech Center LLC 888 0.32% - -
RPAI US Management LLC 698 0.25% - -
Oyster Point Residential LLC 639 0.23% 521 0.30%
Patrick Henry Hospital (Warwick Forest) 610 0.22% 496 0.28%
Bottling Group LLC 572 0.21% 526 0.30%
Wal-Mart Real Estate Business Trust 568 0.21% - -
Venture Newport News LLC 565 0.20% - -
Cox Communications Hampton Roads LLC 519 0.19% 457 0.26%
Inland Western Newport News - - 793 0.45%
United Dominion Realty Trust Inc - - 507 0.29%
Meridian Parkside Apartments LLC - - 467 0.26%
Shorewood Packaging Corp of VA - - 435 0.25%
Harbours LLC - - 402 0.23%

Total $52,166 18.89% $31,961 18.15%

Note: Figures include both personal property and real estate tax assessments for these taxpayers

Source: City of Newport News Real Estate Assessors Office and Office of the Commissioner of Revenue
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars)

Fiscal Tax Current Year Prior Year Collections in Total Collections for Year

Year Levy Amount % of Levy Amount Subsequent Years Amount % of Levy

2010 $ 235,225 $ 227,030 96.5% - $ 6,476 $ 233,506 99.3
2011 233,380 222,804 95.5% - 6,115 228,919 98.1
2012 236,875 220,914 93.3% - 7,550 228,464 96.4
2013 229,071 218,911 95.6% - 7,267 226,178 98.7
2014 248,820 236,734 95.1% - 8,340 245,074 98.5
2015 248,645 238,149 95.8% - 9,199 247,348 99.5
2016 255,057 245,186 96.1% - 7,917 253,103 99.2
2017 260,913 250,535 96.0% - 7,873 258,408 99.0
2018 265,381 255,657 96.3% - 7,626 263,283 99.2
2019 276,004 265,894 96.3% - Not Available 265,894 96.3
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Dollars in thousands, except per capita)

Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Population 178,626 179,388 181,825 182,385 182,965 182,020 180,726 180,719 180,719 193,172
Personal income $ - $ - $ 7,470,774 $ 7,448,898 $ 7,377,992 $ 7,045,829 $ 6,891,612 $ 6,672,878 $ 6,241,927 $ 5,946,073
Governmental activities:

General obligation bonds* 414,072 357,301 393,024 367,747 349,364 388,106 357,229 332,436 316,605 346,886
VRA* 13,393 15,270 17,282 19,530 22,129 24,728 27,228 29,583 31,777 30,761
VPSA* 728 1,075 1,413 1,741 2,430 3,099 3,749 4,382 5,257 6,106
Guaranty of Peninsula Airport bonds - - - - - - - 4,180 4,490 4,780
Literary fund 3,359 3,779 4,199 4,619 5,038 5,458 5,878 6,298 6,717 7,237
Capital leases - 99 211 320 434 571 - - - -
Land lease payable - - 262 509 742 961 1,167 1,362 - -
Land purchase payable - - - - - 142 600 633 - -

Business-type activities: 
Public Utility bonds 103,138 116,600 129,367 113,508 127,043 141,464 153,005 166,107 172,695 186,330

Total Primary Government $ 534,690 $ 494,124 $ 545,758 $ 507,974 $ 507,180 $ 564,529 $ 548,856 $ 544,981 $ 537,541 $ 582,100

Percentage of personal income %- %- %7.3 %6.8 %6.9 %8.0 %8.0 %8.2 %8.6 %9.8

Net bonded debt per capita $ 2,993 $ 2,754 $ 3,002 $ 2,785 $ 2,772 $ 3,101 $ 3,037 $ 3,016 $ 2,974 $ 3,013

* Balances were reclassed to reflect implementation of GASB 88 in FY2019.
Source: Population figures are derived as follows: 2010 - 2019 Census Bureau estimates.
Note: Personal income figures were not available for FY2018 & FY2019
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(in thousands of dollars)

Fiscal
Year Population

Assessed Value
of Real Property

General
Obligation

Bonds
Less Debt

Service
Net Bonded

Debt

Net Bonded
Debt as % of

Assessed
Valuation

Net Bonded
Debt per Capita

2010 193,172 $ 16,059,444 $ 383,753 $ 6,511 $ 377,242 2.3% $ 1,953
2011 180,719 15,037,654 353,639 4,341 349,298 2.3% 1,933
2012 180,719 14,768,666 366,401 1,184 365,217 2.5% 2,021
2013 180,726 14,150,367 388,206 1,375 386,831 2.7% 2,140
2014 182,020 13,996,117 415,933 1,560 414,373 3.0% 2,277
2015 182,965 14,072,307 373,923 1,739 372,184 2.6% 2,034
2016 182,385 14,393,093 389,018 1,924 387,094 2.7% 2,122
2017 181,825 14,702,701 411,719 2,096 409,623 2.8% 2,253
2018 179,388 14,939,690 373,646 2,277 371,369 2.5% 2,070
2019 178,626 15,521,734 428,193 1,461 426,732 2.7% 2,389

Source: Population figures are Census Bureau estimates.
Note: GOB includes VRA and VPSA - see Note 7. There is no overlapping debt because cities in Virginia have jurisdiction over the entire area within their boundaries and
operate independently of any municipal government.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Assessed Value of Real Estate:
General $ 15,521,734,200 $ 14,939,690,000 $ 14,702,700,500 $ 14,393,093,200 $ 14,072,307,152 $ 13,996,117,386 $ 14,150,366,660 $ 14,768,666,300 $ 15,037,654,401 $ 16,059,444,443
Public Service Corporations 384,420,678 379,115,133 355,023,068 349,931,124 352,225,787 352,225,787 333,265,887 339,789,784 326,888,523 293,307,435

Total assessed value 15,906,154,878 15,318,805,133 15,057,723,568 14,743,024,324 14,424,532,939 14,348,343,173 14,483,632,547 15,108,456,084 15,364,542,924 16,352,751,878

Total debt limit (10% of total assessed value) 1,590,615,488 1,531,880,513 1,505,772,357 1,474,302,432 1,442,453,294 1,434,834,317 1,448,363,255 1,510,845,608 1,536,454,292 1,635,275,188

Bond Outstanding:
General Obligation, net of unamortized premiums* 414,072,631 354,858,254 390,581,276 365,304,713 346,758,457 384,926,642 364,737,386 341,281,715 322,235,283 354,045,305
General Obligation: Virginia Public School Authority (VPSA) 727,610 1,075,384 1,413,176 1,741,482 2,430,106 3,099,111 3,749,472 4,382,117 5,256,983 6,105,937
General Obligation: Virginia Resources Authority (VRA) loan fund 13,392,767 15,270,245 17,282,464 19,529,503 22,128,990 24,727,534 27,228,156 29,583,326 31,776,867 30,761,968
General Obligation: Virginia Municipal Pool Loans (VMPL) - - - - 162,564 737,565 1,312,565 1,887,565 2,462,565 3,037,565
Guaranty of Peninsula Airport Bonds - - - - - - - 4,180,000 4,490,000 4,780,000
Library Fund 3,359,286 3,779,053 4,198,821 4,618,588 5,038,355 5,458,122 5,877,889 6,297,656 6,717,425 7,598,441
Qualified Zone Academy Bonds (QZAB) - 2,442,494 2,442,494 2,442,494 2,442,494 2,442,494 2,442,494 2,442,494 2,442,494 2,442,494
Capital leases** - 98,801 210,801 320,418 433,747 570,701 - - - -
Amount available in debt service fund (1,461,022) (2,277,296) (2,096,466) (1,923,785) (1,738,973) (1,559,619) (1,467,172) (1,183,546) (4,370,897) (6,511,346)

Total debt outstanding 430,091,272 375,246,935 414,032,566 392,033,413 377,655,740 420,402,550 403,880,790 388,871,327 371,010,720 402,260,364

Legal debt margin $ 1,160,524,216 $ 1,156,633,578 $ 1,091,739,791 $ 1,082,269,019 $ 1,064,797,554 $ 1,014,431,767 $ 1,044,482,465 $ 1,121,974,281 $ 1,165,443,572 $ 1,233,014,824

Total net debt applicable to the limit as a % of debt limit %72.96 %75.50 %72.50 %73.41 %73.82 %70.70 %72.11 %74.26 %75.85 %75.40

* Corrected general obligation amounts for 2010-2016 to include unamortized premiums that were previously omitted from schedule

** Corrected capital leases amounts for 2009-2010
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Pledged-Revenue Coverage

Current and Prior Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Revenues $ 95,343,639 $ 99,350,705 $ 91,990,145 $ 89,992,744 $ 88,819,826 $ 85,580,834 $ 76,099,474 $ 73,337,821 $ 74,497,013 $ 72,719,343

Less the Sum of:
Operating Expenses 52,954,934 54,389,582 47,780,964 48,435,441 43,199,329 43,866,179 44,089,732 43,538,269 42,366,225 42,696,818
120% of Max Debt Service on Revenue Bonds 5,707,170 4,145,564 2,788,351 2,213,227 3,129,200 3,129,200 3,129,200 3,129,200 3,129,200 3,129,200
100% of Max Debt Service on General Obligation

Water Bonds 10,687,909 12,754,595 15,703,580 15,886,779 15,935,112 16,006,224 16,356,343 16,710,108 19,355,120 16,356,343

69,350,013 71,289,741 66,272,895 66,535,447 62,263,641 63,001,603 63,575,275 63,377,577 64,850,545 62,182,361

Equals (1) $ 25,993,626 $ 28,060,964 $ 25,717,250 $ 23,457,297 $ 26,556,185 $ 22,579,231 $ 12,524,199 $ 9,960,244 $ 9,646,468 $ 10,536,982

(1) Must be positive to meet subsection (i) of the additional bonds test.

Note: Operating expenses exclude depreciation
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year Population

Personal Income
(in thousands) Per Capita Income Median Age School Enrollment

Unemployment
Rate

2010 193,172 $ 5,946,073 $ 32,921 32 28,610 8.0
2011 180,719 6,241,927 34,752 32 28,183 7.6
2012 180,719 6,672,878 36,923 32 27,701 7.4
2013 180,726 6,891,612 37,862 32 29,222 6.9
2014 182,020 7,045,829 38,509 32 29,268 6.4
2015 182,965 7,377,992 40,453 33 29,118 6.0
2016 182,385 7,448,898 40,967 33 28,865 5.0
2017 181,825 7,470,774 41,646 33 28,240 4.9
2018 179,388 - - 33 28,401 4.2
2019 178,626 - - 33 28,381 3.5

Sources:

Note: Population figures are derived as follows: 2010-2015 Bureau of Economic Analysis, 2016-2019 - U.S. Census Bureau estimates.

Personal income: 2010-2016 Bureau of Economic Analysis; 2018-2019 were not available at year end.

Per capita income: 2010-2016 Bureau of Economic Analysis; 2018-2019 were not available at year-end.

Unemployment rate: 2010-2014 Virginia Workforce Connection; 2015-2019 Virginia Labor Market Information.

Median Age: U.S. Census Bureau.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Prior

2019 2010

Employees
% of Total City

Employment Employees
% of Total City

Employment

Huntington Ingalls Industries, Inc. 10,000 - 25,000 19.69% 10,000 - 20,000 16.52%
Newport News Public Schools 1,000 - 5,000 3.38% 1,000 - 5,000 3.30%
Riverside Regional Medical Center 1,000 - 5,000 3.38% 1,000 - 5,000 3.30%
City of Newport News 1,000 - 5,000 3.38% 1,000 - 5,000 3.30%
U.S. Department of Defense 1,000 - 5,000 3.38% 1,000 - 5,000 3.30%
Ferguson Enterprises Inc. 1,000 - 5,000 3.38% 500 - 1000 0.83%
Christopher Newport University 1,000 - 5,000 3.38% 1,000 - 5,000 3.30%
U.S. Department of Army and Air Force 1,000 - 5,000 3.38% 1,000 - 5,000 3.30%
Canon 1,000 - 5,000 3.38% 1,000 - 5,000 3.30%
Walmart 500 - 1000 0.84% - -
Hampton Newport News Comm Services Board - - 500 - 1000 0.83%

Total 18,500 - 66,000 47.57% 18,000 - 60,000 41.28%

Source: Virginia Employment Commission
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Full-Time City Government Employees by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-Time City Government Employees as of June 30

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Fund, Function, Activity and Elements

General Fund:

General Government Administration:

Legislative:
City Council 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
City Clerk 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5

General and Financial Administration:
City Manager 10 10 10 10 18 18 18 18 18 21
Human Resources 20 20 20 16 15 15 18 19 19 18
City Attorney 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18
Internal Auditor 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Commissioner of the Revenue 42 42 42 42 40 40 40 40 40 42
Real Estate Assessor 19 20 20 21 21 22 22 22 22 23
City Treasurer 34 34 34 34 33 33 33 33 33 34
Finance 41 41 22 18 18 18 18 18 18 18
Budget and Evaluation 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Office of Self-Insurance (General Liability Insurance Fund) 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 9
Purchasing*** - - 18 19 21 20 23 23 23 23
Information Technology 62 64 58 57 57 56 57 57 58 63
Customer Service - 311 Call Center* - - - - 10 10 6 - - -
Communications* 25 25 25 24 - - - - - -
Non-departmental - Security Services**** 22 - - - - - - - - -

Board of Elections:
Registrar 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

Total general government administration 328 309 302 294 286 285 289 284 285 299

Judicial Administration:

Courts:
Circuit Courts 7 7 7 7 6 6 6 6 7 7
Office of the Magistrate - - 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
Clerk of the Circuit Court 24 24 24 24 24 23 23 24 24 27
Court Services 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Commonwealth's Attorney 54 54 52 49 49 49 49 49 49 50

Total judicial administration 87 87 91 88 87 86 86 87 88 92

Public Safety:

Law Enforcement and Traffic Control:
Police Department 602 601 594 588 586 586 586 586 587 593

Fire and Rescue Services:
Fire Department 383 382 381 380 379 380 380 382 382 371

Correction and Detention:
Sheriff 219 219 219 219 215 215 217 217 217 222
Adult Corrections** - - - - 60 60 60 61 62 69
Juvenile Detention 145 141 138 130 126 126 125 130 128 143

Inspections:
Codes Compliance 39 39 39 38 38 38 38 39 39 40

Total public safety 1,388 1,382 1,371 1,355 1,404 1,405 1,406 1,415 1,415 1,438

141



S-16

City of Newport News, Virginia
Full-Time City Government Employees by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-Time City Government Employees as of June 30

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Public Works:
Engineering 62 68 70 68 69 78 78 84 85 93
Public works administration 164 186 185 185 156 152 157 158 158 170

Total public works 226 254 255 253 225 230 235 242 243 263

Welfare:
Human Services 395 387 382 377 377 387 391 391 391 397
Office of Youth Development - - - - - - - - - -

Total welfare 395 387 382 377 377 387 391 391 391 397

Parks and Library:
Parks and Recreation 108 108 108 108 106 108 107 105 106 117
Parks and Recreation Revolving Fund 82 80 80 80 83 93 94 95 95 98
Library 53 52 51 52 52 53 56 56 57 61

Total parks, recreation and library 243 240 239 240 241 254 257 256 258 276

Community Development:

Planning and Community Development:
Development 20 20 20 19 17 17 17 17 18 20
Planning 19 14 13 13 12 12 13 13 13 14

Total community development 39 34 33 32 29 29 30 30 31 34

Total general fund 2,706 2,693 2,673 2,639 2,649 2,676 2,694 2,705 2,711 2,799

Other Operating Funds:
Public Utilities Fund 352 352 352 352 353 353 365 365 365 370
Vehicle & Equipment Services Fund 40 40 40 41 39 39 39 40 40 40
Solid Waste Revolving Fund 77 71 71 66 64 64 61 61 66 66
Wastewater Fund 110 109 108 104 100 99 97 95 87 87
Stormwater Management Fund 104 105 105 98 90 88 84 81 79 79
Pension Fund - - - 6 6 6 6 6 6 7
Economic and Industrial Authority 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Parking Authority Fund 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Law Library 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2
Schools 3,884 3,901 3,934 3,904 3,921 3,937 4,026 4,076 4,138 4,296
Peninsula Regional Animal Shelter 13 11 11 11 11 11 - - - -

Total other operating funds 4,588 4,597 4,629 4,590 4,592 4,605 4,686 4,732 4,789 4,954

Total city employees 7,294 7,290 7,302 7,229 7,241 7,281 7,380 7,437 7,500 7,753

Source: City Adopted Budget.

*The Communications Department was created in FY 2015 and will include the existing 311 Call Center, Video Productions Services from the City Manager's Office and Graphics
division from Purchasing.

**The Newport News City Farm (Adult Corrections) ceased operations in FY 2016. Four positions from Adult corrections were transferred to Sheriff, 24 positions were transferred to
Public Works, and two positions were transferred to Vehicle and Equipment Services.

***In FY 2018, the Purchasing Department was transferred into the Finance Department.

****In FY 2019, the Security Services Division was transferred from Public Works to Non-departmental.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Function/Program

General Government:
Retail Sales (Millions) 2,665 2,146 2,329 2,278 2,212 2,242 2,202 2,109 1,893 1,923

Police:
Calls for Service 177,649 181,522 148,561 75,150 154,111 170,317 169,877 255,267 250,126 251,346
Number of Offenses 20,015 19,737 20,236 9,855 19,291 20,601 20,888 22,516 21,386 23,905
Adult Arrests 9,712 12,024 12,716 4,997 13,156 15,182 9,804 14,759 15,065 15,093
Traffic Summonses 23,652 23,171 17,828 17,011 22,700 29,974 28,383 32,961 15,682 26,611
Traffic Accidents 3,142 2,909 3,020 1,490 2,924 2,756 2,641 2,517 2,480 2,510

Fire:
Emergency Medical Service/Rescue* 20,142 21,508 19,520 22,938 22,728 27,574 22,017 24,674 22,190 21,845
Public Assistance* 1,633 2,579 1,120 1,045 1,939 1,660 1,651 1,461 1,569 1,483
Good Intent Calls* 2,535 2,720 2,225 1,817 1,817 150 1,685 1,305 1,309 1,457
False/Alarm/Alarm Malfunction* 1,555 1,577 1,488 1,381 1,436 778 1,375 1,348 1,418 1,428
Hazardous Conditions* 692 577 2,093 109 564 572 637 930 720 879
All Fires* 490 577 622 543 578 610 639 704 870 776
Explosions* 10 15 5 7 7 7 14 18 2 18
Weather Event/Other* 23 4 23 9 10 4 57 51 27 16

Sheriff:
City Jail Capacity 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 300 248

Codes Compliance:
Building Permits Issued 1,464 1,475 1,363 1,372 1,545 1,589 1,985 2,155 1,759 1,821
Residential Construction 137 135 195 222 219 230 222 340 262 198
Commercial Construction 21 18 72 55 76 69 49 102 81 37

Waterworks:
Gallons Delivered per Day (Millions) 33 33 33 34 35 35 35 36 40 40
Meters Connected* 130,381 137,754 136,914 134,191 133,722 133,380 132,743 132,439 134,403 131,924

Public Works:
Potholes Repaired 19,951 20,037 18,494 23,208 19,148 18,148 15,305 15,125 19,216 17,675
Streets Resurfaced (Miles) 14 3 11 10 12 8 7 8 9 9
Recyclables Collected (Tons) 6,447 6,101 6,151 6,300 6,901 7,325 6,957 6,698 7,641 7,463

Parks and Recreation:
Park Visitors (Millions) (All Parks) 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Celebration of Lights Visitors 105,149 119,638 111,097 110,679 104,617 103,491 109,700 112,854 93,428 91,665
Tourism Visitor Inquiries 87,747 78,605 241,311 152,252 78,795 77,224 79,088 87,732 80,206 79,610
Tourism Website Visits*** 331,643 235,698 380,233 241,722 200,132 198,520 215,849 147,875 126,754 138,048
Visitor Guides Distributed 175,000 175,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 165,000 150,000 150,000 150,000

Library:
Circulation Transactions 702,676 692,774 777,457 788,356 887,044 951,241 1,009,939 1,062,759 941,934 847,367
Reference 88,967 77,570 85,349 106,329 152,153 321,102 174,356 178,117 140,623 140,071
Computer Use 188,337 249,743 241,301 236,361 302,465 256,929 244,971 240,257 235,080 231,601
Program Attendance 22,264 31,800 20,848 22,442 14,985 16,272 26,206 14,526 24,552 14,490
Visitor Count** 567,747 678,439 737,748 890,717 890,717 829,290 889,407 759,840 814,129 997,912
Meeting Room Use 1,134 1,397 1,228 1,294 1,872 916 830 1,126 1,193 1,218

Schools:
Average Daily Students 28,381 28,401 28,240 28,865 29,118 29,268 29,222 27,701 28,183 28,610

Source: Various city departments.

.

*Corrections made for service connections for FY 2010.

**Library: New counters installed FY2011.

***Starting FY2013 includes mobile website visits / starting FY 2017 includes tablet website visits.
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

Function/Program

Police:
Patrol Units 243 251 247 242 238 238 245 237 253 240
Boats 3 3 3 3 3 2 3 3 2 2

Fire:
Stations 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11
Fire Trucks 18 18 25 25 25 25 26 26 23 23
Ambulances 12 12 18 18 17 17 17 17 17 17
Boats 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Engineering:
Streetlights 20,790 20,756 20,424 20,586 21,387 20,308 20,125 20,033 19,780 19,645
Traffic Lights 268 263 263 261 261 257 253 253 255 253

Parks and Recreation:
Parks 36 37 37 37 37 36 36 35 35 35
Acreage 8,696 8,697 8,697 8,697 8,697 8,697 9,120 9,119 9,119 9,119
Athletic Fields 154 154 154 154 154 154 97 97 97 97
Mini-parks 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Beach/Waterfront

Areas 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
Boat Ramps 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Golf Courses 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Swimming Pools 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Tennis Courts (Free) 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57
Tennis Courts (Pay) 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24
Squares 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Library:
Libraries 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 6 5 5
Law Libraries 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Waterworks:
Miles of Pipe 1,762 1,762 1,758 1,754 1,754 1,746 1,748 1,746 1,798 1,780
Fire Hydrants 11,363 11,286 11,122 11,069 11,113 10,987 10,939 10,874 10,821 10,700

Public Works:
Refuse Carts 81,808 80,674 82,251 76,654 76,654 77,619 78,354 79,056 82,023 76,607
Streets (Miles) 506 506 505 510 505 505 505 666 505 505
Lanes (Miles)* 1,186 1,185 1,184 1,203 1,193 1,193 1,191 1,191 1,191 1,184
Sanitary Sewers

(Miles)* 587 585 583 584 584 699 709 709 554 572
Storm Sewers (Miles) 681 677 651 599 607 717 542 542 542 487
Pump Stations 187 185 183 183 183 182 180 185 177 179

Schools:
Early Childhood

Centers 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
Elementary Schools 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 25 26
Middle Schools 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
High Schools 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Middle-High Combo

Schools 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Source: Various city departments.

*For previous years beginning in 2012, Non-VDOT eligible roads were included in Lane Miles. The correct totals have been provided for FY16, FY17 and include corrected totals for
FY12, FY13, FY14 and FY15.
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Report�of�Independent�Auditor�on�Internal�Control�over�Financial�Reporting�
and�on�Compliance�and�Other�Matters�Based�on�an�Audit�of�Financial�Statements�

Performed�in�Accordance�with�Government�Auditing�Standards�
 
 

To the Honorable Members of City Council 
City of Newport News, Virginia 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards  issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, 
and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Newport News, Virginia (the �City�), 
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City�s 
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 22, 2019. Our report includes a reference to other 
auditors who audited the financial statements of the Peninsula Airport Commission, a component unit of the City. This report does 
not include the results of the other auditors� testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that 
are reported on separately by those auditors.  
 

Internal�Control�over�Financial�Reporting �
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City�s internal control over financial reporting 
(�internal control�) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our 
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City�s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City�s internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the 
normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material 
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity�s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 

Compliance�and�Other�Matters��
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City�s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we 
performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards or under the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns. 
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Purpose�of�this�Report��
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity�s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity�s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Richmond, Virginia 
November 22, 2019 
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Report of Independent Auditor on Compliance for Each Major Program 

and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform Grant Guidance 
 
 
To the Honorable Members of City Council 
City of Newport News, Virginia 
 
 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program  
We have audited the City of Newport News, Virginia�s (the �City�) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described 
in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City�s major federal programs for 
the year ended June 30, 2019. The City�s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor�s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 
 

Management�s Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its federal awards 
applicable to its federal programs. 
 

Auditor�s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the City�s major federal programs based on our audit of the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 
(�Uniform Guidance�). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City�s 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. However, 
our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City�s compliance. 
 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 
In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 

Other Matters 
The results of our auditing procedures disclosed other instances of noncompliance, which are required to be reported in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs 
as items 2019-001 and 2019-002. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters. 
 
The City�s responses to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs. The City�s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, 
accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance  
Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the City�s internal 
control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program 
to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City�s internal control over compliance. 
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified. However, as 
discussed below, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material a 
weakness and a significant deficiency. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2019-001 to be a material weakness. 

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency in 
internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2019-002 to be 
a significant deficiency. 
 
The City�s responses to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. The City�s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 
 
The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
Richmond, Virginia 
November 22, 2019 
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2019
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2019
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City of Newport News, Virginia
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended Junee 30, 2019

�

���� %DVLV�RI�3UHVHQWDWLRQ�

7KH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�6FKHGXOH�RI�([SHQGLWXUHV�RI�)HGHUDO�$ZDUGV�LQFOXGHV�WKH�IHGHUDO�JUDQW�DFWLYLW\�RI�WKH�
&LW\�RI�1HZSRUW�1HZV��9LUJLQLD� �WKH�&LW\��� H[FHSW� WKH�3HQLQVXOD�$LUSRUW�&RPPLVVLRQ�DQG� WKH�1HZSRUW�
1HZV� 3XEOLF� 6FKRROV�� ZKLFK� KDYH� VHSDUDWH� UHSRUWV� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� WKH� 8QLIRUP� *XLGDQFH�� 7KH�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�LQ�WKLV�6FKHGXOH�LV�SUHVHQWHG�RQ�WKH�PRGLILHG�DFFUXDO�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
WKH� UHTXLUHPHQWV� RI� 7LWOH� �� U.S. Code of Federal Regulations� 3DUW� ����� Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards� �8QLIRUP� *XLGDQFH���
7KHUHIRUH��VRPH�DPRXQWV�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�WKLV�6FKHGXOH�PD\�GLIIHU�IURP�DPRXQWV�SUHVHQWHG�LQ��RU�XVHG�LQ�WKH�
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City�of�Newport�News,�Virginia�
�

Schedule�of�Findings�and�Questioned�Costs�
�

Year�ended�June�30,�2019�
 

 

 
A. Summary of Auditor�s Results  

 
1. The type of report issued on the basic financial statements: Unmodified opinion 
 
2. Significant deficiencies in internal control disclosed by the audit of the financial statements: None reported 
 
3. Material weaknesses in internal control disclosed by the audit of financial statements: No 
 
4. Noncompliance, which is material to the financial statements: No 
 
5. Significant deficiencies in internal control over major programs: Yes, Finding 2019-002 
 
6. Material weaknesses in internal control over major programs: Yes, Finding 2019-001 
 
7. The type of report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified opinion 
 
8. Any audit findings which are required to be reported in accordance with 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance: Yes 
 
9. The programs tested as major programs were: 
 

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

93,778 Medicaid Cluster 
93.568 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 
93.659 Adoption Assistance  
93.658 Foster Care Title IV 
 

10.  Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $1,306,543 
 
11. City of Newport News qualified as a low-risk auditee under in accordance with 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance: 

Yes 
 

B. Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards  
 
None reported 

 
C. Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Federal Awards: 

 
2019-001: Non-Material Noncompliance and Material Weakness � U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
� Eligibility for Medicaid Program Assistance (CFDA 93.778) 
 
Criteria: Per the Virginia Medical Assistance Eligibility Manual, an annual review of all of the enrollee's eligibility 
requirements is called a "renewal." A renewal of the enrollee's eligibility must be completed at least once every 12 months. 
The renewal should be initiated in the 10th month to ensure timely completion of the renewal (Subchapter M1520.001).  A 
signed application for medical assistance is required for all initial request for medical assistance (Subchapter M0120.300) 
and the renewal must be signed by the enrollee or authorized representative (Subchapter M1520.200).  An application for 
medical assistance must be signed to be valid (Subchapter M0120.150).  The case records must contain facts essential to 
the determination of initial and continuing eligibility (Subchapter M0110.000).  It also states that the agency must include 
in the case record documentation to support the agency�s decision on his application (Subchapter M0110.000).  
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City�of�Newport�News,�Virginia�
�

Schedule�of�Findings�and�Questioned�Costs�
�

Year�ended�June�30,�2019�
 

 

Per 42 Code of Federal Regulation section 435.910, the agency must verify the social security number furnished by the 
applicant to ensure the social security number was issued to that individual.  Also, per 42 Code of Federal Regulation 
section 935.956, the agency must verify citizenship status. 
 
Condition: Of the sixty (60) participants selected for testing, one (1) eligible participant case file did not include evidence 
that a renewal was completed within twelve months from the prior re-determination, one (1) participant case file did not 
include evidence that a review of the participant�s income was properly verified, and three (3) eligible participant case files 
were missing the initial eligibility application and the re-determination application, completed within twelve months from 
the prior re-determination, was not signed. 
 
Cause: An increase in the applicants during the year, as well as a lack of personnel to assist in processing and reviewing 
these applications, hindered the City�s efforts to comply with the program requirements for determination of participant�s 
eligibility. 
 
Effect: The City�s non-compliance could result in cost disallowed by the grantor or a reduction in future funding for this 
program.   
 
Questioned Cost: Undeterminable 
 
Recommendation: The City should implement a plan to enhance internal controls related to participant eligibility to 
ensure renewals are occurring on a timely basis and the files contain adequate supporting documentation in accordance 
with Medicaid requirements. 

 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: An email was sent to all staff on 9/23/19 instructing 
them to ensure that all eligibility elements have been verified at renewal and that the system correctly reflects the method 
of verification.  They were directed to check VaCMS DMIS to ensure all required verifications and applications were 
present prior to authorization of a case.  The one case that was not reviewed timely appeared to be a system generated 
error.  Workers were sent an email on 11/8/19 directing them to check generated Medicaid next renewal dates on notices 
to ensure the date is in compliance with the 12 month timeframe.  As supervisors monitor Medicaid cases they will check 
these elements to ensure workers are in compliance. 
 
2019-002: Non-Material Noncompliance and Significant Deficiency � Department of Health and Human Services 
Program name: Low Income Home Energy Assistance (CFDA#: 93.568) 
 
Criteria: Grantees may provide assistance to (a) households in which one or more individuals are receiving Temporary 
Assistance for Needy Families, Supplemental Security Income, Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program benefits, or 
certain needs-tested veterans� benefits; or (b) households with incomes which do not exceed the greater of 150 percent of 
the State�s established poverty level, or 60 percent of the State median income. Grantees may establish lower income 
eligibility criteria, but no household may be excluded solely on the basis of income if the household income is less than 
110 percent of the State�s poverty level (42 USC 8624(b)(2)). Grantees must give priority to those households with the 
highest home energy costs or needs in relation to income and household size (42 USC 8624(b)(5)). 
 
Condition: Of the forty (40) participants selected for testing, one (1) participant case file did not include the application for 
eligibility determination. 
 
Cause: An increase in the applicants during the year, as well as a lack of personnel to assist in processing and reviewing 
these applications, hindered the City�s efforts to comply with the program requirements for determination of participant�s 
eligibility. 

 
Effect: The City�s non-compliance could result in cost disallowed by the grantor or a reduction in future funding for this 
program.   
 
Questioned Cost: Undeterminable, the participant file did not include payments made during the year. 
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Recommendation: The City should implement a plan to enhance internal controls related to participant eligibility to 
ensure all case files are complete. 

 
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions: The Department of Human Services agrees with the 
findings.  The department will increase staffing in the Energy Assistance Unit to allow workers additional time to document 
sufficiently and double check their work prior to authorizing eligibility. The team will consist of four (4) Full Time Eligibility 
Workers, 1 Full Time Administrative Assistant and 1 Part-Time Administrative Assistant.  We have also identified 
Administrative Assistants assigned to other areas of the agency to assist the Energy Assistance team during high volume 
periods of each active Energy Assistance Component.  The agency has established an efficiency plan that will organize 
the work of the unit to ensure documents are tracked, scanned, filed and processed timely.  To ensure efficiency, paper 
applications will be logged for tracking, all applications (online and paper) will be registered and scanned into VaCMS and 
processing staff will utilize the State�s reporting system to ensure timely processing.  Each person involved will have an 
identified role that includes logging, registering, scanning and/or processing.   

 
D. Findings and Questioned Costs Relating to Compliance with Commonwealth of Virginia Laws, Regulations, 

Contracts, and Grants 
 

None noted 
 

E. Status of Prior Year Findings:  
 

None noted 
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